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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
g

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3ANBLEE

Total Revenue

AU

2016
HK$°000
TRET

5,602,894

2015
HK$’000
THET

2,821,473

Changes
25

+98.6%

— Investment Property

—REWx

836,074

730,497

+14.5%

— Property Development
—MRER

2,971,634

12,750

+23,206.9%

— Hotel Operation and Related Services

— B 5 & KRR IRY

1,795,186

2,078,226

-13.6%

Gross profit
EFH

3,098,088

2,124,427

Revaluation (loss)/gain on properties

WmEER (BR), s

(3,167,583)

737,708

Total segment profit
(excluding revaluation (loss)/gain)
7 EB A 42 RE

(TBEER (BE), )

Emperor International Holdings Limited

HEEH (BFF) BRAF

1,827,612

1,249,067

+46.3%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WA

Emperor International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) principally
engage in property investments, property development and
hospitality in the Greater China and overseas.

Market Review

The US Federal Reserve kicked off a new cycle of interest-rate hikes
during the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “Year”), which coupled
with an adjustment of the Renminbi (‘RMB”) exchange rate and
the ongoing decline in oil prices, sparked turmoil in global financial
markets.

The recent volatility in the global financial markets and concerns
over the slowdown in the Mainland economy have posed a drag on
the economic growth in Hong Kong. Despite the modest interest-rate
increment, the prevailing mortgage rate in Hong Kong remains low,
which gives considerable support to home buyers.

The retail property market in Hong Kong was highly affected by the
decline in the number of inbound visitors and spending by Mainland
visitors. Although the retail industry in Hong Kong was undergoing
a downward cycle, the limited supply and entry of newly listed
enterprises stimulated the demand for quality office complexes in
the key commercial districts.

REEE (BR)BRAR (AR MEAKMBA
Bl (FifE [ARE]) T 2ERTEE SBIMEE
MERE MEBRRIBEER -

T 3% [0 E8

REZE2016F3A31B IEFE ([RFE]) » =R
HBREGERRBHF —HINEES N EARE (TAR
B ERFRNHERE VB ERRE TS

MHRIR SR TISKE) I EH A EREN 2
B BB EEERBKES - BENKRM L
Tt B BRI E BB B R EEIMEKT - IR
BERXCEXER

MRS 258 AR BB B HE B TEYED
BELABAFE -BEBETEXEN MTEH:
BTSH T EHNERELDRARENFTRANEMH
FERAL N E MR MSE -

Russell Street
EEH

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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The Hong Kong property market continues to consolidate as a
result of economic and property-related policies. The government
actively increased the land supply and property developers have
introduced new projects and provided various concessionary offers,
boosting the primary market to the fore. Due to the various market
uncertainties as the business environment in Hong Kong may turn
more difficult, both sales volume and transaction price showed a
modest decrease.

It was a challenging period for tourism and the hospitality industry
in Hong Kong. With countries around the world stepping up their
efforts to attract Mainland visitors, both business and leisure
travellers to Hong Kong have reduced. Strengthening of the US
dollar against other currencies has made shopping and travelling to
Hong Kong less appealing.

Canton Road

BRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEWED N
Financial Review 51 75 [0] JBR
Overall Review L4 JE)E]

During the Year, the Group reported a significant revenue growth RAFE T EFHNFEHE AEEZ WA
by 98.6% to HK$5,602.9 million (2015: HK$2,821.5 million) which is £} 15 K i@ 1% /198.6% % 5,602,900,0007% 7t (2015
mainly attributable to the sales of residential flats. The performance % : 2,821,500,000/ 7T) - KB EWMEMEE
of rental income from the Group's investment properties portfolio 2 4 U A L& 58 A4 K GE 110 18 hN14.5% %
remained resilient, with growth of 14.5% to HK$836.1 million 836,100,000/ 7t (20154 : 730,500,000/ 7T ) * 1
(2015; HK$730.5 million), representing 14.9% (2015: 25.9%) of A2 A Z14.9% (2015%F : 25.9% ) - A AFE * B
total revenue. Since majority of the sold units of Upton had been P& ZIEBR KBHELEENERINFE,
delivered to the customers during the Year, revenue from property & B #) 3 3 & ~ Ug A 2 971,600,000/ 7T (2015
development reached HK$2,971.6 million (2015: HK$12.8 million), 4 : 12,800,000/ 7T ) * 15 £ U A 253.0% (2015
representing 53.0% (2015: 0.4%) of total revenue. Due to a softening 4 : 0.4% ) ° B 7R PI1E 2 KO ik AR 7% 55 SK4E
in demand for gaming and hospitality services in Macau, revenue  BUE & 2 862 Y- A A1,795,200,0007 7T (20154 :
from the hospitality segment was HK$1,795.2 million (2015:  2,078,200,000/ 7T ) * 1542 U A 2 32.1% (20154 :
HK$2,078.2 million), accounting for 32.1% (2015: 73.7%) of the total ~ 73.7%) °

revenue.

The Pulse

8  Emperor International Holdings Limited =25 (BFR) BRAR



Gross profit increased to HK$3,098.1 million (2015: HK$2,124.4
million). Due to the weakening consumption market sentiment
and recent downtrend of market rental of investment properties in
prime locations, the assessment of market property valuation was
downward adjusted, and hence, a revaluation loss on investment
properties of HK$3,167.6 million was recorded during the Year,
compared with the revaluation gain on properties of HK$737.7
million in last year. The total segment profit excluding revaluation
loss/gain on properties increased significantly by 46.3% to
HK$1,827.6 million (2015: HK$1,249.1 million). With the presence
of the revaluation loss on properties, loss for the Year attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$2,391.2 million, compared with the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$898.1
million in last year.

Basic loss per share was HK$0.65 (2015: basic earnings per share
of HK$0.24). The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”
or “Directors”) recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.055 (2015: HK$0.06) per share. Together with the interim
dividend of HK$0.045 (2015: HK$0.05) per share, the total dividends
for the Year are HK$0.10 (2015: HK$0.11) per share.

E A AN ZE3,098,100,000 7T (20154 ¢

2,124,400,000/ 7T ) ° B FE B M5 R 5% 55 i
B EESR  REMEMISHESE 7B

MEYESHERMA THAZE  ALRAFEEER
&2 B E1E3,167,600,00008 7T - HE 8 = F 8%
B4 3 & U 35737,700,00078 Tt ° 9 5B 4 FI| 42 58
(T EEMEEGHEBR W) KIEEIN46.3%E
1,827,600,000/% 7T (20154F : 1,249,100,000/8 7T °

ERVEEGHESE  ANRRESABGAFEEE
/#2,391,200,000/8 7T iEE A F RS AR R HAE
A FEH % F1898,100,000/8 7T ©

BIREAEE B0.65%8 7T (20156 : FRREARZF|
02487L) A RNEIZEEE ([EFE K [EE])
2R R HARR B = BR0.05578 T (20154 : 0.0678
T ) ° sE[E] A R B H%0.0458 7T (20154F : 0.057%8
7T)  AFEEAFERE0.108 T (20155 1 0.11
BIT) °

/

/

China Huarong Tower
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WA

Liquidity And Financial Resources

The Group owned a key property portfolio with an area of over 5
million square feet. As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s net asset
value and net asset value per share amounted to HK$22,752.7
million (2015: HK$25,558.9 million) and HK$6.19 (2015: HK$6.96)
per share, respectively.

The Group has cash, bank balances and bank deposits amounted
to HK$3,833.3 million as at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$3,807.6
million). The total external borrowings (excluding payables)
amounted to approximately HK$19,272.0 million (2015: HK$16,959.6
million) and the Group's debt to total asset ratio was 40.1% (2015:
34.6%) (measured by total external borrowings as a percentage to
the total asset value of the Group). In addition to its share capital
and reserves, the Group made use of cash flow generated from
operations, bank borrowings, unsecured notes and unsecured
loans from a related company to finance its operation. During the
Year, the Company issued unsecured notes of US$38.0 million
and HK$500.0 million for the purpose of providing general working
capital to the Group. Such notes will be repayable by 2021 and
carry fixed coupon rate of 4.4% per annum, payable semi-annually
in arrears. The Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and RMB and their interest rates followed market
rates. The Group’s bank balances and cash were also denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and Macau Pataca (“MOP”). Due to
the fluctuations in exchange rates over the past few months, the
Group had certain exposure of foreign currency risks especially in
RMB. However, the Group will closely monitor and take appropriate
measures in order to mitigate the currency risks.

Emperor Group Centre
HELEE

v

10

RBEERUBER

ANEEHA T B ¥4 4 miE%5,000,000F 5
IR-2016F3A31H  AEBE 2 EEFEMRER
& EFE D B A22,752,700,0007 7T (20154 -
25,558,900,000/% 7T ) & & #%6.197% 7T (20154 :
6.96787T) °

720163 A318  REBIRE BT 4588 MERTT
17 7% /3,833,300,0007% 7T (2015%F : 3,807,600,000
BIL) - HIMEE (TN ENRBE)RENA
19,272,000,0005 7T, (20154F : 16,959,600,00078 7T )
IAEEzBEHEERAL X (BIAEELHI
EEEBEEEEREZB D) B40.1% (20154

34.6%) o BRIR A M FEEIN  NEBF BLEEEFE
E7RER BITEE BEREZE KA —EEE
NAER BRFERSEEREFEREES -7
AREE - AN A3 38,000,000 7T K 500,000,000
B EEFER NAREBRIRHE-—REEEL
% BEAZEE G021 FMEERZEAETE BR A
BF44% BEFRE—IX -NEEZRTEEMN
BIIMAREE WREMHSERA B -AEE
ZIRITREBR MRS TSI - ARE BRI IT (TR
FATTEHE- AR BELEAER HIRESE) A&
EEY—TRREMIINERR LERARE M-

;ﬂ;ﬁﬁ AEBBBERER LA BEEARES
&Lz o
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Capital Structure

During the Year, a total of 5,769,475 share options of the Company
were exercised. The number of shares of the Company was then
increased by 5,769,475. The Company’s share capital and share
premium were increased by approximately HK$57,000 and HK$11.3
million respectively, and the share option reserve of the Company
reduced by approximately HK$1.2 million.

Business Review
Investment Property

The Group’s investment properties primarily focus on quality street-
level retail spaces and commercial buildings at prominent locations.
In recent years, the Group strives to enhance the proportion of
commercial buildings among its existing property investment
portfolio, aiming to diversify its rental income streams and ensure the
Group is in a more resilient position to withstand market volatility.

BERER

RAEE & H5760475( AR E 2 B ED &
1718 - N R A AR 19 BB B 1L 38 05,769,475% A8
N A E A M B 1 5 B 0 Bl 38 1 4957,00078 7T &
11,300,000/ 7T * A R AR RIBE R AEREE R D &
1,200,000/ 7T °

EVAEI -

REYE
AEBEZRENEIBZRUEEENEETEM
MMEERNE AFR AEBEBNRIE TR
REEREVMEREHAGNLS §EEAHES W
AR N FE R AN S B AL B LR BE S AR T I5
BE

Wincome Centre
KEGEH L
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WD

Hong Kong — Retail Premises

During the Year, the overall occupancy rate of the Group’s retail
properties was over 97.0%, attributable to the majority of its
premises being in prime locations. The Group owns many premium
investment properties, with a strong focus on street level retail
space at the key shopping districts in Hong Kong. Key investment
properties include the retail spaces at Nos. 8, 20, 22-24 and 50-
56 Russell Street, No. 76 Percival Street and Nos. 474-476,
479-484, 507, 523 Lockhart Road in Causeway Bay; Nos. 4-8
Canton Road, Nos. 81, 83 Nathan Road, Nos. 35-37 Haiphong
Road and Nos. 25-29 Hankow Road in Tsim Sha Tsui; The Pulse
in Repulse Bay; Fitfort Shopping Arcade in North Point; and Level
3, New Town Mansion Shopping Arcade in Tuen Mun. During the
Year, Nos. 22-24 Russell Street was leased to La Perla, an [talian
luxury lingerie brand, on a whole block basis, as La Perla’s largest
flagship store worldwide.

EB-ZSEYME

RAFE  ARAEE 2 MERT DL TEN TS
BT EEYEMEE TN REBEIT.0% - Ak
BEiFEAEREREYE FERUNRBETER
YilE 2 TEME o F ZIREME BB R INRE
EZH8 - 20 - 22-24 R 50-56 5% - W HF E #7655 [ B
5 3E474-476 - 479-484 - 507 - 52355 - RV HEF
1E4-8%; - TE(IE81 -83%F - L iE35-3755 N E LB
25-29%% 7 T ER 4 2K EThe Pulse * LA Kt £
RBRAEYRESE P E =1 N AFE
EEf2224EEYECDHATEAN R EM S
B2 La Perla - {EALa Perla® B A FEAE E o

Hong Kong — Office, Commercial & Residential Complexes EB-MA BEREFEAE

In addition to the above-mentioned retail spaces, the Group’s rental
income from complexes mainly includes Emperor Group Centre,
China Huarong Tower and Nos. 75-85 Lockhart Road in \Wan
Chai; a residential site at Nos. 17-19 Yik Yam Street in Happy Valley;
an industrial complex at Nos. 45-51 Kwok Shui Road in Kwai
Chung; and New Media Tower in Kwun Tong. The renovation and
upgrading of China Huarong Tower has been completed during
the Year, which has been hand-over to the single tenant, on a whole
block basis. The residential site at Nos. 17-19 Yik Yam Street is
planned to be developed into 21-storey residential complex with 68
units for leasing-out, with anticipated completion in 2018. During
the Year, the Group completed the acquisition of Wincome Centre
in Central. Wincome Centre is a 16-storey (including basement)
building comprising three storeys of retail spaces and 13 storeys of
office premises, with a total gross floor area of approximately 39,000
square feet. Situated at the junction of Des Voeux Road Central and
Douglas Street, it is the busiest transportation hub in Central, in close
proximity to Hong Kong MTR station.

B i T EHAIN ANEEZ KERSRAETER
BRIANE(FREE/A LD FEEHAE B EE
75-85%5 10 55 & 17195 7 (E 3088 308
BB ER45-51455 2 T 3 KIS U\ N By $T B IR £ (@
Do ARFE - HEEFAE 2 B AP TIEE
KRR BIERKIEERN TE—HF - ZBH#17-19
FE2EEWR HERRAIES  HEE6SEEN
HEEET EEBERR B R2018FE T TR
REE - ANE B TR U R IR D © KR
EE16E GBthE) AZETEMUKIBERF
TBAERK - 422 T E A& £939,000°F 15 IR » iz A = 838
P RESFHEERR  ZAEEEPRGEICHR
iR - WAL EE B -

/ A

New Town Mansion
Shopping Arcade
%
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In Macau, construction work at Nos. 71-75 Avenida do Infante
D. Henrique & Nos. 514-540 Avenida da Praia Grande was in
progress. Located at the city-centre shopping spot on the Peninsula,
a traditional gaming area in Macau, it will become a signature
complex in the town.

Mainland China

In the Mainland China, work was in progress during the Year on the
superstructure of the prime commercial site on Chang’an Avenue
East, Beijing. The site is set to be developed into a Grade-A office
tower, with a gross floor area of approximately 1,000,000 square
feet. The development will include a multi-storey retail podium,
entertainment hot spots and parking facilities, and will become
another landmark building along this prominent street of China’s
capital city in 2017.

Located in Yuyuan, Huangpu District, Shanghai, Emperor Star City
will be developed into a shopping arcade and hotel or serviced
apartment complex, at a prime site adjacent to the Shanghai M10
subway route. Foundation and basement excavation work for the
development has been completed. With an expected gross floor
area of approximately 1,300,000 square feet, the complex will
include a multi-storey shopping arcade as its major component.
The Group expects that upon completion, this project will generate
substantial and stable rental revenue.

Office tower on Chang’an Avenue East,
Beijing (image photo)
U RRERAHZWAAE (HRE)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WA

The Group owns a seven-storey (including basement) retail and
office complex at Nos. 181-183 Oxford Street, L. ondon. During
the Year, the Group further acquired an eight-storey (including
basement) retail and office complex at Nos. 25-27 Oxford Street,
London, with a floor area of approximately 12,000 square feet. Such
expansion can help to diversify the Group’s property investment
portfolio beyond Greater China. With premises at a prominent
London shopping hub that is among the popular tourist spots for
international visitors, the Group is optimistic regarding the potential
rental increment and capital appreciation in the long-term.

Property Development

There is good progress with the Group’s various development
projects. Upton, a 42-storey luxury residential tower with panoramic
views of Victoria Harbour, is on schedule for completion during the
Year. It has a gross floor area of approximately 185,000 square feet,
with 125 flats. There was an overwhelming market response, and
92.0% of the flats have been sold as at 31 March 2016. Majority of
its sales proceeds has been recognised during the Year.

During the Year, all of the remaining units of The Prince Place and
part of the remaining units of Harbour One and 18 Upper East were
sold. Such sales proceeds has been recognised during the Year.

Another site, at Tuen Mun Town Lot No. 436, Kwun Fat Street, Siu
Lam, Tuen Mun, with a gross floor area of approximately 39,000
square feet, will be developed into 14 low-rise detached or semi-
detached houses. During the Year, majority of its construction
work was completed. The sale of completed units will commence
subsequent to the Year. The related sales proceeds will be
recognised in the 2016/2017 financial year.

%
KEBEB RBEER181-183F ) — BB T7E
(EHE) 2 TERPAE - RAFE  AEBE—
W B R B ER25-275 0 — B ES8E (iEHE)
Z2EERMAE EEEEL12000F F R %E
ERBEFASBZEEMEALGBRAZ T T
MERPEUIINZ HE - WEMRBRBEERELED
il BEIRIREIRERS Y — AEBHER
ENHSHERENREALERLEEE-

MERRE

AEEREERBEBEERIT - HEHZFTES
B2 SENELBIERSA2E  CIRTEIRANFE
&K - B A48 T T F5 49185,000°F 75 IR - 3R A 1251
B AT HRERZ KR20166F3A31HE & H
92.0%H) BAL - KEMDIHEFMBREE R AFEE
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A residential site with a sea view, at Tuen Mun Town Lot No. 490,
Tai Lam, Tuen Mun, with a gross floor area of approximately 29,000
square feet, will be developed into a luxurious low-rise development
comprising a mixture of detached houses and apartments.
This project is expected to be completed in late-2018. This site,
together with the site in Siu Lam, will be well served by a superb
transportation network of Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western Corridor
as well as the future Tuen Mun-Chek Lap Kok Link and Hong
Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge. The sites are also close to Harrow
International School Hong Kong, the Hong Kong branch of the
prestigious, UK-based Harrow School.

Another luxury residential project (in collaboration with two partners)
at Rural Building Lot No. 1198, Shouson Hill, Hong Kong, with
a gross floor area of approximately 88,000 square feet, will be
developed into 18 low-density luxury houses, with comprehensive
auxiliary facilities. This development opportunity is very precious
as it is in a traditional luxury residential area. The entire project is
expected to be completed in 2019.

During the Year, the Group won the bid for development of a
residential site at New Kowloon Lot No. 6538, Fuk Wing Street,
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon, and undertook an urban redevelopment
project with a gross floor area of approximately 54,000 square
feet. This is planned to be redeveloped into a 26-storey residential
tower with more than 130 flats, with completion scheduled for 2018.
The Group also acquired a six-storey residential building with a
gross floor area of approximately 14,000 square feet at Nos. 8-10A
Mosque Street, Mid-Levels, Hong Kong. This is planned to be
redeveloped into a luxury residential tower with a gross floor area of
approximately 34,000 square feet in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERWED T

Hotel Operation and Related Services

Emperor Hotels Group has been established to cover several
hotels and serviced apartments in Hong Kong and Macau, and
is dedicated to the Group’s ongoing efforts and comprehensive
development of hotel operation. In Hong Kong, it currently covers
Emperor (Happy Valley) Hotel, Inn Hotel Hong Kong, MORI MORI
Serviced Apartments and a new hotel development project in
Wanchai. In Macawu, it covers Grand Emperor Hotel (“GEH”) and
Inn Hotel Macau, where income from hospitality and gaming has
been consolidated with the Group.

Located in Happy Valley, Emperor (Happy Valley) Hotel is the
Group’s flagship project, with the classic beauty of European
architecture and décor. It is a 26-storey hotel offering 150 guest
rooms, with a gross floor area of approximately 84,000 square
feet. Golden Valley, a restaurant offering Cantonese and Sichuan
cuisine in the hotel, has been awarded Michelin one-star for the sixth
consecutive year.

Located in Yau Ma Tei, Kowloon, Inn Hotel Hong Kong is a
30-storey hotel offering 200 guest rooms, with a gross floor area of
approximately 48,000 square feet. With easy access to established
shopping areas and Ladies’ Market in Mong Kok, as well as
Jade Market in Yau Ma Tei, it is conveniently located in a major
entertainment, shopping and dining district, ensuring guests will truly
experience Hong Kong as a vibrant and fascinating city.

Situated at the vibrant junction of Wanchai and Causeway Bay,
MORI MORI Serviced Apartments provides 18 stylish serviced
apartments for expats, MICE visitors, business travellers and
overseas professionals on short- and long-term leases. With state-
of-the art facilities and professional customer services, MORI MORI
Serviced Apartments redefines the contemporary way of living.

Meanwhile, superstructure work at No. 373 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, was almost completed during the Year. With a gross floor
area of approximately 115,000 square feet, this will be developed
into a 29-storey hotel offering 300 guest rooms as well as leisure,
dining and parking facilities. The hotel is expected to be completed
in 2016. It will be a signature hotel project under Emperor Hotels
Group, which can further enhance brand recognition in the
hospitality segment.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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GEH is another of the Group’s flagship projects, located on the
Peninsula, Macau. With a gross floor area of approximately 655,000
square feet, it is a 26-storey hotel with 307 exquisite guest rooms,
fine dining restaurants and bars, as well as gaming facilities. It has
won an array of prestigious industry awards.

Inn Hotel Macau is a 17-storey hotel with a gross floor area of
approximately 209,000 square feet, and 287 guest rooms. Through
extending coverage from the Peninsula to Taipa, the Group can fully
capture the potential of Macau’s hospitality market.

Outlook

The Group will continue to source quality and upscale investment
properties with good potential in Greater China and also in major
cities in the world, to enhance its investment property portfolio and
continue to provide a significant source of recurrent rental income
in the long-run. In order to leverage the potential decline of rental
income from retail spaces, the Group is adopting a pro-active
approach to optimise the balance between retail and non-retail
premises, given that the leasing demand of commercial complexes
in the key local commercial district areas remains strong. Leveraging
on its sustained high occupancies and contributions from new
investment properties, the Group’s rental income is expected to stay
steady.

The residential market is anticipated to remain positive, given the
solid demand from end-users, with ongoing growth in household
formation and rising personal incomes. The Group is building
a steady development projects pipeline for providing long-term
contributions through the sale of residential units. Upfon, the luxury
residential sites in Siu Lam and Shouson Hill, along with the
redevelopment project at Mosque Street once again demonstrate
the Group's strategic focus on premium residential projects. The
sales proceeds of the luxury low-rise houses in Siu Lam are
expected to be reflected in the earnings of the 2016/2017 financial
year. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to replenish its land
bank for strengthening earnings and shareholders’ value.

Supported by “One Belt, One Road” economic development
strategy initiated by Chinese Government, Hong Kong should
benefit from its geographical proximity, bringing ample opportunities
and building a solid foundation for long-term economic
development. Despite the global uncertainties, the Group will
continue to manage its core businesses with prudence to achieve
stable growth and sustain profitability. The Group is constantly
looking for business opportunities through property assembly,
acquisition of old buildings and tenders for government land. With its
management execution strength and market insight, the Group will
strive to further enhance its competitive position, and aim to become
a key property player in the Greater China region.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WD

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The total cost incurred for staff including Directors’ emoluments
amounted to HK$669.5 million during the Year (2015: HK$648.5
million). The number of staff was 1,780 as at 31 March 2016 (2015:
1,733). Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance
with individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience
and performance, as well as market pay levels. Staff benefits include
medical and life insurance, retirement benefits and other competitive
fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to staff, the Company has adopted
a share option scheme, particulars of which will be set out in
the section headed “Share Options” of the annual report of the
Company.

Assets Pledged

As at 31 March 2016, assets with carrying value of HK$36,388.5
million (31 March 2015: HK$39,355.4 million) were pledged as
security for banking facilities.

Other Information
Acquisition of subsidiaries

(i) On 26 February 2015, the Group entered into the legal-binding
memorandum of understanding with independent third parties
in relation to the purchase of Apex Delight Holdings Limited
(“Apex Delight”) that ultimately held Nos. 75-79 Lockhart
Road in Wan Chai (“Wanchai Property”) and the loan due
and payable by Apex Delight to the vendors at the total
consideration of HK$683 million for the Wanchai Property and
approximately HK$64 million for the receivable in relation to the
Wanchai Property. This transaction constituted a discloseable
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules and was
completed on 15 June 2015.

(i) On 2 September 2015, the Group entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with independent third parties in relation
to the purchase of Versa Ltd. that ultimately held Nos. 39 and
41 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong and the loan due and
payable by Versa Ltd. to the vendor at the total consideration
of approximately HK$1,300 million. This transaction constituted
a discloseable transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules and was completed on 2 March 2016.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiR HEgRERHRS

The report aims to provide the Group’s stakeholders with an
overview of the Group’s efforts regarding environmental, social and
governance (ESG) impacts arising from its daily operations.

Relationship with Major Stakeholders

The Group continues to engage with its employees, customers,
suppliers, institutional investors, shareholders, and other
stakeholders through different channels to develop mutually
beneficial relationship and promote sustainability.

Employees are remunerated equitably and competitively. Details of
continuing training and development opportunities provided to them
are set out in the “Development and training” section below.

The Group is committed to deliver excellent customer services
and high quality products to its customers. As a result of these
commitments, the Group’s property residential projects and hotel
operation have attained leading awards. For details, please refer to
the “Product responsibility and customer services” section below.

The Group uses suppliers that reflect its values and commitment
and maintains a solid relationship with them. For details, please refer
to the “Supply chain management” section below.

The Company maintains ongoing dialogues with its institutional
investors and shareholders. For details, please refer to the section
“Communication with Shareholders” on page 72 of the Corporate
Governance Report.

Environmental Protection
Environmental policies and performance

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance,
and aim to integrate corporate social responsibility (‘CSR”) into its
business strategy and management approach. During the Year,
the Group has continued to use its best endeavours to protect the
environment from its business activities and workplace. The Group
also educates its employees on their awareness in promoting a
“green” environment. The Group seeks to identify and manage
environment impacts attributable to its operational activities, in
order to minimise these impacts if possible. Various measures were
adopted to reduce energy and other resource use, minimise waste
and increase recycling and promote environmental protection in its
supply chain and marketplace. Details of such measures are set out
below:
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RiR HERERHRS

Use of resources

Global warming and climate change are among the major
environmental problems in every part of the world. Several measures
have been implemented in order to mitigate emissions produced by
the Group’s offices, such as minimising use of chiller units during
night-time, using LED lamps, switching off passenger lifts after office
hours, etc. Also, the Group prefers energy-saving appliances with
energy labels when purchasing essential equipment for projects,
and installs high efficiency LED lighting to reduce energy use and
carbon emissions.

For the hospitality business, the Group is devoted to providing
a green experience for customers, by promoting efficient use
of resources and adopting green technologies. The Group has
implemented the following environmental initiatives, and achieved
positive results, with obvious improvements in energy efficiency:

Reusing waste heat, generated from the heat recovery
air-conditioning system, for the boiler;

— Adopting cooling tower systems to maximise chiller energy
efficiency;

—  Minimising use of chiller units during night-time;
— Using lift energy-saving devices;

—  Switching off some of the passenger lifts during non-peak
hours;

— Installing LED lamps;
—  Ensuring proper steam leakage and insulation management;

—  Shutting-off lighting and air-conditioning when a guest room is
not in use;

— Installing thermostats with outdoor temperature sensors, to
maintain and control room temperature at a desired energy
efficient level; and

— Installing ventilation fan controls in kitchen areas.

To identify energy efficiency opportunities, the Group measures and
records the energy consumption intensity from time to time.

During the Year, GEH received the Macao Green Hotel Silver Award
2013-2016, organised by the Macau Environmental Protection
Bureau and the Macau Government Tourist Office. The recognition
demonstrates the Group’s commitment and continuous efforts in
environmental protection by adopting green initiatives in the hotel.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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The environment and natural resources

Creating a paperless working environment not only reduces
environmental damage but also fits commercial goals, as it can save
physical space, facilitate information sharing via IT networks, and
reduce complicated documentation procedures. In recent years, the
Group has also implemented paperless processing in its internal
communications, including for employees’ time sheets, payrolls and
finance. Moreover, duplex printing and copying has become the
norm within the Group, greatly reducing paper consumption and
saving costs. Data on printing is regularly collected and assessed,
to monitor the efficiency of the paperless environment.

The Group incorporated various environmental initiatives in its hotel
operation to minimise waste generation. The Group participates in
soap recycling programme organised by the University of Hong
Kong, enabling the distribution of recycled soap to underprivileged
communities, and collects reusable items and materials such as box
files, cartons, and linen. In addition, shower gel bottles are reused
after special hygiene treatment.

Externally, by the introduction of electronic means of corporate
communications (including annual reports and interim reports,
etc.) to registered shareholders (since 2009) and non-registered
shareholders (since 2015), the Company highly recommends
the shareholders to take advantage of accessing its corporate
communications through the websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company
instead of receiving hard copy documents. This paperless practice
helps protect the environment, as well as save costs on stationery,
printing and administrative charges etc. for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders. The adoption of such practice
largely reduced the printing of corporate communications. In
financial year 2015/2016, roughly 85% of individual shareholders
received financial reports of the Company via electronic means.

A cartoon character, “Sam”, has been created during the Year as
the ambassador for promoting staff's environmental awareness. Sam
has encouraged the staff to take action for creating a green working
environment by spreading a set of eco-friendly tips on the staff's
screensaver:

e Keeping air-conditioned room temperature at 25°C

e  Shutting off lighting when leaving a room for more than an hour

Switching off the computer after working hours

Performing duplex printing
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RiR HERERHRS

During the Year, the Group has partnered with the printing vendor,
to introduce “Follow You” print solution which helps the Group
become more energy efficient through smarter printing. The print
solution enables the Group to achieve environmental objectives by
reducing unclaimed printing, as printing is released only upon the
presentation of ID swipe-card.

Green construction

Apart from daily office and operational practices, the Group
endeavours to build up a green living environment by pursuing
green building certification for its ongoing projects, and extends its
commitment to environmental protection to other parts of the society.

Construction processes are strictly supervised according to the
Building Environmental Assessment Method (“BEAM”) or BEAM
Plus. During the Year, eight of the Group’s under construction
projects in Hong Kong followed the BEAM or BEAM Plus
requirements. In Mainland China, Emperor Group Centre in Beijing
was precertified at the gold level under the Leadership in Energy &
Environmental Design (LEED) for Core and Shell (CS) Development
program, demonstrating the Group’s commitment to delivering a
green and clean working environment in commercial projects, and
further strengthening the Group's leading position in environmentally
friendly property development.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Workplace Quality
Workforce
The Group believes that a motivated and balanced workforce is

crucial for building a sustainable business model and delivering
long-term returns.

As at 31 March 2016, the permanent employees of the Group
totalled 1,780, working in the headquarters in Hong Kong, regional
offices in Macau and Mainland China as well as the hotel and hotel
related operations in Hong Kong and Macau.

The demographics of the Group'’s workforce (as at 31 March 2016)
are summarised below:

By Region ith & % 5

Hong Kong &7 24%
Macau 29 69%

Mainland China 5 B4 Ay 7%
100%

The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of gender and age,
providing a variety of ideas and levels of competency that contribute
to the Group’s success. The Group is firmly committed to gender
equality, and therefore particularly encourages female participation
in the Board, and at managerial and operational levels. Women
represent approximately 52% of the total employees in the Group.

The management believes that people are important assets for the
Group, and remains committed to attracting and retaining talent
with diverse backgrounds for achieving sustainable growth. As at
31 March 2016, approximately 33% of the staff have worked for the
Group for five years or more. Staff turnover rate among managerial
positions is relatively low, reflecting a high level of employee
satisfaction and engagement with the Group.
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Health and safety

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and congenial
work environment for its staff. Adequate arrangements, training
courses and guidelines are implemented to ensure the working
environment is healthy and safe. An office memo on occupational
health and safety is issued to each staff member as they commence
employment. Workshops and seminars on different topics were
held during the Year, to present the latest information and raise
awareness of occupational health and safety issues for employees in
offices, hotels and project sites.

All construction work is carried out by construction workers via
outsourced contractors. All contractors engaged by the Group are
obliged to follow the Group’s environmental and safety policies. They
are given a safety briefing to ensure safety measures are strictly
followed. The rate of accidents and injuries during the Year, as
reported by the engaged contractors, remained at low level.

The Group proactively identifies potential occupational hazards to
reduce staff exposure to accidents. Employees assigned to work
on construction sites are required to observe additional safety
guidelines. In hotel operation, all restaurants staff are required to
wear antiskid shoes and anti-cutting gloves to prevent injuries. Every
case of injury (if any) is required to be reported to the Group Human
Resources Department and be individually assessed under the
internal guideline procedures.

The Group values the health and well-being of staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, staff are entitled to benefits
including medical and life insurance as well as other competitive
fringe benefits.
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Development and training

To promote long-term career development for staff, the Group
strongly supports staff participation in training programmes
organised by external professional bodies, and provides funds
and subsidies to staff based on their career development needs.
During the Year, staff enrolled in training programmes organised
by professional institutions such as the Hong Kong Institute of
Architects, the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, the Chartered
Institute of Building and the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
to enhance their architectural and surveying professions.

In hotel operation, various training courses are regularly conducted
to promote occupational safety, personal and food hygiene, fire
and emergency response, first aid and customer serving skills. The
Group also provides professional training programmes to its frontline
staff under the Macao Occupational Skills Recognition System
(“MORS") certification scheme, to enhance their occupational
proficiencies. As at 31 March 2016, around 148 frontline staff had
obtained MORS certifications in accordance with their professions:
assistant cook, Chinese dim sum and cuisine, bartender, bell
attendant, front desk agent, guest relations officer, room attendant,
security officer, waiter/waitress of western restaurant and Chinese
restaurant. During the Year, the Group dedicated around 20,035
hours to staff training, representing approximately 11 hours per
employee.

The Group believes that maintaining a work-life balance is essential
for sustainability and a sound body and mind for every employee.
To support employees in maintaining work-life balance, the Group
actively provides a variety of charitable and staff activities for
employees, such as sports day, voluntary visits, rural outings and
team-building activities. All these activities help to strengthen
relationships between employees, and promote a healthy and
harmonious working environment.

Operating Practices
Supply chain management

During the Year, the Group engaged more than 100 contractors
and suppliers for property projects in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China. The Group places high importance on quality
of its operations and products. To maintain a high standard as a
responsible developer, the Group sets rules and policies on the
selection of suppliers, contractors and tenderers, and it always
works closely with third-parties. This is to maintain high reputation
and customer satisfaction on the Group’s services and products.
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The Group believes that the key to sustainable business
development is to be detail-oriented and deliver customer care from
the heart. The Group aims to deliver the highest possible quality
for its customers, while expecting the same quality from selected
tenderers. Thus, the Group has a strict process for selecting
tenderers. During the tendering procedure, tenderers are requested
to submit their environmental plan, quality control plan and safety
plan as key factors for consideration. In the outsourcing process,
company history, industry reputation and past job references are
taken into consideration before choosing reliable suppliers. Site
visits ensure the selected contractors meet the Group's safety
standards and product quality. Visits to sites by inspection staff are
made regularly, and weekly progress reports are provided to the
quality control team, to ensure high standards are met. Professional
consultants, such as architects and engineers, are also hired to
inspect sites on request, and provide specific professional advice.

As for hotel operation, the Group works closely with a number
of suppliers in providing a range of hospitality goods, including
guestroom consumables, tableware, furniture and food and
beverage. The selection of suppliers is based on criteria such
as quality, price, delivery timeliness, supplier's capability and
experience, with preference be given to those who demonstrate their
environmental commitment.

Product responsibility and customer services

The Group'’s strong commitment to quality is underscored by its
professional team which comprises of a wide array of expertise
covering project management, leasing services, interior design,
etc. Upton, a signature luxury residential tower developed by the
Group, won two awards during the Year, reflecting its high quality
construction and superior renovation standard. The awards are
listed below,

-  “Quality Building — 2015 Building Inspectors Academy
Awards”, Hong Kong Professional Building Inspectors
Academy

—  “Elite Luxury Architectural Aesthetics Award — Elite Awards
2015", Ming Pao Weekly
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Customer relationships help the Group to better understand its
markets. To improve the Group’s overall operation performance via
monitoring customer satisfaction, questionnaires are used to collect
customer feedback. Occasional courtesy calls and visits are made
to agents, for comments and recommendations.

In hotel operation, the Group’s experienced and well-trained
customer servicing team delivers consistently high quality customer
services. During the Year, GEH was granted “TripAdvisor Certificate
of Excellence Award 2015” by TripAdvisor, the world’s largest travel
site, in recognition of its outstanding hospitality performance. GEH
had also included into TripAdvisor's “Hall of Fame 2011-2015", an
accolade for winners who earned Certificate of Excellence for five
consecutive years.

Protection of data

The Group places the utmost importance on protecting the privacy
of its customers, partners and staff in the collection, processing and
use of their personal data. The Group adheres to the applicable
data protection regulations and ensures appropriate technical
measures are in place to protect personal data against unauthorised
use or access. The Group also ensures that customers’ personal
data is securely kept and processed only for the purpose for which
it has been collected. Staff are provided with adequate training
in compliance with applicable laws on data privacy protection, to
strengthen their awareness of safeguarding personal data.

Protection of intellectual property

The Group builds up and protects its intellectual property rights
by prolonged use and registration of domain names and various
trademarks including “Emperor”. The Group has applied or
registered trademarks in various classes in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland China and other relevant jurisdictions. In addition,
trademarks and domain names of the Group are being constantly
monitored and renewed upon their expiration.
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Anti-corruption/Anti-money laundering

In order to build up an ethical corporate culture and practices, the
Group has established policies and procedures for anti-corruption
and anti-money laundering.

Employees were given induction briefing organised by the Group
or seminars regularly organised by the Independent Commission
Against Corruption of Hong Kong and the Commission Against
Corruption of Macau on anti-corruption while employees responsible
for carrying out transactions, initiating or establishing business
relationships have undergone anti-money laundering underling
training. The Group has also adopted a whistleblowing system
and procedures for all levels and operations under the Group to
raise concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Group such as misconduct and malpractice.
The above polices and procedures can be found in the employee
handbook and the Company’s intranet.

Additionally, a tendering procedure is adopted for all projects
to prevent corruption, and all tender documents are kept
confidentially, restricted to concerned parties. Tender evaluations are
systematically based on the Group’s internal policies.

During the Year, no legal case regarding corrupt practices was
brought against the Group or its employees. Also, no whistleblowing
concerning a criminal offence or misconduct was reported.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group's Corporate Governance Committee is delegated by
the Board to monitor and review its policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements such as “The
Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance”, “Employment
Ordinance”, “Legal Framework for the Operations of Casino Games
of Fortune” (Law No. 16/2001) and “Macau Labour, “Relation Law”
(Law No. 7/2008) which have significant impact on the Group.
Updates on the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to
the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units from
time to time.

The Group holds relevant required licences for provision of
product and services, such as estate agent licence (for property
agency services), Junket Promoter Licence issued by the Gaming
Inspection and Coordination Bureau, Administrative Licence
issued by Macau Government Tourist Office (for entertainment
and hospitality services in Macau), etc. and the management
must ensure that the conduct of business is in conformity with the
applicable laws and regulations.
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Community Involvement

The Group is committed to the improvement of community well-
being and social services. Aligning with the mission “From the
Community, To the Community”, the Group has formulated various
community activities spanning elderly welfare and hospice care
services, healthcare, education, sports, environmental conservation,
and helping underprivileged children. The Group’s management
team plays an important role in mobilising staff to join all these
activities, which are held in tandem with its commitment to
sustainable development. The Group believes that by encouraging
staff to participate in a wide range of charitable events, concern for
the community will be raised, inspiring more people to take part in
serving the community.

During the Year, the Group supported a wide range of community
sponsorship and donation programmes for the aging population.
In the Dragon Boat Festival in 2015, staff volunteers paid a visit
to Kwong On Home of the Aged in Aberdeen and donated
handmade Dragon Boat Festival rice dumplings, to show their love
and care to senior citizens. In September 2015, staff volunteers
returned and celebrated the Mid-Autumn Festival in the same
elderly home, providing mooncakes and playing games. During
annual participation in an outbound volunteering activity organised
by Emperor Foundation, staff joined a tour to Hebei Province of
Mainland China, in October 2015 for a four-day service in Albert
Yeung Sau Shing Charity Foundation (Xiongzhou) Elderly Care
Centre and Albert Yeung Sau Shing Charity Foundation Baoding
Child Care Centre. They later made their first move in 2016 in
January to Haven of Hope Woo Ping Care & Attention Home,
sharing their early Chinese New Year wishes to the elderly there,
with financial support to furnish the Rehabilitation Room with new
equipment.
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Other than services to the elderly, the Group has also supported
“Oxfam Rice Event”. Staff members helped run a sale counter in
the street to raise fund for Oxfam. A similar charity sale was held for
Hong Kong Seeing Eye Dogs Services. Volunteers from the Group
encouraged the passer-by to interact with a tamed guide dog, and
educated them on the importance of guide dog to visually-impaired
users. With the support of green charities, the Group organises
various activities to reduce its environmental damage to society,
and engages its staff in these initiatives. In June 2015, the Group
supported a used book recycling campaign organized by Hong
Kong Federation of Education Work. Used books were collected,
and funds raised from reselling them were donated to Sowers Action
for educational aid in rural areas of Mainland China.

The Group is devoted to promoting environmental awareness
through green education. In cooperation with Tai Po Environmental
Association, the Group arranged a guided tour in May 2015 for
staff members and their families to Hong Kong Global Geopark
of China. The staff also enjoyed pleasant outings to Hoi Ha Wan
Marine Reserve, where they could explore marine life in Hong Kong,
including corals and coral fishes. These delightful tours encouraged
participants to support environmental conservation and sustainable
development by bringing them closer to beautiful nature.

To promote a green culture, the Group organises various activities to
engage its staff. “Green Monday Fruit Day” has been launched, with
each staff member receiving a fresh fruit every Monday. This helped
staff to raise awareness about eco-friendly diets and maintaining
a healthy lifestyle. The Group has also launched “Second-hand
Exchange Platform” to encourage staff to post any unwanted but
reusable items onto the internal Second-hand Exchange Platform
for donation or for sale at a nominal charge. It aims to facilitate the
exchange of unwanted but still usable items to help reduce, reuse
and recycle waste in Hong Kong.

Tens of staff have taken part in Hike for Hospice, the annual
fundraising event of Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care, for 9
consecutive years, either as helpers or participants.

During the Year, the Group has been named as 10 Years Plus
Caring Company, recognising its ongoing commitment to fuffilling its
corporate social responsibilities.
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Non-Executive Director (Chairperson)

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 60, the Chairperson of the Company.
She joined the Company in June 1999. Ms. Luk is also the non-
executive director and chairperson of Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor E Hotel”), a subsidiary of the
Company. She worked in the banking industry for almost 10 years.
She graduated from The University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Commerce.

Executive Director and Managing Directors

WONG CHI FAI, aged 60, the Managing Director of the Company.
Mr. Wong joined the Company in 1991. He has been responsible for
the Group’s strategic planning, business growth and development
and overseeing the financial management of the Group. He is
also a Chairman of the Executive Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company as well as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of two
listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Emperor E Hotel and
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code: 887) (“Emperor
W&J"), both being associated companies of the Company. He
was previously a director of another Hong Kong listed company,
New Media Group Holdings Limited (“New Media”) (now known
as Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited) (Stock Code: 708)
and resigned on 27 March 2015. Having over 30 years of finance
and management experience, Mr. Wong has diversified experience
in different businesses ranging from manufacturing to property
investment and development, hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch
and jewellery, financial and securities services, artiste management,
entertainment production as well as media and publication. Mr.
Wong is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA, aged 53, the Managing Director
of the Company. Ms. Fan joined the Company in 1990. She has
been responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development as well as overseeing different functions
within the Group. Ms. Fan is also the Chairperson of the Corporate
Governance Committee, a member of the Executive Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company as well as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan is also a director of
Emperor E Hotel and Emperor W&J. She was previously a director of
New Media and resigned on 27 March 2015. Having over 27 years
of corporate management experience, she possesses diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from property investment
and development, hotel and hospitality, financial and securities
services, retailing of watch and jewellery, artiste management,
entertainment production as well as media and publication. She is a
lawyer by profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration.
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Executive Director

CHEUNG PING KEUNG, aged 60, joined the Company in 2005 and
was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in February
2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung is currently
responsible for overseeing the Group’s property investment,
development and management businesses. During the period from
1997 to 2005, Mr. Cheung was an executive director of Henderson
Investment Limited (Stock Code: 97). He has over 40 years of
experience in professional general practice surveying as well
as property development and marketing in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland China and Canada. He graduated from University of
London with a Bachelor's Degree (Hons) in Arts. He is a Chartered
Valuation Surveyor and a Fellow of both the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

CHENG KA YU, aged 43, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2012. She is the
Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well as a member of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
She has been admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong since 1998 and
is now a Partner of P.C. Woo & Co., Solicitors. Ms. Cheng graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's Degree in Laws
in 1995.

WONG TAK MING, GARY, aged 40, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2013. He is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of the
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of
the Company. He now runs a professional accountancy firm in Hong
Kong and has over 10 years of experience in the field of auditing
and accounting. Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive
director of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 79),
a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Wong is a certified public accountant (practising) and a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

CHAN HON PIU, aged 56, was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2015. He is the
Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee as well as a member of
the Audit Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan has been admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1991 and is now a partner of a law firm in Hong Kong. He was
an independent non-executive director of Emperor W&J and retired
on 25 May 2016. Mr. Chan graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences. He also obtained
the Certificate of Education and a Master’s Degree in Laws from The
University of Hong Kong.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 78. The dividend paid during the Year and proposed to be
paid for the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An interim dividend of HK$0.045 per share for the Year (2014/2015:
HK$0.05 per share), amounting to approximately HK$165.5 million
(2014/2015: HK$183.6 million), was paid to the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.055 per share (2015: HK$0.06 per share) for the Year,
amounting to approximately HK$202.3 million (2015: HK$220.3
million) to those shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members on 24 August 2016 (Wednesday) subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 16 August 2016 (Tuesday) (“2016 AGM”).

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set out
in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5 to 18.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from pages 67 to
69 and notes 5 and 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Company that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policy and
performance, key relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders as
well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
significant impact on the Company are set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report from pages 19 to 30.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 191 of the annual
report.

Investment Properties

During the Year, the Group acquired investment properties at a
cost of approximately HK$2,140,461,000 and incurred costs of
approximately HK$1,208,699,000 on investment properties under
development.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on an open market value basis. The decrease in fair value
amounting to approximately HK$3,167,583,000 has been debit to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of major properties of the Group as at 31 March 2016 is
set out on pages 192 to 200.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
at a cost of approximately HK$95,151,000 and incurred costs
of approximately HK$214,711,000 on hotel properties under
construction.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures

Details of the debentures of the Company in the form of unsecured
notes issued during the Year are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out on pages 81 and 82.
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the aggregate
of (a) the difference between the consolidated net assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued pursuant to the group reorganisation effective in
December 1991; (b) the surplus arising on reduction of share capital
effective in March 2003; and (c) the subsequent dividends paid and
bonus issues by way of capitalisation of contributed surplus.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make
a distribution out of contributed surplus if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that:

(i) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the company's assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 March 2016 represented the aggregate of contributed surplus
and accumulated profits amounting to HK$4,419,840,000 (2015:
HK$3,903,978,000).

Equity-Linked Agreements

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has not entered
into any equity-linked agreement other than the Share Option
Scheme adopted in 2013 which summary details are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Managing Director)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Cheng Ka Yu

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary

Mr. Chan Hon Piu (elected on 18 August 2015)
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (retired on 18 August 2015)
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior managers as at
the date of this report are set out from pages 31 to 32. Details of
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (“Ms. Semon Luk”), Mr. Wong Chi Fai
and Ms. Cheng Ka Yu shall retire by rotation at the 2016 AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the 2016
AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the Group'’s business were entered into or existed during the Year.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this Report, the Company has
in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are provided for
in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against the Directors and the directors of the Group respectively.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Securities

At 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors adopted by the

Company (“EIHL Securities Code”) were as follows:

(a) Long position interests in the Company

EERTBITBRABZESER N
293

M2016F3H31E  EERARBEZTHAER
ﬁ@?&ﬁi\ﬁﬂffﬁ BEE (FERBH KT
([BH G KA ) BXVER) 2 B - FERER MK &
Tﬂ%a’iﬂ%ﬁ RABNIRE [ 35 %&Hﬁfﬂﬂﬁw %352
1&ETF 2 B MATRier s s AR iﬂ?ﬁz}&/&
ﬁ?%%Z%%i@ﬂm%%x%mﬁ? SPRI(TRE
Wmm%‘fﬁ”l )//ﬁﬂﬁ$@ j& %Xﬁﬁz*&ﬁn&/)\
BT

(@) REQAFzHFRER

(i) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (the “Shares”)
KR EEZREE0OIETZEZER ([KF])

(i)

Name of Director
EENE

Ms. Semon Luk
FEZz £

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
SRRt

Debentures
ERF

Name of Director

ExpS

Ms. Semon Luk

it

Capacity/Nature
of interests

510 EEME

Interest of spouse

[RiEE e

Beneficial Owner

BEmEAA

Capacity/Nature of interests

510 EHHEE

Interest of spouse

[REL e
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Number of
issued Shares
held Approximate%

e %17 holding

BROEE MAOEREIL

2,747,610,489 74.7%
(Note 1)
(Brat1)

11,600,000 0.3%

Amount of

debentures held

FrisERESE

HK$450,000,000

(Note 2)

450,000,000/ 7T

(Krat2)
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and EENTETHABZESER N

N
NN =]

Short Positions in Securities — continued KB —HE
(a) Long position interests in the Company — continued (a) REDBZH AR &
Notes: Mt -

1. These Shares were held by Emperor International Group
Holdings Limited (“Emperor International Group Holdings”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY
Holdings”). AY Holdings is held by STC International Limited
("STC International”) in trust of The Albert Yeung Discretionary
Trust (“AY Trust”), a discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau
Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”). By virtue of being the spouse
of Dr. Albert Yeung as founder of the AY Trust, Ms. Semon Luk
had deemed interests in the same Shares.

2. These debentures were ultimately owned by the AY Trust as
founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. By virtue of being the spouse of
Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests in the
debentures.

1. ZERMBREEE (EBRIERERQF
(TREEBBEBRER]FE HAGIKRESE
ERBERAT([BRKEZEER]) 22EW
BRRIBZREREERMASTC International
Limited ([STC International | )# & - mSTC
International & # X E £ ([ E L) Kz
2 21{=5tThe Albert Yeung Discretionary
Trust (TAY Trust | ) 2 Z5EA « ERPEL LT RS
L (BAY TrustZ BISZA) 2 BB - B3R B
EEZERMDAERS-

2. REBEEEHBELATEISZZAY Trusti 45
B-ZERERTRGBLIZRE BB RAE
BRREERENRE

(b) Long position interests in ordinary shares of associated (b) R EZETER 2 F AR

corporations

Name of

associated Capacity/
Name of Director corporation Nature of interests
EEnE BB EEERE B, EEME
Ms. Semon Luk Emperor E Hotel Interest of spouse
B 22 + REREEHE (IR

Emperor W&J Interest of spouse

REFHRRE [y e

Note:

Emperor E Hotel and Emperor W&J are companies with their shares
listed on the Stock Exchange. These respective shares were ultimately
owned by the AY Trust whose founder is Dr. Albert Yeung. By virtue
of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed
interests in the same shares.

Number of

issued ordinary
share(s) held Approximate %
e #&17 holding
HER#EE #SERESL

824,622,845 63.3%

3,617,860,000 52.6%

B 5L :

RERENERKEFERKEBBROHRE LT £
M2 AR ZEBRMIIAHAY Trust & H A - 51§
T BAY TrustZ BIS7 A~ ERELZ T AIGE L 2
B FHEEAEEZERGONER -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the & EXFTETEESIN H2016F3A31H » #iEEEK
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests AR EZEZBITHA BRAR 7 sk E A 88

or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares or debentures B (F#& B E%5 NS IEHIEXVEL) Z (TR -
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the — fBREARXD S ERE B P A EMIERS AR

meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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Share Options

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 9 September
2003 (“Old Share Option Scheme”) has lapsed automatically in
September 2013 upon the expiry of the 10-year period. Following
the expiry of the Old Share Option Scheme, no further share options
can be granted thereunder, outstanding share options granted
under the Old Share Option Scheme shall continue to be valid and
exercisable until their expiry date.

In order to ensure the continuity of a share option scheme for the
Company to provide incentives or rewards to participants including
the Directors and eligible employees of the Group, the Shareholders
passed an ordinary resolution at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 8 August 2013 to approve the adoption of a
new share option scheme (“New Share Option Scheme”). No share
options were granted thereunder since its adoption.

The major terms of the Old Share Option Scheme and the New
Share Option Scheme are summarized and set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details of share options under the
Old Share Option Scheme and their movements during the Year are
set out below:

8 P

AR BIR2003F9 AR AR 2 B iR &l (18
BREETE)) ER2013FI A+ 5 2 BRRJE M
BERW - NERBHE BEmE - T SRIEZ
ArEE— PR MERE  ERIEERRE SRR
MR ARTTE 2 BB R R A] T &
EHERBAHMLE-

AERAARBERIETS ZFEE  LRBRREES
DAEEGEREEEN 2 HEERMIE 5
B IR F2013F8 A8 A E 1T v AN A RIFR B EF KX
SRBATEAZRE  MERN—IBERET S
(B ERT &) - B X IR AT BB AN DAZK - 8E
A AR R o

E RS B Mo BB AR AT 8 2 = E IR A K
FOINAR B MR MITE36 - ERAETEIR T 2
BREMERANFEREAZZEEFBHINO T

Number of share options
fBREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Exercised Lapsed asat
Exercise price 1 April 2015  during theYear  during the Year 31 March 2016
Name of grantee Date of grant  Exercise period per share  A2015F4 810 EREAEE ERREE H2016£3831A
RRARA RinAH TEH BRITRE i RATHE AT AL i RATHE
(DIMFY) (DIMPY) HKS
(R/R/%) (R/R/%F) B
Director
EF
Mr. Wong Chi Fai 11/8/2005 11/8/2005 - 10/8/2015 1.746 10,769,475 - (10,769,475) -
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa  11/8/2005 11/8/2005 - 10/8/2015 1.746 5,769,475 (5,769,475) - -
BeERt
16,538,950 (5,769.475)  (10,769,475) -

During the Year, no option was cancelled under the Old Share
Option Scheme.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or

Debentures

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at no time
during the Year was the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in

Securities

As at 31 March 2016, so far as is known to any Director or chief
executives of the Company, the persons or corporations (other
than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had, or
were deemed or taken to have an interest and short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO (“SFO Register”) or as
otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

RRGOZHR
Capacity/Nature
Name of interests
‘B A B HEHE
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation
15 X PRE AR MEEHDER T 2w
STC International Trustee of the AY Trust
AY Trustz ZFEA
Dr. Albert Yeung Founder of the AY Trust

HiET AY TrustZ 8132 A

These Shares were the same shares as those set out under Section
(a)(i) of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Securities” above.

Note:

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 March
2016, no short positions were recorded in the SFO Register of the
Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any other person
or corporation (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any interests
or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2016, the interests of Directors or their respective
associates in the businesses which are considered to compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

Name Name of Company
H®H AEER
Ms. Semon Luk and her associates  Certain subsidiaries of AY
BEfz+ RHEBEA Holdings as owned by
the AY Trust
AY TrustFT# B 2 15X X

EXRER B THEBAT

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa Bacchus International

EEER LT Limited and its
subsidiary
Bacchus International
Limited & ELfff & A 7]

Mr. Wong Chi Fai and
his associate
BB AEEREBE A

Wintex Services Limited
BERB AR A A

No non-competition undertaking was given by the above Directors.
The properties held by the Group are mainly for commercial purpose
while those held by the above Directors and/or their associate(s) are
mainly for residential purpose.
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Nature of interests

Director and shareholder

EENMER

Substantial shareholder

B ESCFTIRERE SN 20163 A31H  EEH AR
RIEBITHA BT AMBIMAEMATSEE (E
ERARBEZTHABRIN RIR 5 S BEEAR (D
PR SR AN E ERA RN IR R E S L
E140IE336IF AT E 2 B fsBMERRFZ

EfAIEEIOARE

BEENBMEER S
2016F3A31H  RIE EMMRAIETHRBEBES K
HBESEZHBEAREE A B A g A L
EEXEBEESMERKBF 2 ERTHEE 2 ES
[N

Competing business

EEMtE BEEL

Family interests Property development/

R IGHE a investment
MEERRE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MEREE

and Director

IZRREES

e T R - AR B 2
FE(REMR M OREER S REBRARA
S T
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing

Connected Transactions
During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with ~ AAREF[E

connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the

Company:

A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license

fee received

Name of counterparty

HrE®

Companies under Emperor W&J
HEEGREETAH

(1) Beauty Royal Limited

(“Beauty Royal”) (note 1)
BREARAG([BE]) (Hiz1)

(2)  Beauty Royal (note 1)
B (Hizt1)

(3)  Beauty Royal (note 1)
BR (f#1)

(4)  Beauty Royal (note 1)
B (f#1)

v
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Date of agreement
1% B 5

(DIMFY)
(B/R/%)

14/11/2014

28/03/2013

12/09/2014
31/08/2015
(supplemental)

(f3t)

14/11/2014

4

HEE

EERN

Leased premises

FriEmE

Shops G01-G05, G/F, Emperor Group
Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong (‘EGC")

BB EFHRHEBSTEEEER
([REEEHL]) T GO1-GOs5E

The whole of 25/F & Car Parking Space
No. 27, B2/F, EGC
REEERLBERENNE_EFR2T
SRR

Shops 1& 2, G/F, together with a right
to use (i) External Wall Unit 1 on 1/F;

(ii) External Wall Unit 2 on 6/F - 29/F
and Roof; (iii) a LED Display on the
External Wall on 5/F; (iv) 2 Signboards
on External Wall on 1/F - 3/F; (v) 2
Signboards on External Wall on 5/F;
and (vi) Signage Space A on 1/F,
Emperor Watch and Jewellery Centre,
8 Russell Street, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong

E&fﬂ%/ EZABRASERKET
DI 1 RESEESR - ER() VEIME
EER15E - ()6 E298 R R A IMEES
fir25% - ()52 ME R BT - (VIZ
SE2EIMERE SRR - (vSE2{AINE B S
BRVNEIMEREAL £

Signage space B on 1/F, Emperor
Watch and Jewellery Centre, 8 Russell
Street, Causeway Bay,

Hong Kong

BRMBER Mo AR EEHE T
DIEIMEEEAIB

(EIFR) BRRAR]

RS L a i)z Em

A, MEHE-PRKEHEAES REHE

Amount for
Terms the Year
1 rEEZLHE
(DIMFY) (HK$000)
(B/R/%) (FEr)
17/11/2014 - 16/11/2017 7,492
01/04/2013 - 31/03/2016 3,480
12/09/2014 - 11/09/2017 31210
(rental revised with effect
from 1 October 2015)
(&EFTHEE 820155 10A18
EJ)
30/11/2014 - 29/11/2017 2,250

(early terminated on
31 December 2015)
(R2015%12A31H
RERLIL)



Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing
Connected Transactions — continued

A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license
fee received — continued

Name of counterparty

HEER

(5)  Beauty Royal (note 7)
B (1)

(6)  Beauty Royal (note 7)
BE (Hit1)

(7)  Beauty Royal (note 1)
B8 (i)

(8)  Beauty Royal (note 1)
BR (fr#1)

Date of agreement

1% B A

(DIMYY)
(B/R/%)

22/10/2014

28/05/2014
31/08/2015

(supplemental)

(f3t)

29/05/2014

22/10/2014

31/08/2015
(supplemental)

(#7)

E%b‘/\x% tﬁFi AR e

—E

Leased premises

Friims

Shops 3 & 5, G/F, Emperor Watch and
Jewellery Centre, 8 Russell Street,
Causeway Bay Hong Kong
AERBEERS T REBRHES
NSRS it

G/F (Shop A including the yard), and

Office A (50 Russell Street) on 1/F,

Tak Fat Building, 50-52 Russell Street,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

BBELE R0 BEAE
T (AR ) RIEAE (B ZA50

%)

Flat B and the adjacent flat roofs on 4/F,

Tak Fat Building, 50-52 Russell Street,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

%éﬁ%m%iﬁm&fﬁﬁﬁrﬂﬁ
= (ETA)

The whole of Nos. 54-56 Russell
Street, together with the right to use
a LED display on external wall on 1/F
- 5/F and 9 advertising signboards,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (formerly
known as G/F, M/F and Flat A and
Flat B on 1/F including the flat roof
together with the right to use a LED
display on external wall from 1/F to 5/F
facing Russell Street and advertising
signboards facing Russell Street and
Tang Lung Street, Nos. 54-56 Russell
Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong)
ERREERA542565 2152
SMELEDR T ROMEE & 18 2 & R
(RIEEBMEERE ZH54Z565
T BRRIEBAZ (ETR)RBE (&
F&)ER1-EEAEEE 2 IMELED
BTRIAMERGRE RGBSR
ZfEFAE)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

BR 5
/‘/\

Terms

Gizk:d

(DIMYY)
(R/R/%)

30/11/2014 - 29/11/2017
(early terminated on

31 October 2015)
(R2015%10A31R
RELIL)

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2017
(rental revised with effect from
1 October 2015)
(B3I £ 82015610718
E)

01/06/2014 - 31/05/2016

23/10/2014 - 22/10/2017
(rental revised with effect

from 1 October 2015)
(53T & 82015510718
£

A MEHE-URKEHAES REHE

Amount for
the Year
rEEZLHE
(HK$000)
(F&1)

15,760

18,972

115

51,638

2015/2016 F 1R
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, EERR G THRAED 2 ER
Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing RERERS &

Connected Transactions — continued
A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license A ERE-WERKEHIES BREE

fee received — continued 1
Amount for
Name of counterparty Date of agreement  Leased premises Terms the Year
HHER e LR ik /ES HE AEEZEH
(DIMFY) (DIMFY) (HK$000)
(B/R/%) (B/R/%) (FET)
(9)  Beauty Royal (note 1) 22/10/2014 GJF (Shop B including the yard), 23/10/2014 - 22/10/2017 19,217
BE(H#1) Office B and the balcony adjacent (rental revised with effect
31/08/2015 thereto on 1/F and Office B and the from 1 Qctober 2015)
(supplemental) balcony adjacent thereto on 2/F Tak (KEFTHE 2 BE2015F10A 18
(#7) Fat Building, 50-52 Russell Street, £
Causeway Bay Hong Kong
%rﬁfﬂ%/ ERIH50-25 B AE M
T (BfEkM) R11EBE (BB A)
R2EBE (EERAR)
(10) Beauty Royal (note 1) 23/12/2014 G/F and 1/F, Tenements A & B on 3/ 04/01/2015 - 03/01/2018 51,901
BH (1) F Portion A of Tenement A on 4/F (rental revised with effect
31/08/2015 and roof, 4-8 Canton Road, Kowloon, from 1 October 2015)
(supplemental) Hong Kong together with aright touse (48T 52015410516
(%) four outdoor advertising signs on the £
external walls to the building
BRNEEERELSTI T R1E
SEARBEN RAEAB N 2 AR RK
AERETIMEMEPINEE R 2B
1
(11a) Beauty Royal (note 1) 30/01/2015 Projected signage of 4-8 Canton Road,  February, August, October and 1,940
BE(H#1) Kowloon, Hong Kong December 2015
EENEERE 485ﬁ EEER  2015%28 84 10A Kk12A
(11b) Beauty Royal (note 1) 30/12/2015 Projected signage of 4-8 Canton Road,  January and February 2016 730
BE(Hi1) Kowloon, Hong Kong 201618 28
EANEEE 84 8;}121%@%%)#2
(12) Beauty Royal (note 1) 28/02/2014 Shops A, D2 & E2 on G/F and the 01/04/2014 - 31/03/2017 15,000
BB (Hit1) projected signage on external wall,
Harilela Mansion, 81 Nathan Road,
Hong Kong
ERBREBIFRENAEM TA D2k
B2 RIMERIEEE
(13)  EWJ Watch and Jewellery (Macau)  30/06/2014 EM Macau, Avenida Do Infante D., 01/07/2014 - 30/06/2017 5,667
Limited ("EWJ Macau”) (note 1) Henrique N°S 67-69, Res-Do-Chao B
REEGKE (RF) BB AR & EM Macau, Rua Do Dr, Pedro Jose
(TEWSEM]) (HizE1) Lobo N'5, Res-Do-Chao C2, Macau

AP 2 T A HR67 2693 i TBEE &
ERETEM TR EARCE

v

44  Emperor International Holdings Limited ~HE%£E (EE) BRAT



Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing
Connected Transactions — continued

EENRG LHREH RN
FERERS &

A MEHE-URKEHAES REHE

A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license

fee received — continued

Name of counterparty Date of agreement
HhEMw e L=
(DIMFY)
(B/R/%)

(14)  EWJ Macau (nofe 1) 30/06/2014
EWJEPI (#/321)

(15)  EWJ Macau (note 1) 31/03/2015
EWJIRPFS (A7i1)

(16) EWJ Macau (note 1) 30/06/2014

EWJRP (#7zE1)

—E

Leased premises Terms
ik /S ikl
(DIMPY)
(B/R/%)

EM Macau, Avenida Do Infante D.,
Henrique N° 65-A, 1" Andar B, Macau
BFIRET AEHKES-AT1EBE

Shop Nos. 1-4, G/F, EM Macau,
Travessa Central Da Praia Grande
NoS 11-41, Hotel Animacao Imperial
(also known as Shop Nos. 1-4on
G/F., Grand Emperor Hotel, 251-292D
Avenida Comercial De Macau, Macau)
PR R 1141 S SR AT b
T1-45748 (RBVRM A E A BRR51-
29255 DR 2IRLA E i T2 4540)

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2017

01/04/2015 - 31/03/2018

Shop No. 5, G/F,, EM Macau, Travessa
Central Da Praia Grande Nos. 11-41,
Hotel Animacao Imperial (also known
as Shop No. 5 on G/F,, Grand Emperor
Hotel, 251-292D Avenida Commercial
De Macau, Macau)

PSR A 141 E S RET
T554 ( TREDEPIE ¥ A 555251202
SiDE EIREE i T55%4)

01/07/2014 - 30/06/2017

Companies under Emperor Capital Group Limited (“Emperor Capital Group”)

HERFEEBRAR ([RERSKE])ET AR
(17)  Profit Broad Development Limited ~ 13/09/2013*
(“Profit Broad”) (note 2)
RHBEARRA([%%F))
(Hit2)

(18)  Profit Broad (note 2)
27 (fii2)

23/12/2014*

(19)  Profit Broad (note 2)
27 (fii2)

13/09/2013*

Unit 603, 6/F, EGC
2 EEH62603E

15/09/2013 - 31/03/2016

Unit 604, 6/F, EGC
RERETLOE604E

01/01/2015 - 31/03/2016

Unit 606, 6/F, EGC
W2 EEH6EC06E

15/09/2013 - 31/03/2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

Amount for
the Year
rEEZLHE
(HK$000)
(F&1)

102

3,899

2,246

285

728

505

v
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, EENRG THREH IR
Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing BERERS &

Connected Transactions — continued

A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license A ERE-WERKEHIES BREE

fee received — continued 1
Amount for
Name of counterparty Date of agreement  Leased premises Terms the Year
HHER e LR ik /ES HE AEEZEH
(DIMFY) (DIMFY) (HK$000)
(B/R/%) (B/R/%) (FET)
(20)  Profit Broad (note 2) 13/09/2013 Unit 2006, 20/F, EGC 15/09/2013 - 31/03/2016 1
245 (hi2) HEEEHH20IE2006E (Early terminated on 3 April
2015)
(201564 43R 1R FAIE)
(21)  Profit Broad (nofe 2) 31/03/2014 24[F EGC 01/04/2014 - 31/03/2017 3593
2% (H52) REKEDL24E
Other companies under the AY Trust
AY Trusti T Z 42 &
(22)  Emperor Entertainment 28/03/2013* 27/F, EGC 01/04/2013 - 31/03/2016 3,624
(Hong Kong) Limited (note 3) HEEERNTE
RERE (FR)BRAR (H:23)
(23)  Emperor Motion Picture 31/03/2014 Portion of 12/F, The Ulferts Centre, 01/04/2014 - 31/03/2017 252
(Hong Kong) Limited (“EMP(HK)") No. 4 Kin Fat Lane, Tuen Mun,
(note 3) New Territories, Hong Kong
”Ea%(%ﬁ&)ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ %%%ﬁ%%?ﬂk?*iélﬁfwt
([REEFER]) (H173) BRRL12EE D
(24) EMP(H ) (note 3) 29/11/2013 Unit 2001, 20/F, EGC 01/12/2013 - 30/06/2016 100
SEFEB (W3 EEEEHH20E2001E (early terminated on 31 May
2015)
(201565831 B IR F&IE)
(25)  EMP(HK) (note 3) - 28/05/2015 20[F EGC 01/06/2015 - 31/05/2018 3,077
REBYEB (Wit3) REKEDL0E
(26) EMP(HK) (note 3) 31/03/2015 Units 901-902, 9/F, EGC 01/04/2015 - 30/09/2015 260
REBFEE (M3 REEEFIE01-902F (early terminated on 30 June
2015)
(201556 A30B R R4 IL)
(27)  EMP(HK) (note 3) 31/03/2015 Unit 1505, 15/F, EGC 01/04/2015 - 30/09/2015 %
REBFEE (M3 HEEERNO5E1506F (early terminated on 31 July
2015)
(201567 A31B IR FIL)
(28)  Emperor Motion Picture 02/12/2015 Partial floor of each of B1, B2M, 10 years commencing from 1 N/A
Enterpnse Limited (note 3) B2, Beijing Emperor Group Centre, July 2016 (or such other date as TER
HEBBYLEBRDLA (Hi23) Jianguomen Outer Street, Chaoyang postponed by Emperor Beijing

District, Beijing, PRC Property Development Limited

PRI FEGRERPIIATIEREE  (Landlord))

SETOFEBI B2M B2EREZ#  B2016F7A1H (HEE (&
R EHERERRAR ($X)
EEZEMBH)RI10F

v
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, EENRG THREH IR R
Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing REMRERS —#&

Connected Transactions — continued

A. Leasing of properties — Operating lease rental/license A ERE-WERKEHIES BREE

fee received - continued —4&
Amount for
Name of counterparty Date of agreement  Leased premises Terms the Year
HHER HEAH ik /S HE AEECEH
(DIMFY) (DY) (HK$000)
(B/R/%) (B/R/%) (F#7r)
(29)  Emperor Agency Limited 31/03/2015* Unit 601, 6/F, EGC 01/04/2015 - 31/03/2017 795
(“Emperor Agency”) (note 3) HE2EERL6IE601E
EeRBERAA ((K2ftE))
(Hiit3)
(30)  Emperor Agency (note 3) 31/03/2014 Unit 801, 8/F, EGC 01/04/2014 - 31/03/2016 863
HEERE (H173) HEEER)GE01E
(31)  Emperor Agency (note 3) 31/03/2015 Unit 1701-1707, 17/F, EGC 01/04/2015 - 31/03/2017 3,636
RERE (Hi23) HESERMTEIT011707E
(32) Emperor Agency (note 3) 31/03/2014* 23[F and Unit A, 28/F, EGC 01/04/2014 - 31/03/2016 5,520
HEERE (H173) REEER23E RBEAR
(33)  Wealthy House Limited 31/03/2015 Shops 7-11 on GJF, 1/F & 2/F (including  01/04/2015 - 31/03/2018 4,457
(“Wealthy House”) (note 3) the entrance hall on G/F to 1/F and 2JF),
BEEERLA([BE]) (H:23) Wei King Building, 275 Chatham Road
North, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong )
BB NBRLERREILT5RH =8,
Tr-1RE 12 ERELE (B
WIEIEREZAKEAD)
(34)  Wealthy House (note 3) 31/03/2015 MJF, 1-9/F and parking spaces 01/04/2015 - 31/03/2018 9,685
ER (fii3) (excluding Nos. 9 and 10) on G/F, The
Ulferts Centre, 4 Kin Fat Lane, Tuen
Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong
BBHMAEFIRE ZARB AT O
HE2E. 1—9@%@&#@?‘)5@1 (F
BRI R 105 R )
(35) Ulferts of Sweden (Far East) 31/03/2014* Units 1206-1207, 12/F, EGC 01/04/2014 - 31/03/2016 1,127

Limited (note 3) HEEEHN21E1206-1207F
WHEL GBR)BRAR (H:23)

*  These tenancy agreements were expired on 31 March 2016 and new  * ZEMRERHENR2016F3A31HEH - MERREA
tenancy agreements were entered into on the same day to renew such RN ERENEEZEHD -
tenancies.

v
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEEERE
Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing
Connected Transactions — continued

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Financial Services under the Financial Services
Agreement

The Company made an announcement on 4 July 2014 in
relation to the Financial Services Agreement entered into
between Emperor Capital Group (note 4) and AY Holdings
(note 5) on 28 September 2012, pursuant to which Emperor
Capital Group has provided to other listed members under
AY Holdings, including the Company, (i) financial services
including brokerage services for securities, futures and options
trading and acting as placing agent, underwriter or sub-
underwriter; (i) margin loans; (i) IPO loans; (iv) term loans;
and (v) financial advisory services, from time to time from 1
October 2012 to 30 September 2015 in order for the listed
group companies under AY Holdings to enjoy the flexibility
of obtaining financial services from Emperor Capital Group
at a cost efficient and timely manner so as to cope with the
corporate exercise and/or the investment opportunities of
individual listed companies.

In order to continue the above similar financial services, a new
Financial Services Agreement dated 10 September 2015 was
entered into between Emperor Capital Group and AY Holdings
for renewing the services for 3 years up to 30 September 2018.

During the Year, a total sum of HK$1,020,000 being financial
services fee was paid by the Group to Emperor Capital Group.

Master Purchase Agreement

On 4 July 2014, the Company entered into the Master Purchase
Agreement with AY Holdings (note 5) pursuant to which AY
Holdings agreed to procure its subsidiaries and associates to
provide products and services to the Group in relation to the
Group's future development projects, which includes hotels,
residential and commercial developments. This agreement
shall expire on 31 March 2017. During the Year, the Group
has purchased products and services in a total sum of
HK$7,353,000 from the group members of AY Holdings.

-
Fr

ENRG LHAH 2 EE N

n

B. RRBHHET 2 BRI

REEH (BFR) BRLAF

RARIR2014F7 BABER A RABRER
EREFEE (Kit4) BIGRKERELER (K7
5)2012F9H28H AT . 2 £ BRI sz » 1R
BzEwE REZSFEBECER201261071
H Z£201599 A30H HAI N 15 ST Ak B 242
KIETHEM EmKE AR (BREAQR)IRM
@RS (BiEESF HERPEEBE 2K
WHRH) WRERERE  BHEEXS B H
& ()VFFRER: (VEXAREEER: (VE
BB RS RUE AR BB KEE
PR HE R 2 E BN RIREE BIEHIRFTA
BRARE Z T3 B ES R 2RSS ERE
SRR Bl & AR LT EERA R 2 EED)
R/ SR ERBEE-

BILE RS B RS  REFEEEEE
Rk EE ZE SRR 20159 A 10H F] LTI & R/t
ARF e - LA sZ IR BB HA3F 222018F9 A 30
E o

RAEE REBREESFFEBINAH
1,020,000 L2 & RRISE -

201457 48 » AN A B BLi5 52 Ak = 1 AR
(B736) 3] RBE W Bl X KEZE
ZEREE  RAEERRZERIER (2158
EEEMABEEEREEBR)REELWNBAR R
B BTA) AN SR B R AR 22 o SRS © b Wi i
R2017F3AIHE M - RAFE  AEE S
MGXHEXER 2 EBKE ARREA &
7,353,00078 7T 2 £ i SR AR 7S ©



Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing
Connected Transactions — continued

Notes:

(1

(2)

(5)

These companies were indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Emperor W&J which was indirectly controlled by the AY Trust.

This company was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor Capital
Group which was indirectly controlled by the AY Trust.

These companies were indirectly wholly-owned by the AY Trust.
Emperor Capital Group was indirectly controlled by the AY Trust.

AY Holdings was indirectly wholly-owned by the AY Trust.

Ms. Semon Luk, a Director of the Company, has deemed interests in
the above transactions, by virtue of being an associate of the eligible
beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

D.

Accommodation Contract with Group Consultant

As announced on 31 March 2014, Emperor Investment
(Management) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Accommodation Contract on 31
March 2014 with Dr. Albert Yeung, the deemed substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which the Group
would continue to provide him and his associates (including
Ms. Semon Luk, Chairperson of the Company, being the
spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung who has not been receiving any
emolument from the Group for his consultancy services
rendered since 1 April 2002), a quarter located at No.2
Belleview Drive, Hong Kong for accommodation (including
related expenses in relation to the usage of the property) as
his emolument for his consultancy services to the Group for a
period from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017. The market rental
value as calculated by an independent firm of professional
valuers and related expense of the quarter up to 31 March
2016 was approximately HK$9,930,000.

The consultancy services provided by Dr. Albert Yeung
benefit the Group in overall strategic planning and business
development of the Company as well as in business liaisons.
Being one of the senior executives of the Group, Dr. Albert
Yeung is also entitled to enjoy the fringe benefits offered by
the Group, including the non-exclusive use of motor vehicles,
yachts, club debentures and membership owned by the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

2

3)
4
5)

QTJFY.:. K2 M

X
?TJ'HE Fgg/\% /A/\

RAESERURBECHE2EWNBAR
“%ﬁi SRIRE MAY Trust® 15§ -

RARARLBLEEZ2EMBER
FEBRAY Trustf 124 -

7 mEes

ZERNAJIHAY TrustfEZ 2 EHA -
HEEBAEE T HAY TrustZ 4 -

52 REZERTIBAY TrustE2 8% A -

RAREEELZTEEAAY Trustd B S AZ
B8 AMBE AR Ll ZR B
D. BEBERBEBTIZEREN

WR2014F3A31BE A A a2 —fHE
& P/E 2 7] Emperor Investment (Management)
I_imitedE’\2014¢3ﬂ 31HEBE T (HREAR

RAlZ EBRE)FIMEMEL FIL - A&
B 1% 4 48 ) B 2002F4 A1 B 2 B AR £ B {H
BARI ARG B I R UREVE (M H B 2 5Bt R E
B8 A (BREAARZEFERGH L ZEEBE
Z4) RN E BB ESR 2T (BEE
BIERZYMEZRBER) (ERENR20145F
4A18 2201743831 B B A A= Bt R
AR 75 2 B - B 2201693 A31H » i —
B BEEMEMTAEZMEHAERZES
2 188 X 49/59,930,0007%8 7T ©

HE TR 2 R R E N A S E 2 B8
REGRE) ARR]ZRBERRMEHHERR
Bha e ERAKRBZSMITRAR  HBELIN
BREFEANEERMZEIMERN - BIEIFER
ERREERE 2 E BR gMEFLE
FEo
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing e

Connected Transactions — continued

E. Service agreement in relation to the operation of the E.

Grand Emperor Hotel
Date of agreement
19 February 2010

Name of parties

(1) Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou"), a company incorporated in
Macau, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor E
Hotel which is an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company; and

(2) Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A., (“SIM”), a company
incorporated in Macau, which is principally engaged
in gaming business in Macau and is one of the six
concessionaires/subconcessionaries licensed to carry
on casino operations in Macau. SUM has 19.99% equity
interest in Luck United Holdings Limited, an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor E Hotel, and is a
connected person within the meaning of the Listing Rules
by virtue of being a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company.

Nature of transaction

The provision of services comprising management services
and promotion services by Tin Hou to SUM in relation to
the operation of the Grand Emperor Hotel whereas Tin
Hou together with the nominated junket promoter (a fellow
subsidiary of Tin Hou and wholly-owned by Emperor E Hotel)
shall be entitled to a share of the gross win and gross loss in
respect of the monthly operating performance of the gaming
area of the GEH and bear all necessary operational expenses
in relation to the operation of the gaming area.

Terms

From 1 October 2009 to termination upon occurrence of certain
events, including the expiration of SUM’s gambling license
under the Gaming Concession Contract on 31 March 2020 or
any earlier termination thereof or winding up or cessation of
business of either party.

Amount for the year ended 31 March 2016

During the Year, the Group’s net receipt under the agreement
amount to HK$1,280,458,000.

v
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FHRERERYBE 2 REHE
T4 B R
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AR ERE
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ARAZZ A ﬂ RARE Z EEIEREM
BRAKREREEE 2 HE2EMBR
Al &

(2) RFIEEROHERAE (DRFIER])
—ERRPIEMA L2 AR - EERRP
WEBEER AR RRPILCER
PSR R 2SR E NS, R
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ZRBEBNBEAT
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing
Connected Transactions — continued

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save as “Financial services expenses to related companies”
and “Rental income from related companies” in the amount of
HK$270,223,000 for the Year as shown in note 44(a) and the
transactions as shown in note 44(c) and (d) to the consolidated
financial statements which constituted connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other
transactions as shown in note 44 (save as “Interest income from a
shareholder of a joint venture” which is not a connected transaction)
are connected transactions exempted from announcement,
reporting, annual review and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above connected
transactions.

Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” (the “Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group (“Disclosed CCTs") on pages 42 to 50 of
this annual report in accordance with Main Board rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’'s Letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts and Continuing
Connected Transactions — continued
Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) have reviewed the
Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and have confirmed that
these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of its business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(3) according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract which is significant to which the Company, or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.

Confirmation of Independence of Independent

Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Executive Directors were decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link
to business strategy and a close alignment with the shareholders’
interest and current best practice), the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. The
INEDs are paid fees in line with market practice. No individual
should determine his or her own remuneration.
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Emolument Policy — continued

Employees remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to the profit of the Group and individual performance,
ad hoc rewards, share options and other competitive fringe benefits
such as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of
the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are
set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
approximately HK$14,039,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to the
Group’ s five largest customers represented 34% of the Group’s total
revenue. The largest customer accounted for 26% to the Group’s
total revenue.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented 34% of the Group’s total purchases and services
received. The largest supplier accounted for 7% to the Group’s total
purchases and services received.
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Major Customers and Suppliers — continued

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any Shareholders
which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owning more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in the
share capital of any of the above major customers or suppliers of the
Group.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 55 to 75.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the 2016 AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Luk Siu Man, Semon
Chairperson

Hong Kong
22 June 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for the Company within a sensible framework. The
Company has fully complied with all the provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the Year.

The Board
Board Composition

As at 31 March 2016, the Board comprised seven Directors, with
one Non-executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the
Board, three Executive Directors and three INEDs. The Board
considers that this composition ensures a strong independent
element with a balance of power and influence between individuals
on the Board. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages
31 to 32 of this annual report under the“Biographies of Directors and
Senior Managers” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executives

Ms. Semon Luk has been appointed as the Chairperson since
1999 and provides leadership for the Board. With the support of
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
she ensures that all directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information and are properly briefed on issues arising at board
meeting. She is responsible for ensuring that the Board works
effectively and performs its responsibilities. She holds meetings with
the INEDs at least once a year.

Both Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa have
been appointed as Managing Directors of the Company, and are
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth and
development.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with valuable experience and
expertise in legal, accounting or auditing in business areas who
contribute impartial view and make independent judgment on
issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Each of them has
been appointed for an initial term of one year and shall continue
thereafter on a yearly basis subject to early termination with written
notice being served by either party. The terms of the INEDs are also
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election provision under the
Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Company has received a confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. The Board considers each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The INEDs have been expressly identified as such
in all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the
names of Directors.
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The Board — continued
Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and promotion
of the success of the Group by directing and supervising its
affairs in the best interests of the Company and by formulating
strategic directions and monitoring the financial and management
performance of the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the Board)
and has delegated powers and authorities to carry out the day-to-
day management and operation of the Group, formulate business
policies and make decision on key business issues. The Executive
Committee shall have all power and authorities of the Board except
the following matters as set out in a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved by the Board:

e  Publication of final and interim results of the Company
e Dividend distribution or other distribution

e Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and
remuneration policy

e Major changes to group structure or Board composition
requiring notification by announcements

e Publication of the announcements for notifiable transactions
and non-exempted connected transactions/continuing

connected transactions

e Non-exempted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions

e  Notifiable transaction requiring Shareholders’ approval

e (Capital restructuring and issue of new securities of the
Company

e  Financial assistance to Directors
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The Board — continued
Induction, Support and Professional Development of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding
the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group and such induction materials
will also be provided to newly appointed Directors shortly upon
their appointment as Directors. All Directors have been updated
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to
assist them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, each Director has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/workshops/reading materials
on the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company:

Name of Directors EEHA
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon &2+
Mr. Wong Chi Fai Ey bt
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa BHEZ T
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung SRIRSR I 4
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu BEmt
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary =ERASLE
Mr. Chan Hon Piu BRIZZ A
Notes: fffzt : (1) corporate governance TEER

(2) regulatory RE

(3) finance B

(4) industry-specific TEAR

Relationship between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other materials/relevant relations)
among each other.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of legal action against the Directors.
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The Board — continued E N
Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment EECHERRRBEERA
The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is set AFEEEEHFSZ 2 BERHINNOT
out below:
No. of meetings attended/held
HEEE BTEERH
Corporate
Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance  Executive General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee  Committee =~ Committee Meeting
LEER
EEpE EZe ENZEE FMzZEE REZEE £EE® YUTZEE RRAE®
Non-executive Director
FHTES
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon 14114 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1
N =Y. TER NERA TER TER TNEA
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Note 1) 14/14 N/A 22 N/A N/A 16/18 il
BTEBEAE (1) N i i
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 2) 14/14 N/A N/A il il 18/18 il
SRR L (H72) i i
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung 1414 N/A N/A N/A N/A 12/18 11
KWEEE TER TEA TER TEA
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu (Note 3) 14114 3/3 22 1 N/A N/A 1
Bsiat (f#3) i NEH
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (Note 4) 1414 33 N/A il i N/A il
HBERLAE (Hit4) TER i
Mr. Chan Hon Piu (note 5) 9/9 22 il N/A N/A N/A N/A
BOEIE R & (H55) TER TEA il TER
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Note 6) 5/5 11 11 N/A 111 N/A 11
BERLE (Hit6) i A
Total number of meetings held 14 3 2 1 1 18 1
BIBEBY
Notes: Biat -
1. Chairman of Executive Committee 1. TZREgXRE
2. Chairperson of Corporate Governance Committee 2. EBRZEEIR
3. Chairperson of Nomination Committee 3. REZEGXRE
4. Chairman of Audit Committee 4., FBEREEGXRE
5. Mr. Chan Hon Piu was elected as Director in the annual general 5. [RZIZHLAR2015F8F18HBITHRERF S
meeting held on 18 August 2015 (“2015 AGM”) and was also ([2015FRRBAFAE]) LEERLSEE  WHFA
appointed as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well as —HEZAAFNEZEESETREURBEREZEG D
a member of Audit Committee and Corporate Governance Committee HXERTBENE -

on the same date.

6. Mr. Liu Hing Hung retired as Director on 18 August 2015 and 6. EEELLEN2015F8F18HERTE % =
automatically ceased to act as the Chairman of the Remuneration fﬂﬂ:}f‘f_jc TNEE S X RUNBEZLTE S EE
Committee as well as a member of Audit Committee and Corporate REBEBKE 2B
Governance Committee.
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The Board — continued
Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment — continued

Upon reviewing (1) the annual confirmation on time commitment
given by each Director; (2) the directorships and major
commitments of each Director; and (3) the attendance rate of each
Director on full Board and the respective Board committee meetings,
the Board is satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time in
performing their responsibilities during the Year.

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary and key officers of the company secretarial
team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting agenda
is set by the Chairperson of the meeting in consultation with other
Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to the Directors at
least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting. Board papers
together with all appropriate, accurate, clear complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each regular Board meeting and Board Committee meeting to
enable the Directors to make informed decision.

Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings and Board
committee meetings, drafted in sufficient details by the secretary of
the meetings, were circulated to the Directors for their comment and
record respectively. Originals of such minutes, being kept by the
Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director will abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in
which he/she or any of his/her associates have a material interest
and he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at the Board
meeting.
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The Board — continued
Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective
management, certain functions of the Board have been delegated
by the Board to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and
Executive Committee.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are INEDs. Clear written
terms of reference of all the Board Committees are given to the
respective members of these Committees. Details of the Board
Committees are set out below:

1. Audit Committee (set up on 23 September 2004)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Wong
Tak Ming, Gary (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Cheng Ka Yu
and Mr. Chan Hon Piu.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
which was re-adopted on 18 November 2015 in light of the
amendments of the Listing Rules, is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee
is primarily responsible for (1) making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor; (2) approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditor; and (3) reviewing financial
information and overseeing the financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control procedures. The Audit
Committee held three meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out below:

i. reviewed with the management/finance-in-charge and/or
the external auditor the effectiveness of audit process and
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, the accuracy and fairness of the annual financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2015
and the interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2015;

i. reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group;

ii. annual review of the non-exempted continuing connected

transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2015;
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The Board — continued
Board Committees — continued
1. Audit Committee (set up on 23 September 2004) — continued

iv. —approved the audit plan for the financial year ended 31
March 2016, reviewed the independence of the external
auditor and approved the engagement of external auditor;

v. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor; and

vi. recommended the Board to adopt the revised terms
of reference of the Audit Committee in light of the
amendments in Listing Rules regarding additional role
of the Audit Committee to review the risk management
system of the Company.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 19 July 2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chan Hon Piu (Chairman of the Committee) and Ms.
Cheng Ka Yu, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai, being
the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Remuneration Committee is primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on
(1) Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors and senior management; (2) the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors; and (3) the specific remuneration
packages for individual Executive Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of each of the
Directors for the Year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Remuneration Committee held two
meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed and recommended the Board to approve the
Directors’ fee;

i. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management and
recommended the Board; and

ii. reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management and made recommendation to the Board.
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The Board — continued
Board Committees — continued

3.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

Nomination Commitiee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu (Chairperson of the Committee) and Mr.
Wong Tak Ming, Gary, both being INEDs, and Ms. Fan Man
Seung, Vanessa, being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are (1) reviewing the structure, size and diversity
of the Board; (2) reviewing the Board Diversity Policy; (3)
determining the policy for the nomination of Directors and
identifying suitable candidates for directorship; (4) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors; (5) assessing the independence of
INEDs; and (6) reviewing the time commitment of each Director.
The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i.  reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board,
ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

ii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on their time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors; and

iv. recommended to the Board the nomination of Directors for
election and re-election at the 2015 AGM.

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the business nature of the
Company. Selection of candidates on the Board is based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including gender, age,
length of service, professional qualification and experience.
The Nomination Committee will also assess the merits and
contribution of any Director proposed for re-election or any
candidate nominated to be appointed as Director and against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board that would complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.
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The Board — continued
Board Committees — continued

4.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of five
members, namely Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson
of the Committee), being the Managing Director, Mr. Wong
Tak Ming, Gary and Mr. Chan Hon Piu, both being INEDs,
a representative of company secretarial function and a
representative of finance and accounts function. The specific
written terms of reference of the Corporate Governance
Committee is available on the Company’s website. The
primary duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are (1)
reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements of
the Company; (2) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (3) reviewing the code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group on dealings with
the Company’s securities; and (4) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this report. The
Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during the
Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendation to the Board,;

ii. reviewed the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report;

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and

v.  reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors and
relevant employees of the Group.

Executive Committee (set up on 22 October 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Fan Man
Seung, Vanessa and Mr. Cheung Ping Keung, all being the
Executive Directors. The Executive Committee has all power
and authorities of the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule on
matters reserved for and delegated by the Board” adopted by
the Board from time to time.
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Securities Transaction of Directors

The Company has adopted EIHL Securities Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standards set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions of Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings in the Model Code
and EIHL Securities Code throughout the Year.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the management
has provided such explanation and information to the Board to
enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
Board decisions. The Directors believed that they have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgment and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and
ensured the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a
“going concern” basis. The auditor of the Company has made a
statement about their reporting responsibilities in the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal financial statements which give
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, position and prospects.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Goals and obijectives

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility to ensure that
the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Risk Management and Internal Control

— continued

Main features of the risk management and internal control

systems (“Systems”)

Control structure
The Board o
[ ]
L]
Audit Committee °
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
The management o

(includes heads
of business units,
departments and

divisions) °

[ ]

Internal Audit °
Department

ensure the maintenance of appropriate and
effective Systems in order to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and assets of the
Group;

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority;

determine the nature and extent of significant risk
that the Company is willing to take in achieving
the strategic objectives and formulate the Group’s
risk management strategies.

oversee the Systems of the Group;

review and discuss with the management
annually to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective Systems;

consider major findings on internal control matters
raised by internal or external auditors;

provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Systems.

design, implement and monitor the Systems
properly and ensure the Systems are executed
effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks
in day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors.

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of adequacy and effectiveness of the Systems.
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Risk Management and Internal Control [Rl b E IR N N ERES 1 —AF

— continued

Main features of the risk management and internal control EREERAPEZRSE ([ZERG]) 2EE
systems (“Systems”) — continued BE-—E

Control approach and tools ERFZERG

During the Year, the management analysed the control environment  RAARFERN - EIREC HETRE R EBBE 5

identified risks pertaining thereto, and implemented various controls
therein.

i.  Approach taken: The management conducted interviews
with relevant staff members, reviewing relevant documentation
of the internal control system and evaluating findings of any
deficiencies in the design of the Group’s internal control
system, providing recommendations for improvement and
assessing the effectiveness of implementation of such
recommendations, where appropriate. The scope and findings
of review on the risk management and internal control are
reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

i. Procedure manuals and operational guidelines: They are i
in place to safeguard the assets against unauthorized use
or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper accounting
records in compliance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use and/or external publication.

ii. Management information system and technology: Such use iii.
to control over the business activities allows close tracking of
various inputs and outputs of the Company’s business such
as raw materials, human resources, products and customer
relationships. It also tracks audit trails in the authorization
system, in which permissions and responsibility of authorization
are clearly identified and adequate records can be maintained
in the system.

iv. Reports and variance analysis: Such reports and analysis of iv.
each segment in the upstream, midstream and downstream
are conducted on a regular basis such that the performance of
each point of sales and each product category can be easily
accessible.

v. Information flow: The transparent information flow alerts .
us promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking with historical
database and comparisons with the same also act as a
detecting device for spotting unusual activities.

v
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Risk Management and Internal Control
— continued
Risk Management

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyse,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated with
any activity, function or process within its scope of responsibility
and authority. It endeavours to evaluate and compare the level
of risk against predetermined acceptable levels of risk. For risk
control and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding
which risks are acceptable and how to address those that are not.
The management will develop contingency plans for possible loss
scenarios. Accidents and other situations involving loss or near-loss
will be investigated and properly documented as part of the effort to
manage risks.

Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through the process
of risk identification and assessment. Such significant risks of the
Group and their respective key strategies/control measures are set
out below:

Significant Risks

o Key Strategies/Control Measures

Investment strategy:

Acquisition of land, investment and development properties carry inherent risks related to

meeting budgets, incurring debts, missing targets and managing contractor relationships.

¢ Investment decisions are subject to a robust risk and return evaluation by executives and
supervision by the Finance and Investment Committee;

*  Potential projects are subject to an extensive due diligence review by in-house specialists
and external advisers. Offers are only made for projects with reasonable return or of
strategic value;

e Ensure experienced managers are in place to manage projects; and

e Completed projects are subject to continual monitoring and internal audit, with regular
performance reports to the Management.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
— continued
Risk Management — continued

Significant Risks

Key Strategies/Control Measures

Rental income sustainability:
Loss of major tenants due to changes in tenants” own strategy or competition among landlords
would adversely impact the revenue of the Group.

Maintain a well-balanced and quality tenant mix;
Maintain high property marketability by timely renovation;

Invite targeted tenants or anchor tenants to our existing or new properties from time to time.
Custom-made arrangements are offered where appropriate to cater to their specific needs;

Propose short term lease restructure for quality tenants in order to help sustain their
businesses; and

Carry out pre-lease campaigns to replace the undesirable tenants.

Business/Portfolio concentration:

A significant portion of the Group’s revenues is derived from Hong Kong. Unfavourable events
in the city could disrupt our overall business, lower our revenues and impact the valuation of our
assets.

The Group has a diversified portfolio of investment properties across Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland cities and London, the United Kingdom. The Group will keep sourcing quality
investment properties around the world; and

The Group has expanded its investment property portfolio to offices in recent years. This
enables the Group to mitigate the undesirable impact on retail sector.

Property development risks:

Supply of land is subject to the change of land policies in different markets. Acquisition of
land in Hong Kong, the PRC and other overseas markets may be subject to various regulatory
requirements and restrictions and competition from other developers. Future growth prospects
of property development business are therefore affected by the availability and price levels

of prime sites in Hong Kong, the PRC and other overseas markets. Failure to manage cost

of construction, labour and materials could adversely affect the competitiveness of property
development business.

68

Participate actively in the land auctions;

Engage in more joint-venture projects with partners in private and public sectors;
Maintain a long-term strategic plan on property redevelopment projects;

Implement well established policies in our tendering system;

Monitor project costs closely with strict adherence to budget;

Extract advantages from economies of scale based on our portfolio size, if possible; and

Monitor closely the labour cost and materials stock/price trends in the industry before
awarding building contracts.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
— continued
Risk Management — continued

Significant Risks
* Key Strategies/Control Measures

Keen Competition in hotel and gaming industry:

Increased competition in hotel and gaming industry in Macau due to opening of more luxury
hotels and casinos, upgrade of existing hotels by competitors as well as increasing in number
of VIP rooms, gaming tables and slot machines from existing casinos and among other

Asian countries (e.g. Malaysia, Singapore, Vietnam and Cambodia). No assurance that the
growth of Macau's tourism industry would increase in line with or outpace the supply of hotel
accommodation, casino gaming tables and slot machines and this could adversely affect the
Group’s business.

e Enlarge and expand our footprint in sourcing hotel and gaming patrons;

¢ Devote to provide the best personalised service to the guests in order to give them a
memorable experience; thereby differentiating GEH from other hotels and enabling them to
make GEH be their first choice when they come back to Macau;

o Cooperate with travel agencies and airline companies to develop long-haul visitor market;

e Launch promotions featuring GEH's excellent location to attract guests to extend length of
overnight stay, integrating with local tourism resources, especially World Cultural Heritage
scenic spots; and

* |mprove marketing strategy and enhance promotions and publicities from time to time
in order to encourage existing gaming patrons to come back to Macau and attract new
customers from around the world

Anti-Money Laundering:

No assurance that our existing anti-money laundering (*AML") policies are in compliance with
applicable AML laws and that the policies in place could sufficiently prevent or detect the
occurrence of money laundering activities at casinos.

¢ Review the existing compliance policies regularly;

e Comply with the reporting and compliance procedures as request by Gaming Inspection
and Coordination Bureau or the AML compliance department of SUM;

e Stay alert of the industrial practices; and
o Give regular training to the staff.

Concession Contract:

Reliance on SIM Concession Contract which will expire on 31 March 2020 and the existing
services agreement with SIM to run the Group’s gaming business. Termination of the SIM's
Concession Contract or the service agreement with SIM for whatever reasons or the renewal
thereof is not granted to or made by SIM or unfavourable change in the terms of the services
agreement would have impact on the gaming business of the Group.

e Stay alert to the policy and government practice and the industrial practices or make
changes to the existing business plans or strategies, as and when appropriate; and

e Keep close communications with SIM in this respect.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
— continued
Internal Controls

The Internal Audit Department is assigned with the task to perform
regular reviews on internal control system of the Group in respect
of operational, financial and compliance aspects and will alert the
management on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any,
advise them on the implementation of necessary steps and actions
to enhance the internal controls of the Group. The result of internal
audit reviews and agreed action plans are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Other than review of the Systems, the Audit Committee has
also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

The Board acknowledged that the management had been
progressively implementing an adequate internal control system to
ensure the effective functioning of the Group’s operational, financial
and compliance areas, including the following key measures,
policies and procedures:—

i.  Control on leasing of properties: Policies and checklists on
control of rental revenue, lease terms & conditions, appointment
of agency, asset security and performance review are in place
for leasing of Group’s premises;

i. Control on acquisition of properties: Internal procedures on
the acquisition of properties are in place;

ii. Safeguard of assets: Surprise physical count of cash, chips
and client deposits held in casino and coupons for casino
are performed by Internal Audit Department to safeguard the
assets;

iv. ~Service quality control: Regular review on operational
systems of hotel and gaming business segments to ensure the
service quality; and questionnaires are provided in different
outlets to welcome customers’ feedbacks for our service
improvement;
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Risk Management and Internal Control
— continued
Internal Controls — continued

V.

Vi

Vii.

viil.

Financial reporting management:

e Proper controls are in place for the recording of complete,
accurate and timely accounting and management
information;

e Regular reports on revenue, marker receivables’ ageing
and debtors’ ageing and internal financial reports are
prepared to the management which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s financial
performance;

e Monthly updates on key financial information are
provided to all Directors, which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
financial position and prospects in sufficient details; and

e Annual audits by external auditors are carried out to
ensure that the financial statement are in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, the
Group’s accounting policies and the applicable laws and
regulations.

the Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of Inside
Information to ensure, with the assistance of an internal work
team (if required), that any material information which comes to
the knowledge of any one or more officers should be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for the
attention of the Board;

the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements which shall be reviewed and
monitored regularly by the Corporate Governance Committee
as delegated by the Board;

the establishment of a CCT Compliance Committee to monitor,
control and regularly review continuing connected transactions
of the Company and ensure proper compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations and the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements; and

a whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group to
raise concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. Such
arrangement will be reviewed by the Audit Committee which
ensures that proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
— continued
Internal Controls — continued

The Board and Audit Committee have reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and are not aware of
any significant issues that would have an adverse impact on the
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy and the Board shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company communicates with the Shareholders
mainly in the following ways: (a) the holding of annual general
meetings and special general meetings, if any, which may be
convened for specific purposes which provide opportunities for
the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (b) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/
or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press releases
providing updated information of the Group; (c) the availability
of latest information of the Group in the Company’'s website at
www.Emperorint.com.; and (d) the holding of press conference(s)
from time to time.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and general
presentations are made when financial results are announced.
Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the Company’s
website to raise enquiries through our Investor Relations Department
whose contact details are available on the Company’s website and
the “Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of this annual
report.

In order to protect the environment and save costs for the benefit
of Shareholders, the Company has introduced electronic means for
receiving corporate communication by Shareholders. Shareholders
may still elect to receive printed or electronic copies of corporate
communication. However, the Shareholders are encouraged to
access corporate communication from the Company through the
Company’s website.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for such
substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring Directors.
The Company’s notice to the Shareholders for the 2015 AGM was
sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and notices of all other general meetings will be sent to the
Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before the meetings.
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Communication with Shareholders — continued

The Chairperson of the 2015 AGM and the chairman/members of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee and the external
auditor were available at the 2015 AGM to answer questions from
the Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company Secretary,
the Chairperson of the meeting had explained the procedures for
conducting poll voting during such meeting.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) and Putting
Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of the
Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall have the right to submit a written requisition requiring
a SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition (a) must
state the object(s) of the meeting, and (b) must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the principal office of the Company
for attention of the Company Secretary, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.
Such requisitions will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that the requisition
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On
the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day not more
than two months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition,
the requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM, but any
SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from the said date of deposit of the requisition. A meeting convened
by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by
Directors.
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Shareholders’ Rights — continued

Convening a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) and Putting
Forward Proposals at General Meetings — continued

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the registered Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or
not less than 100 of such registered Shareholders, can request the
Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed
by all the Requisitionists must be deposited at the principal office
of the Company for attention of the Company Secretary with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and
not less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before the
meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if, after
a copy of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution has been
deposited at the principal office of the Company, an annual general
meeting is called for a date six weeks or less after the copy has
been deposited, such requisition though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for
the purposes thereof.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed
to the Investor Relations Department of the Company whose contact
details are shown on the “Corporate Information and Key Dates”
section of this Annual Report.

Constitutional Documents

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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Auditor's Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Committee
were of the view that the Company’s auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tomatsu is independent and has recommended the Board to re-
appoint it as the Company’s auditor at the 2015 AGM. During the
Year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, has rendered audit services
and certain non-audit services to the Group and the remuneration
paid/payable to it by the Group is set out as follows:

\/

%Vi,\ SERBERBERCENEHLERZ
R 2B UERGA AR ENBRECE
BMERERME -ZRBE2KERR AR 2
ZENRE e BAER SETEANITEBE AL WiEH
EEgR0RRBEFAE LEBE/ARRFZ
REED - NAEER  [BE e BIER GTEI1TE
AR5 B HAZ BURSS S5 T IRAZ 2R FS - MA S
BEM BN TE B ERIIT

Service rendered Fees paid/payable

Fir iR 4 AR 7% B EAEA

HK$’ 000

FHET

Audit services ZERTS 8,040

Non-audit services SERZBUARTS 480
— Corporate exercise in accordance with Hong Kong —REEASHMASMEBRTARE
Standard on Investment Circular Reporting 178 (K FR R R HE A2 BI 3540055 [ 5 &Lk

Engagements 400 “Comfort Letters and Due REBREETGR] 20ETH

Diligence Meetings” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR E

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Emperor
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 190,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibility — continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBRsREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET FAT
Revenue WA 7 2,821,473
Cost of properties sales Y SHE R (8,322)
Cost of hotel and hotel related operations S 5 K2 /& & 48 #8 2 745 5k A (635,647)
Direct operating expenses in respect of  FAEIREWE Z HELLMY
leasing of investment properties (58,077)
Gross profit EA 2,124,427
Other income HAb U A 129,598
Fair value changes of investment KREMEAR
properties BEZEE 737,708
Other losses HmEsa 9 (62,296)
Selling and marketing expenses HERMISHEEER (563,316)
Administrative expenses THER (443,627)
Finance costs WM%ER 10 (296,432)
Share of result of a joint venture Dh—HEEEREEE 19 (71)
(Loss) profit before taxation BriiET (&8 ) & A 11 1,625,991
Taxation FiIA 13 (350,298)
(Loss) profit for the year FE (BE) AN 1,275,693
Other comprehensive (expense) income H 2 (I ) Uiz
ltem that will not be reclassified BEETeE 72 Em 2B -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Revaluation surplus of properties HEESINEMENYEEH RS
transferred to investment properties -
ltem that may be reclassified HEAEEF S 2 Ea o TEH
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising BREFINMB AR TELE R Z58
on translation of foreign subsidiaries 5,725
Other comprehensive (expense) income  FEH 2@ (FIsL) Wk
for the year 5,725
Total comprehensive (expense) income  FE2E4A (FX) las
for the year 1,281,418
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: ~ FE(E4EE (5185 F -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZFE DN 898,129
Non-controlling interests eI R i 377,564
1,275,693
Total comprehensive (expense) income for fE{GFE 242 (B ) Izs -
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIE 2N 903,849
Non-controlling interests EfE R 377,569
1,281,418
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (B18)&BF 15
Basic (HK$) BEAR (BT 0.24
Diluted (HK$) w8 O8) 0.24
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PR R

At 31 March 2016 20163 H31H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ik FTHERT FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties B 16 36,502,772 36,525,060
Property, plant and equipment LER L 17 3,358,745 3,261,792
Deposits paid for acquisition of WIEREME
investment properties/property, WEENBREMX T2 S
plant and equipment 43,802 127,390
Receivables related to a EM—IEZEREAZ
development project FEMFR IR 16 178,210 187,471
Prepaid lease payments TERMEERK 18 560,178 625,876
Interest in a joint venture R—HeEbE 2 Em 19 599,347 572,474
Goodwill EES 21 56,683 56,683
Other assets EmEE 22 4,092 4,092
Pledged bank deposits DAREIRITIE 27 30,252 -
41,334,081 41,360,838
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 23 13,745 14,827
Properties held for sale FHERE 2 24 720,124 202,071
Properties under development for FIERE 2 ERPME
sale 25 1,309,714 2,641,237
Prepaid lease payments FERHEENK 18 17,266 18,702
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b e G IE 26 834,641 941,085
Derivative financial instruments PTEERTA 31 - 3,241
Taxation recoverable AR B I8 9,663 11,520
Deposit in designated bank account  BLESRE Y17
for development properties RIETEIRITIRPS 275K 20 9,685 10,072
Pledged bank deposits SR TIER 27 655,718 2,450,870
Short-term bank deposits R HBIRT TR X 27 39,031 -
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR MRS 27 3,108,291 1,356,769
6,717,878 7,650,394
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2016 20163 H31H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(ks FER FAT
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAM IR 28 2,138,073
Amount due to a related company JEfT —FEIRAE A R FRIE 29 456,108
Amounts due to non-controlling JERHEB AR Z
interests of subsidiaries IR R I 30 152,576
Derivative financial instruments MESBIA 31 1,084
Taxation payable FEI A 443,240
Bank borrowings RITIEE
— due within one year ——FREIH 33 2,861,948
6,053,029
Net current assets RENEEFE 1,597,365
Total assets less current liabilites #EERABEE 42,958,203
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amount due to a related company JE —EBEE A RIFRIE 29 3,062,083
Unsecured notes ER AR 32 3,761,206
Derivative financial instruments MTHESRTIA 31 23,324
Bank borrowings RITEE
— due after one year ——F1& 35 33 6,665,704
Deferred taxation R IR 34 998,088
14,510,405
28,447,798
Capital and reserves BEXRREE
Share capital &z 35 36,718
Reserves G 25,522,133
Equity attributable to owners of RAEEE AE R
the Company 25,558,851
Non-controlling interests FIEEARE AR 37 2,888,947
28,447,798

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 190 were £78E Z $ 1008 FT# 2 54 B S R KX A 20164F6
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22~ F22 A& E E@H & MIFHETIE W h N IEER

June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: KHEE:
Wong Chi Fai Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
BELXE SR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EFE

v
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRERBEIR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRFHEEAES
Share Asset Non-
Share Share  Translation option  revaluation Other  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
B& RiEE EifE BRERE HEEHHEG Atk E5p-0] A% FERER At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEgn TR Tign T Fign Tign Fign Tign Fign Tign

(Note)
(Hiit)

At 1 April 2015 M201554A18 36,718 4,551,984 328,339 3,575 123,773 598,549 19,915,913 25,558,851 2,888,947 28,447,798
(Loss) profit for the year FE (BR) &7 - - - - - - (2%91,188)  (2,391,188) 161523 (2,229,665)
Revaluation surplus of properties & Z R EWEH

ransferred to investment NESHEL

properties - - - - 72,1% - - 72,79 - 72,79
Exchange differences arising 2 EESNIHBAF

on translation of foreign EEZEREER

subsidiares - - (203,004) - - - - (203,098 ©)  (203199)
Total comprehensive (expense)  E2E# (F%) Wiz

income for the year - - (203,009) - 7279 - oonee) (2521486 161424 (2360062)
Exercise of share options TiEmRE

(n0t 35) (#535) 57 11,264 - (1,24) - - - 10073 - 10073
Lapse of share options FRERELN

during the year (note 36) (Hr236) - - - (2,327) - - 2,327 - - -
Depreciation attributable to ERBREETE

revaluation surplus - - - - (1,572) - 1,840 268 - 268
Acquisition of additional interests M B[ B A 7.2 BSMER

in subsidiares (note 35) (K8) - - - - - 11,107 - 11,107 (25758)  (14651)
Deemed capital contribution NyBRR—HEE

arising from fair value RAFEZLAEE

adjusiment on initial recognition  BEMELZ

on amount due to  related RIELE (Hrit29)

company (nofe 29) - - - - - 80,041 - 80,041 - 80,041
Dividend paid to owners of the ~ EIZAA R A A

Company SRZRE

- interim dividend for 2016 —2016EFERE - - - - - - (165,489) (165,489) - (165,489)

- final dividend for 2015 —20155 K HHEE - - - - - - (220,653) (220,653) - (220,653)
Dividend paid to non-controlling ~ FI3EFZRER

interests SRR

- interim dividend for 2016 —2016EHERE - - - - - - - - (13,615) (13,615)

~final dividend for 2015 ~015E KRS - - - - - - - - @175 (29175)
At 31 March 2016 R2016E3A31H 36,775 4,563,248 125,245 - 194,997 689,697 17,142,750 22,752,712 2,981,823 25,734,535
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEE NE
Share Asset Non-
Share Share Translation option revaluation Other  Accumulated controling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
e Bt E Bk BRERR AZEAEE Efoih Zitigf B8 FERER At

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TBT TETL TBTL TETL THTL TETL THL TETL TATL TETL

(Notg)
(Hiit)

At 1 April 2014 W2014F4R1R 36,718 4,551,984 322,619 3575 125,445 496,185 19,416,054 24,952,580 2,581,206 27,533,786
Proft for the year EEEF - - - - - - 898,129 898,129 3T6E 1275603
Exchange differences arising &8N B AR

on translation of foreign EEZERZR

subsidiaries - - 5,720 - - - - 5720 5 5725
Total comprehensive income  FE2EAUE

for the year - - 5720 - - - 898,129 903,849 377,569 1,281,418
Depreciation attributable to ERERELTE

revaluation surplus - - - - (1,672) - 1954 282 - 282
Acquisition of additional interests MEEHBARZ

in subsidiaries (note 38) BMES (Ii38) - - - - - 924 - 924 8772) (7.848)
Deemed capital contribution R $ AR —FEE

arising from fair value RAFELRAE

adjustment on initial recognition  EZMESEZ

on amount due to  related RIELE (Hi29)

company (note 29) - - - - - 101,440 - 101,440 - 101,440
Dividend paid to owners of ARRAHEFA

the Company TRHZBRE

“interim dividend for 2015 —2015E HERE - - - - - - (183589)  (183589) - (183589)

—final dividend for 2014 —0UERERE - - - - - - (m66%)  (2166%) S (1663
Dividend paid to non-controlling I3 RER

interests T2 BRE

Cinterim dividend for 2015 —2015E R RS - - - - - - - - (24313) (24313)

~finel dividend for 2014 ~UERERE - - - - - - - - (36.743) (36743)
At 31 March 2015 H2015F3A318 36,718 4551984 328,339 3575 123,773 598,549 19915913 25,558,851 2,888,947 28,447,798

Note:The other reserve of the Group arose from (i) acquisition of additional — A7s# N5 B 2 E i {5 185 J5 BE] (i) 160 S 22 PG A8 2 AT S i /8

interests in subsidiaries from non-controlling interests; (i) dilution of NRIZEIIMESR  (NEMHB AR ERG M<K
interest in a subsidiary from allotment of shares by a subsidiary; and ZME AR mEEE R(i)VARREAEALZ
(iii) deemed capital contributions from owners of the Company. RIEHEMESE-

v
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Operating activities L HETE
(Loss) profit before taxation BrAiAT (E518) i@ (1,850,633) 1,625,991
Adjustments for: FHEE
Interest income LB A (90,894) (89,929)
Interest expenses FMERX 412,572 291,236
Release of prepaid lease BRI E N
payments 18,100 18,702
Depreciation of property, plant LERE =95
and equipment FEITE 204,482 184,452
Share of result of a joint venture D —EAEEREEE 80 71
Loss on disposal of property, HEME HRER
plant and equipment B BE 606 1,286
Decrease (increase) in the fair KEYEZ
value of investment properties BREEBD (EN) 3,167,583 (737,708)
Impairment loss on prepaid lease ENEENRZ
payments BB B 49,034 -
Write-downs of properties under FIERE 2 EES
development for sale e 132,884 -
Unrealised fair value changes of TTEEMIAZ
derivative financial instruments RER AR EEE 20,340 13,357
Allowance (reversal of allowance) REREE (BEIRE)
for doubtful debts 560 (2,612)
Operating cash flows before KRer& é/i\Z@J Al Z
movements in working capital LiBRERE 2,064,714 1,304,846
Decrease (increase) in inventories FE 2R () 1,082 (565)
(Increase) decrease in properties BIEREZWEL
held for sale (3500) % (518,053) 8,322
Decrease (increase) in properties FIEREZERPMEZ
under development for sale wA (3E ) 1,234,050 (436,480)
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 REMEWHIA L
other receivables wA (3Ehn) 82,530 (357,866)
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 REMERNFRIEL
other payables (k) 180 (860,640) 1,150,879
Changes of derivative financial PTEemMIAC#E)
instruments (24,807) (15,827)
Cash generated from operations xEegEZE® 1,978,876 1,653,309
Income tax paid EHPTE
—in Hong Kong —&8 (42,540) (55,436)
—in the People’s Republic of China ~ —fEE ARLHME ([FHE])
(the “PRC") (1,961) -
—in Macau — B (653) (3,601)
— in United Kingdom (“UK”) — DR ([2RE]) (251) -
Net cash from operating activities RELEER 2R e /FH 1,933,471 1,594,272
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REREMRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

2016
HK$’000
FER
Investing activities KEES
Acquisition of investment properties  WIEIEE ¥ &
and costs incurred for investment BRPIEEME
properties under development FTEE & 2 R AR
Acquisition of property, plant and URBE W3 - W28 R AR A
equipment
Placement of short-term bank FHEARITER
deposits
Placement of pledged bank deposits 17K B 1K ER1T1F X
Deposits paid on acquisition of WEEREME, M MR
investment properties/property, BNz ES
plant and equipment
Advance to a joint venture m—EEERERR
Withdrawal of pledged bank RIEEIFRITIFR
deposits
Interest received WER A B
Withdrawal of short-term bank IREURE BASRTT 17 5K

deposits

Proceeds from disposal of
investment properties

HhEREMREHIA

(Placement) withdrawal of deposit (FH)IREBERY
in designated bank account for FRRIEERTT
development properties RP2TFER

Proceeds from disposal of property, — HE¥E #2EZ K
plant and equipment BABFTIS IR

Net cash used in investing activites ~ IR & E8 2 IR & 58

v
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RELKE (EFF) BRAT

2015
HK$'000
TAT

(2,787,640)
(331,543)
(505)
(1,266,394)
(126,693)

(569,200)

1,229,920
83,520

15,571

238,450

1,613

2,057
(3,510,844)



Financing activities BEEE

Bank loans raised MEEZRITER 7,934,538
Advances from a related company —FIBEAR 2K 2,033,098
Issuance of unsecured notes BITERIBHER 2,900,792
Exercise of share options TR AR i -
Repayments of bank borrowings ERRITEE (7,185,567)
Repayments to a related company EBRT—HEEAR (1,941,194)
Interest paid SAFE (335,892)
Dividends paid to owners of the MAREHEE A
Company AP ¥\ (400,224)
Dividends paid to non-controlling AP 8 A R FE1E AR i 2
interests of subsidiaries T2 BB (61,056)
Repayments to non-controlling BT HE QR IEERER
interests of subsidiaries (35,990)
Acquisition of additional interests in ~ UgEE M B A 7 2 FEIMER
subsidiaries 38 (7,848)
Repayments of bank overdraft BERITEX (402,016)
Net cash from financing activities REMEEH RS IFE 2,498,641
Net increase in cash and cash ReRkREEEWM 2
equivalents HHNFEE 582,069
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUzEe Rk
beginning of the year REFEY 764,769
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREFH s B
changes 9,931
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZEER
end of the year, representing bank ReEEY:
balances and cash EERITHE SR R E 1,356,769

v
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

1.

Emperor International Holdings Limited

General

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The immediate holding company is Emperor
International Group Holdings Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The
ultimate holding company is Albert Yeung Holdings Limited
(“AY Holdings”), a limited liability company incorporated
in BVI, which is in turn held by STC International Limited
(“STC International”) being the trustee of The Albert Yeung
Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), the settlor and founder of which
is Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”). The address
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 46.

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs

and Hong Kong Accounting Stardards (“HKASs") issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)

for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

1.

REEH (BFR) BRLAF
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

2. BRAFEREBTERUBR
EEA([ERVHBEERN])

=t
—4E

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Financial instruments?

Revenue from contracts with
customers?
Leases*

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 cycle!

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception'

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations!

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
revenue from contracts with
customers?®

Disclosure initiative'

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer plants’

Equity method in separate
financial statements'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E
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Emperor International Holdings Limited

2. Application of New and Revised Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new requirements
for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments
to the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive income”
(“FVTOCI") measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.

REEH (BFR) BRLAF
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” — continued

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The Directors considered the expected credit loss model may
result in earlier recognition of impairment on financial assets.

The Directors will assess the impact of the application of
HKFRS 9. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR RME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #£2016F3H31H It F[E

2. Application of New and Revised Hong 2. ERHERKETEBMBR

v

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
— continued

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may have an impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases’, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS
16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and
a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in
the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis.
The measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease.
This accounting treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17, which does not require the recognition
of such right-of-use asset/lease liability, but which requires
certain information about operating lease commitments to be
made as disclosed in note 42.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — continued

The Directors are in the process of assessing their impact of
HKFRS 16 on the consolidated financial statements. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
until the Group performs a detailed review.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs and HKASs issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO”").

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with reference
to the provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits and to streamline with HKFRSs, which
became effective for the Company for the year ended 31
March 2016. Accordingly, the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2015 is presented or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to be disclosed
under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the
new CO or amended Listing Rules is not disclosed in these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefit
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment”, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued
Basis of consolidation — continued

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

3. TEETHER &

RERBEE—Z
HEE R B EFFERE D

MEBAR 2K RAENMAXEBRAR
AR A N OFERR i s - B ISR B B IEITEAR
Rz IR A AR o

FEETERENB LA EEREEEE

AEERMBARZ REEEGESHEES
BARGRERESBEINE AR 226 AR
FESSEYNRFN QLI Fadt B live: Saivd: 2
E{ES R  ARRERHE AR 2 ik
BB - IR BB HEEENHEW
REQ2ALBEMER ZEREZRERN ER
AR LFEBNARREEA

B
ST R T P BRI ST MR B A
W 2 K (B D E R 8 R R
8 (40 ) 51 -

SURERIAM S BESR Y ILETRHE S5
ZHRAMETEZ s AREEBRRASE
ERNSEeELEM 2R

v

94  Emperor International Holdings Limited R E2%£E (EE) BRAT



3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued
Goodwill — continued

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which
case it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations”. The
financial statements of joint ventures used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of
a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued
Investments in joint ventures — continued

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued
Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control. When a group entity undertakes its
activities under joint operations, the Group as a joint operator
recognises in relation to its interest in a joint operation:

e its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

e its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising
from the joint operation;

e its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the
joint operation; and

e its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution
of assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the
transaction with the other parties to the joint operation, and
gains and losses resulting from the transactions are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of other parties’ interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of assets),
the Group does not recognise its share of the gains and losses
until it resells those assets to a third party.
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Emperor International Holdings Limited

— continued
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation including properties under development
for such purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value. All of the Group’s
property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes are accounted for as
investment properties and measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under development.

Investment properties under development are measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. Any difference
between the fair value of the investment properties under
development and their carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Transfer from investment properties to investment properties
under development will be made when there is a change
in use, evidenced by commencement of redevelopment
of the properties with a view to earn rentals and for capital
appreciation. The fair value of these properties at the date of
transfer become the deemed cost of investment properties
under development.

REEH (BFR) BRLAF

REM=

REMEDFERPEE R HEAEEZ
ME BREALLSBENZERPYE-

BIRHERE - BN (BRI HEA)
FHE-MNBERMERR REVMERAAEET
B RIBREHERFAURNE S SHEE ARG
EREZMBRNEENERERGRIRENE
AN WiRRAABEE - REVEZAAE
BEFELRGEIERIIAMEENHE

IS
B

BRPIREYREL 2 REKABETE AR
RERTPREMEREE 7D

BRPREVERSBREPRRIZAABER
B BRPREMELAEEEREEZ R
ZR RELEBMMNME R ARER

BREMENLEXZAREMEXKATBRE
PR SR RARZ IR N & B A R SRR B M 2
HUBRER - YR BURRER AL 2 (E s
HER (RZAEEL G RIRFEERE
B2 Z8AE) RYEBURRER 2 BIFARZIA
1BEA -

BREME AGBENER (ERERYER
RS MEARIRE BOMRARETER
BR) SFRENEBREERDREDE -
ZEMERNBREA AR BESESER
FIREY K 2R VERAR -



3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost or deemed cost upon transfer from investment
properties, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”
from the requirement to make regular revaluations of the
Group’s land and buildings which had been carried at revalued
amounts prior to 30 September 1995, and accordingly no
further revaluation of land and buildings is carried out. Prior
to 30 September 1995, the revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of these assets was credited to the asset revaluation
reserve. Any future decreases in value of these assets will be
dealt with as an expense to the extent that they exceed the
balance, if any, on the asset revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of the same asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost, deemed
cost or revalued amount of items of property, plant and
equipment less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued
Property, plant and equipment — continued

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
asset revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated profits.

Transfer of asset revaluation reserve to accumulated profits is
made in relation to: (i) the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued item; (i) the excess of the depreciation based on the

3.
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Borrowing costs BE KA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
— continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an income in
the period in which they are generated.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
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When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases, in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model and those transferred
from investment properties to property, plant and equipment
which is accounted for as if it were a finance lease after the
transfer and included in property, plant and equipment. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Inventories
Calering goods

Catering goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified under current assets and are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all anticipated costs to be
incurred in marketing and selling.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued
Inventories — continued
Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale in the ordinary course of
business are included in current assets and stated at the lower
of cost (or deemed cost for those transferred from investment
properties, see accounting policy on investment properties)
and net realisable value. Costs relating to the development
of the properties include land cost, construction cost and
other direct development expenditure. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all anticipated costs
to be incurred in marketing and selling.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”") and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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Financial assets — continued
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL are financial assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

e itis a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets.

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. TEETHHE—Z&
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market. Loans and receivables (including receivables related to
a development project, deposit in designated bank account for
development properties, trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits, bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for the short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the loans and
receivables, the estimated future cash flows of the loans and
receivables have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and
other receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired
individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on the receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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Impairment of loans and receivables — continued

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrurments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entities are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liabilities are held for trading.

A financial liability classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest
paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to a related company/non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries, unsecured notes, bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

For the amounts due to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
and amount due to a related company, if the Group revises its
estimates of the timing of repayments, the carrying amounts are
adjusted to reflect the revised estimated cash flows. The Group
recalculates the carrying amounts by computing the present
value of estimated future cash flows at the balance’s original
effective interest rate. The difference is adjusted as deemed
capital contribution by the non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company in equity.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.
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A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets”; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial assets, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal ordinary course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of developed properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to purchasers
pursuant to the sales agreements. Deposits received from
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities.

Revenue arising from services provided to a gaming operator
in Macau under service arrangements for gaming operations
in mass market halls, VIP room and slot machine hall is
recognised when the provision of gaming-related marketing
and public relation services are rendered and the Group is
entitled to receive its service income according to the relevant
operating performance from the gaming operator.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from hotel accommodation is recognised upon the
provision of the accommodation services. Revenue from food
and beverage sales and other ancillary services are recognised
upon the provision of goods and services.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Service income is recognised when the services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

— continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in joint arrangements, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40
“Investment property”, such properties are presumed to be
recovered through sale. Such a presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and assets
for such investment properties are measured in accordance
with the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 “Income
taxes” (i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the
properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR RME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. TEFHBE —~Z

v

— continued
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate) and will be reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign
operations.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies
— continued

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to accumulated profits.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
other than the costs directly attributable to the development
of the properties, which are capitalised as part of the cost
of qualified assets, are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources.

Critical judgment applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or assets
arising from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties located in the PRC, Macau and UK in
the aggregate carrying amounts of HK$8,947,507,000 as at
31 March 2016 (2015: HK$7,922,362,000) are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of such investment properties located in the
PRC, Macau and UK are recovered through sale is rebutted.
As a result, the Group has recognised deferred tax liabilities
of HK$1,002,524,000 (2015: HK$867,759,000) on changes in
fair value of investment properties as the Group is subject to
income tax in the respective jurisdictions, on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through use.
In respect of investment properties that are located in Hong
Kong with aggregate carrying amount of HK$27,555,265,000
(2015: HK$28,602,698,000), the Directors concluded that these
investment properties are not held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in these investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation in investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
the investment properties located in Hong Kong measuring
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised
any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the investment
properties situated in Hong Kong, as it is expected that the
Group will not subject to any income taxes on disposal of its
investment properties situated in Hong Kong.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgment and Key 4, EXRETFHERMEFTTHBEZE
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty ZEERR —Z
— continued
Critical judgment applying accounting policies RSB ZE R¥E —2
— continued
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4. Critical Accounting Judgment and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
— continued
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of HK$36,502,772,000 at 31 March
2016 (2015: HK$36,525,060,000) are measured at fair value.
The amount was based on a valuation on these properties
conducted by an independent firm of professional valuers
using property valuation techniques which involve certain key
assumptions and inputs of market conditions, including:

e comparable market transactions with adjustments to
reflect different locations or conditions; and

e comparable market rents and transactions, occupancy
rate, discount rate and cost to be expended to complete
the development of investment properties under
construction.

The basis of valuation is disclosed in note 16. Changes to these
assumptions and inputs would result in changes in the fair
value of the Group's investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in the profit
or loss.

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development for sale

In determining whether write down should be made to
the Group’s properties under development for sale of
HK$1,309,714,000 (2015: HK$2,641,237,000), the Group
takes into consideration the current market environment and
the estimated market value (i.e. the estimated selling price
less estimated costs of selling expenses) less estimated costs
to completion of the properties. Write down is made if the
estimated market value less estimated cost to completion of
the properties is less than the carrying amount. If the actual net
realisable value on properties under development for sales is
less than expected as a result of change in market condition
and/or significant variation in the budgeted development cost,
material write down may result.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued

Estimates of repayment of amounts due to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary

The Group’s carrying amount of the interest-free amounts due
to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary as at 31 March 2016
was HK$132,000,000 (2015: HK$150,000,000) (see note 30
for details). According to the shareholders’ agreements, these
amounts are repayable only when the indirect non wholly-
owned subsidiary, Luck United Holdings Limited (“Luck
United”), and its subsidiaries have surplus fund. Surplus
fund represents available cash within these subsidiaries after
payment of all operating expenses and payable, including but
not limited to bank loans and third party loans which are due
for repayment together with the accrued interest. The carrying
amount of the amounts due to non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary and the deemed contribution by non-controlling
interests may be adjusted to reflect the revised estimated cash
flows when the Group revises its estimates of the amount and
timing of repayment to the non-controlling interests based on
the cash flow forecasts and availability of surplus fund of Luck
United and, consequently, affect the amount of imputed interest
to be recognised in profit or loss, if any, over the expected life of
the amounts due to non-controlling interest of a subsidiary.

Estimates of amount due to a related company

The Group’s carrying amount of amount due to a related
company as at 31 March 2016 is HK$3,544,395,000 (2015:
HK$3,518,191,000) (see note 29 for details). There is no fixed
repayment term and it was agreed with the related company
that the Group will repay the amount based on the sufficiency
of its operating cash flows. The carrying amount of the amount
due to a related company and the deemed contribution by
a related company may be adjusted to reflect the revised
estimated cash flows when the Group revises its estimates of
the amount and timing of repayment to the related company
and consequently, affect the amount of imputed interest to be
recognised in profit or loss over the expected life of the amount
due to a related company.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgment and Key 4, EXETFHERMEFTTHBEZE
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty ZEERER &
— continued
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4. Critical Accounting Judgment and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

— continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Estimated provision for impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based on
an assessment of the recoverability of debtors. Allowances
are made on trade receivables whenever there is any
objective evidence that the balances may not be collectible.
In determining whether an allowance for doubtful debts is
required, the Group takes into consideration the aging status
and the likelihood of collection. Following the identification of
doubtful debts, the credit team discusses with the relevant
customers and reports on the recoverability. Specific allowance
is only made for trade receivables that are unlikely to be
collected. Where the expectation on the recoverability of the
debts is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying amounts of debtors and doubtful debt
expenses in the periods in which such estimate has been
changed.

The carrying amount of trade receivables as at 31 March 2016
is HK$130,393,000 (2015: HK$200,371,000) (see note 26 for
details).

Deferred tax assets

At 31 March 2016, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$36,067,000 (2015: HK$28,748,000) (see note 34 for
details) in relation to unused tax losses have been recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.
No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$653,826,000 (2015:
HK$609,973,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly
depend on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In case where the
actual future profits generated are less than expected, a
material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a
reversal takes place.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The Directors have
a designated team to determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation of the Group's investment properties. At the end of
each reporting period, the management of the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group
will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can
be derived observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there
is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to the Directors. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties are disclosed
in note 16.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities at FVTPL (representing the Group’s
derivative financial instruments as disclosed in note 31), the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
The management of the Group will assess the valuation of
the derivative financial instruments based on discounted
cash flow method at the end of the reporting period. The
management of the Group will exercise their judgments based
on their experience to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation model. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets/
liabilities, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the
board of directors of the Company. Note 6 provides detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of the
Group's financial assets/liabilities at FVTPL.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgment and Key 4, EXRETFHERMEFTTHBEZE
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty ZEERR —Z
— continued
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5.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes amount due to a related company, amounts due to
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries, unsecured notes, bank
borrowings in notes 29, 30, 32 and 33 respectively, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the debt raising.

Financial Instruments
(a) Categories of financial instruments

EXRERER

AREEEREEN  URERAEE R B
WAEBIISBISE RS RN EBELE
BRENEHREEL MR O NEE 2
EERBREFEFTE-

REE 2 EREHEBRIEERFE (BRE25IR
MIEE29 ~30 ~ 32K 33FTHE FE 2 FE —[EIREiE AR
AFIE BB AR 2 IR RN IE - &
KHEE - RITEER) BekREEEMF
BERARFHEE AEEER (BB EITRA
NIt -

EET R EARRE - ERZRE 2 — 8
D EBEREEEAXNARZRERN ZHERE
o RIFESR 2 HEERE AKE RSB
BB BITHIARD BB INERS - PR EEBEE
ARIRHE

EBMITH
(@) @MIAZER

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Financial assets SRMEE
FVTPL FBRBRIEANEBEIIE
Derivative financial instruments MTEEmIA - 3,241
Loans and receivables BRI EIE
Receivables related to a development BRI —IEERIEE 2 EWHIE
project 178,210 187,471
Deposit in designated bank account for ~ BLEEMET AR EIRITERS
development properties A EE 9,685 10,072
Trade and other receivables B 5N E M ERGRTE 634,610 773,800
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIRITHER 685,970 2,450,870
Short-term bank deposits RRERRITIF 5K 39,031 -
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 3,108,291 1,356,769
4,655,797 4,778,982
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e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

6. Financial Instruments - continued 6. €@ TH 4~
(a) Categories of financial instruments — continued (a) ST AR —~Z
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial liabilities EA= =R
FVTPL FRBERIEANBEIE
Derivative financial instruments PTESRmTA 16,700 24,408
At amortised cost bie: 311D
Trade and other payables B 5 N A ER FRIE 697,128 598,491
Amount due to a related company FE — B REE A R FIE 3,544,395 3,518,191
Amounts due to non-controlling interests ~ FEfI @A T 2
of subsidiaries JEIE AR AE 2 TR 132,000 152,576
Unsecured notes EIE R 4,566,553 3,761,206
Bank borrowings RITEE 11,029,088 9,527,652
19,969,164 17,558,116
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BBREABEERERBEE

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed in above
table. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group's financial results and its cash flows. Several
subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales and
purchases, but the management considers the amount of
foreign currency sales and purchase is insignificant. The
management considers the Group does not expose to
significant foreign currency risk in relation to transactions
denominated in Macau Pataca (“MOP”). Exposures on
balances which are denominated in MOP in group entities
with HK$ as functional currency are not considered
significant because MOP is pegged to HK$.

v
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6. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Market risk — continued
Foreign currency risk — continued

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk in relation to
the outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items at the end of the reporting period, which included
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
short-term bank deposits and bank balances and cash.
The sensitivity to foreign currency risks arising from the
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items has been determined based on the reasonably
possible change in foreign currency exchange rates
between Renminbi ("RMB”) and HK$. For a 5% (2015:
1%) strengthening in RMB against HK$, the Group’s
loss for the year will be decreased by HK$34,573,000
(2015: the Group’s profit for the year will be increased
by HK$25,437,000). If RMB had been weakened against
HK$ in an opposite magnitude and all other variables held
constant, the potential effect on the results would be equal
and opposite.

The Group is also exposed to foreign currency risk in
relation to the outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity
to foreign currency risk arising from the foreign currency
forward contracts has been determined based on the
reasonably possible change in the forward exchange rate
between RMB and HK$. For a 5% strengthening in RMB
against HK$, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year will be
decreased by HK$14,868,000 (2015: the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year will be increased by HK$43,452,000).
If RMB had been weakened against HK$ in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables held constant, the
potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits and short-
term bank deposits and fixed coupon rate unsecured
notes. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation primarily to its bank balances, variable-
rate amount due to a related company, interest rate swap
contract and bank borrowings. The Group entered into a
pay-fixed/receive-floating interest rate swap contract to
mitigate its exposures to cash flow interest rate risk.
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(b) BEEABREERERKE &

TE R —E

SN i — B
REBBRBERRRE B ZINEEE
BE¥IEE (BREES MEMEKRE B
ARIRITFER BRI ER IR
BRIRE ) AR INERR - R H B2 I
HEEEBIEEFTES 2 INERBR Z &
RS ThRIEAREE (AR ]) BB T
INESTER 2 SIER] e B BMETE - MAR
B BT E5% (20154F 1 1% ) M 5 A<
SERAFE 2 BB 234,573,000
PETT (20154 « NS 2 F 5 5 F #8380
25,437,000 7T ) ° fiff A R H B TR
RERE RFTEEMESRITTE  BIE
EEEKRERER 2 BIEFE-

RERE IR - AEB INEER AN AR ERIN
PERHAA 4 2 NS R RR  INE R BRA 49FT
EEZINERR 2 BURETIRIEARE
BT MR RHAER 2 AR pe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

6. Financial Instruments — continued 6. SRITHR 2
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MEREBEERERBEEK &

— continued
Market risk — continued TE R — &
Interest rate risk — continued F& [z — 42
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly FEEzBReREMNERE  FEEFRN
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank KE—HBEEARZBRRRITEERN
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”") arising from the Group’s advances EEZBEBRTAZERFE ([EBRTRA
from a related company and bank borrowings. ¥/ E])E® -
The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has AEBBSREN KRR 2GKRE - T)
been determined based on the exposure to interest rates BELFMSMEERBERREHRZ
for the abovementioned financial assets and liabilities M= RN EFNEE L SIE A
at the end of the reporting period and the reasonably FUARREFA—ERFIE M TS
possible change taking place at the beginning of each TE o BIRERFER 2 BB s B ENELFT
year and held constant throughout the respective year. & WRERESFFYRFEE - BRAE
The management’s assessment of the reasonably possible FERNRFIE -

change in interest rate and assuming that it took place at
the beginning of each year and held constant throughout
the respective year.

Except for bank balances and deposits using 5 basis BRERTT 45 84 o 17 SRUASTE AL B (20155 ¢
points (2015: 5 basis points), if interest rates had been 100 SIEEEL) AEAESN - 8 F X - FHOOM[EE
basis points (2015: 100 basis points) higher and all other 2 (20155 - 1001EEE) RFTEHME S
variables were held constant, the potential effect on post- RIFTE - BEARFERTIE (BB) R
tax (loss) profit for the year is as follows: M BIEFZINT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET
(Decrease) increase in post-tax (Ioss) FERTE (BE) R
profit for the year Rk 2>) 180
— Bank balances —iRITHE R (1,546) 669
— Amount due to a related company — N —EBEARKIE 29,596 (29,377)
~ Interest rate swap contract —NMEEHEL (1,037) 5,032
— Bank borrowings —R1TEE 71,079 (57,794)
98,092 (81,470)
If interest rates had been lower in an opposite magnitude WM E R R ERERFTBHMEEIR
and all other variables held constant, the potential effect on R - RIS R AEERK RIS RER 2 BT
the results would be equal and opposite. 2%
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6. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

— continued
Credit risk

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees provided by the
Group is arising from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position; and

e the financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 19.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt and
receivables related to a development project at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds and deposits in designated
bank account for development properties is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 59% (2015:
78%) and 82% (2015: 79%) of the total trade receivables
which was due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively within the hotel
and hotel related operations. The Directors consider that
there is no significant credit risk on the trade receivables
from the five largest customers given their strong financial
background and good creditability. The remaining trade
receivables balances are spread over a number of
customers.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

6. EMITH—~&
(b) BBRAKRERE

RERBE &

1= /52 B2

R2016F3 A31H » REBRA Y F 75 KEE
BITEERANEBIREPBERER A
SEUBBEAMAS &= ERRRE
£H:

o HAMBMAKMNEHEERS
BEEZEREE: K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BEHRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

6. Financial Instruments - continued 6. EMIT AR #Z
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MEREBEERERBEEK &

v
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— continued

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of banking facilities and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings and unsecured
notes as significant source of liquidity. At 31 March 2016,
based on the existing levels of bank balances and the
existing banking facilities available, the Group will be able
to meet its future cashflow requirements. Accordingly, the
management considers that the Group’s liquidity risk is
minimal.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank borrowings, with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is based on interest rate at the end
of the reporting period.
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RAe LA FENEEERBR DA
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TEOFHAZFE - R TIRBEAEE
ARtAEE &P RMZERAB IR
MRRTREMRR - LHE BB
R R B SE R IGER R IRTTR B TIFI A&k
FRREEEA - M T wmRITE R THEER
ey RTRENE - MBI E SR B B2 Eim
BETSRIBC e &R A MMETE -

SEOENBRESBE R - BFIEA
70 ARBERR S MRS B 2 A
1B o



6. Financial Instruments — continued 6.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
— continued

Liquidity risk — continued

In addition, the following table details the Group's
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual net cash outflows on derivative instruments
that settle on a net basis. The liquidity analysis for the
Group’s derivative financial liabilities is prepared based
on the contractual maturities as the management
considers that the contractual maturities are essential
for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows of

(b) BEEABREERERKE &

MBELEBGE—E

BESN PREBIIARETESBBIEZR
BES DT 2 FHIE AR IRIBAFRE S
AGEEZITETAZ RBRAOATR
HFEMRR - AEEITEASRBEZR
BEESH M HRBANIMA MRS
FRREEEEBRAEAEIH B SRR
ATERSRZFHRBLE-

derivatives.
Liquidity table MEEE K
Weighted Less than
average 1 year or Total Total
effective repayable 1 year to Over undiscounted carrying
interestrate  on demand 5 years 5years  cash flows amounts
mEFEE  SMER AERES
BERFE REREE 15256 5N MERHE BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
At 31 March 2016 201638310
Non-derivative financial FTELRERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B REMENTE - 697,128 - - 697,128 697,128
Amount due to a related R —HBEELRHE
company 3.66% 592,997 3,323,102 - 3,916,099 3,544,395
Amounts due to non-controlling &1 — R B 2 7l 2 FE 2k
interests of a subsidiary BRZE-HHE
- non-interest bearing - 132,000 - - 132,000 132,000
Variable-rate bank borrowings 2 2 IR{THEE 2.16% 3,272,096 6,402,310 2,104,716 11,779,122 11,029,088
Unsecured notes EEAZE 5.27% 223,666 5,056,203 - 5,279,869 4,566,553
Financial guarantee (Note) BHSEIR (H7E) - 941,600 - - 941,600 -
5,859,487 14,781,615 2,104,716 22,745,818 19,969,164
Derivative-net settlement TAETR-FHLE
Interest rate swap contract - net  FI =B HA 4 —F8E - 1,939 - - 1,939 1,923
Foreign currency forward INERHBAD-FH
contract - net - 14,777 - - 14,777 14,777
16,716 - - 16,716 16,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

6. Financial Instruments - continued 6. EMIT AR #Z
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MEREBEERERBEEK &
— continued
Liquidity risk — continued FEELRE &
Liquidity table — continued B ERHK B

Weighted Less than

average 1 year or Total Total

effective repayable 1 year to Over undiscounted carrying

interestrate on demand 5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
EFE  ARER RURAS

ERFIR  RERER 1555 5 RERE BREE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THT TEL TEL TEL THL

At 31 March 2015 R2015F3A31H
Non-derivative financial FITESRER

liabilities
Trade and other payables BHREMENFIE - 598,491 - - 598,491 598,491
Amount due to a related B —FEA R

company 3.27% 563,284 3,353,176 - 3,916,460 3,518,191
Amounts due to non-controlling BB A B 2 3%

interests of subsidiaries BB B

- non-interest bearing - 152,576 - - 162,576 152,576
Variable-rate bank overdraft FERTEX 1.54% 5,871 - - 5,871 5,871
Variable-rate bank borrowings 2B IR{THEE 217% 3,068,971 5,290,453 1764559 10,123,983 9,521,781
Unsecured notes FEAZE 541% 188,428 4,350,675 - 4,539,103 3,761,206
Financial guarantee (Note) BHISRIR (H2E) - 941,600 - - 941,600 -

5,519,221 12,994,304 1,764,559 20,278,084 17,558,116

Derivative-net settlement TAETA-FHELE

Interest rate swap contract - net  Fl &G HIA 4 —F58E - - 9,735 - 9735 9,368
Foreign currency forward
contracts - net SNEEBAH—FE - 1,084 13,956 - 15,040 15,040
1,084 23,691 - 24,775 24,408
Note:The amount included above for financial guarantee is the it : iﬁﬂﬁﬁ%{%Z@%’E%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁf%{E'
& 3 [} 2N S S 4
maximum amount the Group could be forced to settle under AEE A iﬁ%&@@}gfﬁﬁi”Bfg%iﬁﬁéﬂﬁ
the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that ??%$§§:b$ﬁﬂ§m*& i,HHXZ%Ea+~$$
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Fv@ﬁr@\ﬁﬂkﬁbﬁyfﬁﬁj?ﬁt%#i‘iﬁﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁ;%
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, i - JA:ZMEEH:E%E*HEE%E%{E%&/‘?1\5\
the Group considers that it is more likely than not that such ZEJ Ebl&ﬁﬁx ' ﬁﬁktﬂf&{éiﬂ ﬁb@fgﬂﬁzﬁé
an amount will not be payable under the arrangement. Efﬁiiﬁﬁ%%%%%ﬁ%ﬁg%ﬂgHjEEJEE\J%
However, this estimate is subject to change depending R A RENE -

on the probability of the counterparty claiming under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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6. Financial Instruments — continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(c)

— continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “less than 1 year or repayable on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March
2016 and 31 March 2015, the aggregate carrying amounts
of these bank loans amounted to HK$105,013,000 and
HK$155,281,000 respectively. Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the Directors do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will
be repaid within seven years (2015: fifteen years) after
the reporting date in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
will amount to HK$48,218,000, HK$49,839,000 and
HK$11,618,000 (2015: HK$18,979,000, HK$98,699,000
and HK$50,284,000) under the time band of “less than 1
year”, “1 year to 5 years” and “over 5 years” respectively.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

6. ﬁﬁmlﬂ_ﬂ%%
(b) BEEABREBERERKE &

(c)

FEELEE—Z

B AR IR BGE RIE R IRTTIEE
P BB BB R AT AT D E
IR ESK(EE | R 8 A - R201653
A318 KH2015F3A318 @ 2 ER171E
EmMEIREAE S B A£105,013,000% 7T &
155,281,000/ 7T * 48 5t e A= B 2 B 7%
R BEEHE RITTATRITEE
ZRENRFE RN EREF - ESBMREZ
ZLRTEEBGNRE BHE7F (2015
FAF ) IR B E R FTE T EE
FEHEE BN ASBELFERE
BRI DME]  [1EZ=5F R[5
F L | B RE IS 5 51l A48,218,000
78 7T ~ 49,839,000/ 7T X2 11,618,000/ 7T
(2015%F : 18,979,000/ JT * 98,699,00078
7T }50,284,000/8 7T )
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FeeREERERBBZRAERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

6. Financial Instruments - continued 6. ERMIITA—#Z&
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) EMIAZAREETE &
— continued
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial BEEMBEEUAAEBETEZXER
liabilities are measured at fair value on a recurring CTHEERTHEBZAAEE—Z

basis — continued
Fair value Valuation techniques and

Financial assets (liabilities) Fair value as at hierarchy key inputs
EHMEE(BE) AREE DMRABEESER HERMRIEGAHE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER THT
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL: Level 2 Discounted cash flow: Future cashflows
BRBRIRA L EEIEY H2M are estimated based on forward foreign
SRBE: currency rates (from observable yield

curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contract foreign currency

Foreign currency forward - 3,241 rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
contracts the credit risk of various counterparties.
= A RERERE  ARRERBIRIEE

SNEREIA K s N o

B BROMERER (R E MRS HR 2 T EE
o g AR ) K% 4078 SMEETE 2 - 45 = Bk

Financial liabilities at FVTPL: EHFHEERR 2L ETUREM

RS A £ RETEY CHE
TRAGE:

Foreign currency forward (14,777) (15,040)
contracts

SNEEHIA K

(i) Financial liabilities at FVTPL: Level 2 Discounted cash flow: Future cashflows

BRBREALBEEY E2M are estimated based on forward

@@f’é & B interest rates (from observable yield

curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contract interest rates,
Interest rate swap contract (1,923) (9,368) discounted at a rate that reflects the
MEEHEL credit risk of various counterparties.
ARBERE  RRREMENRIEE
MR (RER|RE ARz TERE
Hhix) RAEME THRRBREHFAH
EERE 2 b & T UABE M fdEt

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during RE, 20163 H31H 201543 H31H
the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015. \FEE B SR IR T R E
B
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6. Financial Instruments — continued
(d) Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offseting, enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments,
irrespective of whether they are offset in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.

The amounts recognised for the derivative financial assets
and derivative financial liabilities (including interest rate
swap contract, foreign currency forward contracts) do not
meet the criteria for offsetting in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position since the right of set-off of
the recognised amounts is only enforceable upon an event

6. E@T AR &
(d) SEH THEEHILEIHERISR
ELGEN RN REER S MaE

TRAERBERBRXAITTEFEEE T
e sos MRS B T A e A LUR =
RNEREERSREE BERZSTR
éﬂ%?%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁé%ﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁ

BRI D R A EAE A RER
SFRARIT AT ESREE R
ITEERAE (BEAREHALH RINE
EREH) R Z B ITENANEELR
BB R IRLE -

of default.
Gross
amount of
recognised
financial
liabilities
set-off
Gross in the
amounts of  consolidated
recognised statement
financial of financial
assets position
RirE8%
IOE
~ R
ERZcE CEILE
BESE afEeE
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR THER
At 31 March 2016 R2016%£3A31A
Derivatives fTETR
Liabilities aff
Interest rate swap contract FIREHAL (1,923) -
Foreign currency forward contract  SMNEEE A 4) (14,777) -
At 31 March 2015 #2015F3A31R
Derivatives fTETIA
Asset EE
Foreign currency forward contracts  SME & 4 4) 3,241 -
Liabilities af
Interest rate swap contract FIREHALH (9,368) -
Foreign currency forward contracts SMEEHIA 4 (15,040) -

Net amounts Related amounts
of financial not set-off in the
assets/ consolidated statment
liabilities of financial position
presented  RIMZEEBMRRAEHZ
in the HELE
consolidated
statement Cash
of financial Financial collateral
position  instruments received  Net amount
NEAuB
R &
HBIRZ
SREE,/ B K
AERE SRMIA ReEAm )i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR
(1,923) - - (1,923)
(14,777) - - (14,777)
3,241 (3,241) - _
(9,368) - - (9,368)
(15,040) 3,241 - (11,799
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

7. Revenue 7 WA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REEZWADHTIAT :
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET
Hotel and hotel related operations B TE OB 5 AR R
Service income from gaming operations ERER 2 RBEHBA 1,451,547 1,731,070
Hotel room income B EE WA 172,161 169,852
Food and beverage sales BEHRIHE 161,024 161,908
Others HAh 10,454 15,396
1,795,186 2,078,226
Sales of properties MEEE 2,971,634 12,750
Rental income from investment properties HEYERS KA 836,074 730,497
5,602,894 2,821,473
8. Segment Information 8. 2EER
The Group's operating and reportable segments are lease FEEZRERFAIZHREBHPRMERES
of properties, properties development and hotel and hotel YR R OB E OB EABREZETS - AR BLE
related operations for the purpose of resources allocation and RN EHERIR
assessment of performance.
The segment information reported externally was analysed HNEBER ¥R 2 D RRE R HIRIE AN R B EHDPT
on the basis of their products and services supplied by the R ZERERBOT BARAQARRITES
Group's operating divisions which is consistent with the internal (IITES]) - AEELERKE BERD
information that is regularly reviewed by the executive directors Pie & sHh R I E BB 2 W EPERHER — 5
of the Company (the “Executive Directors”), the chief operating LIRS E  AEERE Bt BIEEDE
decision makers, for the purposes of resource allocation BLAEmMIRE 2 ZRIAEAREE -

and assessment of performance. This is also the basis of
organisation in the Group, whereby the management has
chosen to organise the Group around differences in products
and services.
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8. Segment Information — continued

Principal activities of the operating and reportable segments
are as follows:

Lease of properties -  Completed investment properties
held for rental purpose

Properties — Properties development and
development redevelopment for sale purpose

Hotel and —  Hotel and hotel related operations in
hotel related Hong Kong and Macau, including
operations operations of mass market, VIP room

and slot machine operations and
provision of gaming-related marketing
and public relation services for Grand
Emperor Hotel in Macau

The Executive Directors review the hotel and hotel related
operations in Macau along with that in Hong Kong and hence
they are grouped and identified as a single operating segment
— hotel and hotel related operations.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represent the profit
earned by or loss suffered from each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, interest income,
finance costs, share of result of a joint venture and fair value
changes in derivative financial instruments. This is the measure
reported to the Executive Directors for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

8. Segment Information — continued 8. DEER—~&
Information regarding the above segments is reported below: B LdiHE 2 ﬁﬂ SR
For the year ended 31 March 2016 Bl Z2016F3H31H IFFZ
Segment revenue and results THWAREE
Hotel and
Lease of Properties  hotel related
properties  development operations Total
BJE BB E
NEEE MERR ElES aE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’00_0
TR FHER FER TR
Segment revenue - from external AERA-RENEP
customers 836,074 2,971,634 1,795,186 5,602,894
Segment results EES (2,484,530) 807,497 337,062 (1,339,971)
Interest income FEMA 90,894
Unallocated corporate expenses, net AP Ez £ ER— %4 (157,188)
Net loss on fair value changes in fTEeRIAZRAREBES
derivative financial instruments FEE (20,340)
Finance costs BBER (423,948)
Share of result of a joint venture PME—AEELECEE (80)
Loss before taxation BRE AR (1,850,633)
Taxation WA (379,032)
Loss for the year FEER (2,229,665)
Other information Hir &R
Amounts included in the measure of st EDMEEER A ZTE:
segment results:
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE - - (560) (560)
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #)% - R RREZFTE
equipment - (735) (168,231) (168,966)
Release of prepaid lease payments B FER SRR - - (18,100) (18,100)
Fair value decrease of investment R &MER L BERD
properties (3,167,583) - - (3,167,583)
Impairment loss on prepaid lease BREENTZREESE
payments - - (49,034) (49,034)
Write-downs of properties under FELE 2 ERPME MR
development for sale - (132,884) - (132,884)
Amounts regularly provided to the Executive Directors but EHRETHTESESEN BEAERI ARG
not included in the measure of segment results (included in AZFIEB (FFARDEZEER—F5) -
unallocated corporate expenses, net):
HK$’000
FHET
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, M¥BEEHE Z9%E -
at corporate level MeERBHBITE 35,516
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8. Segment Information — continued

8. DHEER /&
#HZE 2015¢3ﬁ3751t¢F

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Segment revenue and results DEMAREE
Hotel and
Lease of Properties  hotel related
properties  development operations Total
BIE KB
nERE Y E e EaE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THL TR TR
Segment revenue - from external AERA-RENPEP
customers 730,497 12,750 2,078,226 2,821,473
Segment results NEER 1,370,453 (64,293) 680,615 1,986,775
Interest income FEMA 89,929
Unallocated corporate expenses, net KBz S¥E B — %5 (140,853)
Net loss on fair value changes in ITHESRMIAZ AR EEE
derivative financial instruments FER (13,357)
Finance costs HHER (296,432)
Share of result of a joint venture ME—HAELECEE (71)
Profit before taxation BRBEA & 1,625,991
Taxation HE (350,298)
Profit for the year FEHER 1,275,693
Other information HitbER
Amounts included in the measure of s &N BEER T AZTE:
segment results:
Reversal of allowance for doubtful ~ [EI REE /5
debts - - 2,612 2,612
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% - = KR EZTE
equipment - (683) (155,266) (155,949)
Release of prepaid lease payments BB AN E - - (18,702) (18,702)
Fair value increase of investment REMERABEEM
properties 737,708 - - 737,708

Amounts regularly provided to the Executive Directors but

EHIRH TR TEFR B EDARAR IR

not included in the measure of segment results (included in AZFEB (FFARDEEZEBRA—FR) -
unallocated corporate expenses, net):
HK$'000
FET
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, “¥EBEEE 2% -
at corporate level HEERBEZIE 28,503
No analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by operating HRASEIREE D HEI D EERBED
segment is disclosed as they are not regularly provided to the Tﬁ]ﬁﬂmﬁﬁ%f/ﬁ WITESERE - St &
Executive Directors for review. WEZEDNTe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

8. Segment Information — continued 8. PEER-—Z
Geographical information i & R
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC, REBNER PRI R ERLEER-
Macau and UK.
The Group's revenue from external customers and information REERBINIREP ZWARBBEIERE
about its non-current assets, other than receivables related BE (TREEH—IEERIAR 2 RIFIER
to a development project and interest in a joint venture, by R—EEEhE s #ER) 2B (IREEZH
geographical location of the assets are detailed below: BAEE D) FAAT
Revenue from customers Non-current assets
REBEFZBA FRBEE
For the year ended 31 March As at 31 March
BZ3B3NALEE W3A31H
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET THET FHER FAET
Hong Kong B 3,840,934 764,196 29,579,791 30,488,098
The PRC t 5,290 5,664 5,990,156 4,896,838
Macau il 1,738,619 0,047,544 4,251,070 4,813,145
UK i 18,051 4,069 735,507 402,762
5,602,894 2,821,473 40,556,524 40,600,893
Information about major customers FEEFZER
During the year, revenue derived from one customer (2015: RAFEFEAN KRBEMEAERE LB A10%A
one) which contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Ez—%(2015F : —R)BF 2 A EZE
Group’s revenue amounted to HK$1,455,131,000 (2015: 1,455,131,000/% 7T (20154F : 1,735,421,000/%
HK$1,735,421,000). The revenue is related to the hotel and TC) ° :Z A ELE IR MOE R B TS A R

hotel related operations.
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9. Other Losses

9. HEE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Net loss on fair value changes in derivative $T4E 4T A AR BEZ
financial instruments SHEERTFE 13,357
Impairment loss on prepaid lease TERNEENRZRIEEE
payments (Note a) (Ktita) -
Write-downs of properties under FHEL & 2 B RERPYE 2 MR
development for sale (Note b) (K1z#b) -
Net exchange loss b 5 B 1BF 48,939
62,296
Notes: HtaE -
(a) During the year, impairment indicator of decline in assets’ value (@) PAARFER - RPIE R 5 FEAOE T8 & 5

due to economic downturn is noted in the Inn Hotel Macau. The
Directors conducted an impairment assessment on the hotel’s
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
by reviewing their recoverable amounts. An impairment loss of
HK$49,034,000 in respect of prepaid lease payments as at 31

March 2016 has been recognised (2015: nil).

(b) During the year, the Directors reviewed the recoverability of (b)
the properties under development for sale with reference to
the current market environment and recognised write-downs of

HK$132,884,000 (2015: nil).

EEEERVORENR EEC B BRTZ
EERYE HEDREAREMGRENZSN
AR E S EETRENE FHEBABNHEENK
B4R 18 85 1849,034,0003% 7T 2 7201643 A 31
AR (20154 + 48) o

RARFER BEELRBRRITHHRERYEIEE
HEZERPYENRDAITHEETRS X
TR MR 132,884,00058 7T (20154  4£) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

10. Finance costs 10. & A
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Interest on: B
— bank borrowings —RITIEE 197,007
— other borrowings —Hibg & 4,229
— unsecured notes —EERRE 114,851
—amount due to a related company — e —RREE R R FRIE 53,103
369,190
Imputed interest expense on amount due  JEff —fREARIZIEZ
to a related company JEET M B R 61,769
430,959
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of BREEBREERANFTZ
qualifying assets EER b KIE (139,723)
291,236
Bank charges HRITER 5,196
296,432

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying
capitalisation rates ranging from 2.82% to 3.01% (2015: from

2.01% to 2.62%) per annum.
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11. (Loss) Profit Before Taxation 1. BRBiLAT (BE18) &R

(Loss) profit before taxation has been FRELRT (B8 )& F Bk
arrived at after charging:

Auditor’'s remuneration G Ea 6,763
Allowance (reversal of allowance) for RERB B (B EBE)

doubtful debts (2,612)
Depreciation of property, plant and IER - YN E -

equipment 184,452
Release of prepaid lease payments FERR B E K 18,702
Commission expenses in gaming BEEBZAERAX

operations (included in selling and (Bt AHERTSHEER)

marketing expenses) 412,297
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented FAEWMEZ K LHEHS

premises 8,309
Staff costs, including directors’ BIMA (BIEEFHER

remuneration and retirement benefit RRBAGHEI 50

scheme contributions (note 12) (KizE12) 648,471
Cost of properties held for sale recognised B R AR 2

as an expense FHEL S KA 8,322
Write-downs of properties under ERRARIZ CHELEZ

development for sale recognised BRI 2 WOR

as an expense -
Cost of inventories in respect of hotel and B #ER AR 2BE &

hotel related operations recognised as B 5 AR R E B F B

an expense 53,830
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEWZE MR REHCEBE

equipment 1,286
and after crediting: REEFTA:
Interest income FEWA 89,929
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and 12.E FETHAEZHMERE
Employees’ Emoluments & B
() Directors’ emoluments (i) EEE2
Non-
executive
director Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
FHTES HTES BYFBHTES
Luk Fan Man Cheung Wong
Siu Man, Wong Seung, Ping  Tak Ming, Cheng Chan Liu
Semon Chi Fai Vanessa Keung Gary KaYu Hon Piu  Hing Hung Total

()3 ESE B RA® EEH BER REE BEE g
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
(Note ¢) (Note d)
(HiEe)  (Hfitd)

2016 2016%F
Fees we - 300 300 150 220 220 137 84 1,411
Other emoluments: Hih e :
Salaries and other e REMER
benefits (Note a) (Wizta) - 4,005 2265 4447 - - - - 10,717

Performance related ~ HXBREEZ
incentive payment REFE (Hfatp)

(Note b) - 3,000 3,000 6,000 - - - - 12,000
Retirement benefit RIABFRIFEIfRR
scheme contributions - 280 158 18 - - - - 456
Total emoluments aEe - 7,585 5,723 10,615 220 220 137 84 24,584
2015 20155
Fees we - 300 300 150 200 200 - 200 1,350
Other emoluments: Hitie:
Salaries and other e RAMET
benefits (Note a) (Wzta) - 3744 2004 4048 . - . - 9,99

Performance related ~ HXBREHZ
incentive payment REFE (Hfitp)

(Note b) - 4,000 4,000 6,000 - - - - 14,000
Retirement benefit RIABFRIF BN
scheme contributions - 262 140 18 - - - - 420
Total emoluments @ - 8,306 6,444 10,416 200 200 - 200 25,766
Notes: B & -
(a) Other benefits include non-exclusive use of motor vehicles, (a) EMBEANSEERIEERARE HE g
yacht, club debentures and membership. FrERREHE-
(b) The performance related incentive payment is determined (b) HERRBEBREVKENLBEERNZ
with reference to the operating results taking into MeaxEWERETHAE BAKRBRA
account certain adjustments, individual performance and g Wi SR EE

comparable market statistics for the year.

(c) Mr. Chan Hon Piu was appointed as Director on 18 August (c) MREIZSCER2015F8A18HEZTAE
2015. He
(d) Mr. Liu Hing Hung retired as Director on 18 August 2015. (d) BEEHEEN2015F8F18HEEES-
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12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and
Employees’ Emoluments — continued

1R.EE - FTETBRAEBZHMERE
E¥FM—~Z

(i) Directors’ emoluments — continued (i) ESe—#&
The Chief Executives of the Company are also the KRB EBITBRABNAES AEE
Directors and therefore the emoluments of the Chief THABZME BN EXHEE -
Executives have been disclosed above.
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above NERMITEEME I EERWER
were mainly for their services in connection with the ERARRNABRAEEEHMEHRE 2
management of the affairs of the Company and the RN o LA _EFTRIENITE B B IETT
Group. The emoluments of non-executive directors and EENMEEEERBEREEIARRAE
independent non-executive directors shown above were ERM 2 AR H R
mainly for their services as directors’ of the Company.
(ii) Employees’ emoluments (i) 12 S %M
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in EASEBERAEESFMALTH 38
the Group, three (2015: three) were Directors whose (20155 :3R) RES HEZHESFHR
emoluments are set out above. The total emoluments of X825 (20154 : 22 ) eI A
the remaining two (2015: two) individuals were as follows: T FHNEREN T
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Salaries and other benefits e MEMET 14,713 16,299
Retirement benefit scheme RIRERIFT B
contributions 125 214
14,838 16,513
Their emoluments were within the following bands: REHMN T LA T EE
Number of individuals
A
2016 2015

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,0017% 7. %£5,000,000% 72 1 -

HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,0017% 7T £7,000,000/%5 7T - 1

HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000 9,500,001/% 7T 210,000,000/ 7T 1 1

No emolument was recognised or paid by the Group
to the Directors as compensation for loss of office and
inducement to join for both years. No Director had waived

any emoluments during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BEHRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

12. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and 12.E FETHAEZHMERE
Employees’ Emoluments — continued EEFM -2
(iii) Retirement benefit scheme (i) ERAREFGE

v
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The Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which is registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the
“ORSO” Scheme) and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of independent trustees. Employees who were
members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment
of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within
the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme,
whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1
December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to profit or loss
represents contributions payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

The Group also operates a defined contribution retirement
scheme for all qualifying employees of a subsidiary of
the Group in Macau since 1 September 2014. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under control of independent trustees.
The retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or loss
represents contributions payable to funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. Where there
are employees of the Group who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau and
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the Macau and PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage
of its payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

During the year, the retirement benefit scheme
contributions were HK$13,535,000 (2015: HK$18,175,000).

REEH (BFR) BRLAF

REE2HEREREHEFETE D8RR
BEBBFERIGT RO BER
RETEI ([BEZERIRET S ) RH2000612
ABREEEEHERTES T EEHIRRL
ZoEFIMAEEETE ([RERETE) -
ZEEICEENASEZEESHE
B WAREFHFE LXHBITEEA
EIR o LN RTES AT BRI AT B RS R IK
BB 2 EEHAIEEBREERER
RerBlRsEm2naES el ER
200012 A1 B AR FRBE ST A A EE
ZEEBHAELMAEESTE-

REBHEAHIRZERENERT SRS
B AR EIRAEE 2 L R HZEE
SIERM 2K - WE R ENER T 28}
AR BEERAGE] AEBAXNZ
HR AT B FE 4RO R MR AH SR RR T £ L 4R -

B2014F9 A 1H#E  NEE AR EER
Bz —FENB AR ZBEAERESR
2 INTEREBRFERIKRETE - Zr 8l 2 B ER
RNEE 7 BENFHRIE  WAREST R
BRRZEBILE AERE - REZ AR
ZIRINFT B BRI ANEEIEE BEE
RAETE 2 LR E S BN 2 1R 8
ANEBEEERNER T2 HHRATR HZ
FE) - AARSBAES 2 A B ERR
Uk KR T /B 00

AEE BN FEMB AR 2EETY
7 Bl A% BB PIBU Ko A B BRI & 38 2 B
REBRINENFEIZKE - NEBZAR
REHIZ X E B DL RZFRKEN
SHEIHFRABI RN - REBEZFRIK
BAIET8IBAYE 2 BT ERN IR S
ZIREEITH R

FACERRBHFEERSER
13,635,000/ 7T (20154F : 18,175,0007%
L) °



13. Taxation

Tax charge comprises:

Current tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax

Macau Complementary Income Tax
(1)

13. Bi 1R

Reversal of CT provision in prior years

(Over) underprovision in prior years
CT
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
Hong Kong Profits Tax
UK Income Tax

Deferred taxation (note 34)
Current year

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
RIE B3 -
REAFEIE
BEENEB 51,540
SRPIFTIS R TTE
(IPrEwmzEsl) 83,763
135,303
BEAFEMEHATRE (21,846)
TF (BERE BETR
FSH AT -
PRI TSR ([REMER]) 3,369
BEENEB (120)
HEIFT1SH -
3,249
RIERIA (K1 5134)
REE 233,592
350,298

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

The CT is calculated at the applicable rate of 12% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Pursuant to the CT law, the CT assessment on the estimated
assessable profit in a year of assessment will be lapsed in five
consecutive years after that year of assessment. At the end of
the reporting period, the Directors reassessed the adequacy
of the CT provision and determined to reverse part of the
Group’s relevant CT provision of HK$39,837,000 for the 2010
year of assessment (2015: HK$21,846,000 for the 2009 year of
assessment) accordingly.

UK Income Tax is calculated at the applicable rate of 20% of
the estimated assessable profits for current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

13. Taxation — continued 13. B8 — &
The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) FA fﬂlﬁﬁi AT EAR A M a2 E i
profit before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss FATE 2 BRTAT (B ) A BRI T -

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
(Loss) profit before taxation FRELRT (B8 ) & F (1,850,633) 1,625,991
Tax (credit) charge at Hong Kong Profits Tax 2 & B FI155i16.5%+F & 2 Fi18
of 16.5% (#E4) X I (305,354) 268,289
Tax effect of share of result of a joint venture  D{E—RIA & DEEEHKTE 13 12
Tax effect of income not taxable BT = B ERRWAZ
for tax purpose Mz E (185,460) (206,401)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BB ME TR IR 2
for tax purpose M2 822,985 253,450
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AR EER ZTIBEE
recognised (16,781) (871)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KERRBEEBZRIETE 23,194 16,473
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERATMAERFHEER 2
differences not recognised Mg E 27,810 -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries M A RN EMm A A E AL
operating in other jurisdictions MENER & 53,612 37,432
Reversal of tax provision in prior years BOBAFEHERE (39,837) (21,846)
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFE (BEREB)BETRE (1,717) 3,249
Others Hith 567 511
Taxation for the year FARIE 379,032 350,298

v
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14. Dividends 14. R B
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT T
Dividends recognised as distribution FABBIED IR ZRE
during the year:
Interim dividend paid for 2016: HK$0.045  E.Jk201645F H AR & -
per share (2015: HK$0.05 per share in B 1%0.0457% 7T, (20154
respect of 2015) 20154 Kk 3 J%0.05/4 7T ) 165,489 183,589
Final dividend paid for 2015: HK$0.06 per £ /kK20154F R HIA% 8.
share (2015: HK$0.059 per share in Fh%0.06/8 7T (20154 :
respect of 2014) 20144 K 39 120.05975 7T ) 220,653 216,635
386,142 400,224

The final dividend of HK$0.055 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2016 (2015: final dividend of HK$0.06 per
share) amounting to approximately HK$202,265,000 has been
proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

15. (Loss) Earnings Per Share

The calculations of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company
are based on the following data:

BEEHRBEE20166F3A31B IHFEER
0.055/% 7T (20154F : R HARR B & A%0.068 7T)
2 AHARL B, H#7202,265,00078 7T * AR
HREERRAFRKS AR A AIEE -

15. 81 (BB ER

ARRIEBRATEARGERERLET

(E18) BRI TR BIA T 2R & -

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic FistEEREANR#E (Fi8)
and diluted (loss) earnings per share BAERERZ (E8) BT
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to the ~ AA BB AEIEEE
owners of the Company (EE) = (2,391,188) 898,129
2016 2015
Number of shares idvip 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary M ETRERNEE (F51E)
shares in issue for the purpose of basic AREFRZEETEAR
and diluted (loss) earnings per share IIREFH & 3,676,189,998 3,671,776,192
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

15. (Loss) Earnings Per Share — continued 15. 8 (B8 B —4~&

The weighted average number of ordinary shares has been
adjusted by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
issued due to the exercise of share options of the Company
during the year.

For the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, there are no
dilutive effects from the Company’s outstanding share options
as the exercise price of these share options is higher than the
average market price of the Company’s shares during that year.

ERRIEFSHE AN FARARITEARR]
PRI T2 BB ME B E R -

B 220165 M2015F3A31H IEFE - A QA
ZRMARITEBRET B ENE  REAANE
MEEZEERENTEESKRAQRRD
FFHTRE -

H 220165 N2015F3A31H IEFE - WHER
KABIKTB AR R EREFEER AR ([H
SRR | )BT 2 B AT TR E -

There were no outstanding share options in issue by the
Company’s subsidiary, Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited
(“Emperor E Hotel”), during the years ended 31 March 2016
and 2015.

16. REWHE

16. Investment Properties

2016 2015
Investment Investment
Completed properties Completed properties
investment under investment under
properties  development Total properties  development Total
BEK BRP (557374 EREF
REME REME ok BREME BREME k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FTHET T T
At fair value BAAREE
At beginning of the year REA 28,409,060 8,116,000 36,525,060 26,495,675 6,645,000 33,140,675
Exchange realignment SNEFHE (44,443) (235,822) (280,265) 875 4,056 4,931
Additions NE 2,140,461 1,208,699 3,349,160 2,438,044 442152 2,880,196
Disposals g (3,600) - (3600)  (238,450) - (238,450)
Transfer from investment properties BRRTREANEERZER
under development to completed RIREME
investment properties 1,857,590 (1,857,590) - - - -
Transfer from completed investment ~ BE AN ENZEHEZRE
properties to investment properties RREME (M)
under development (Note) (819,000) 819,000 - - - -
Transfer from property, plant and AM¥ KERZJEEEZE
equipment to completed investment AR IR EME
properties 80,000 - 80,000 - - -
(Decrease) increase in fair value, net A7t {EE Ofi) B0 (3,948,296) 780,713 (3,167,583) (287,084) 1024792 737,708
At end of the year RER 27,671,772 8,831,000 36,502,772 28,409,060 8,116,000 36,525,060

Note: During the year, certain completed investment properties were
transferred to investment properties under development upon
commencement of redevelopment of the properties with a view
to earn rentals and for capital appreciation at a fair value of
HK$819,000,000 at the date of transfer.

Mat: RER ETCEREEMERYDESERM
AECEBEEHEFRRENE W ABERA
CREFEEABE REBEBABZAAE
& £819,000,000/% JT

v
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16. Investment Properties — continued

The carrying amount of investment properties comprises
properties situated in:

16. REYXE— 2
S B BRI A T T S

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT THET

Hong Kong BE 27,555,265 28,602,698
PRC Fh 5,952,500 4,889,000
Macau SEPY 2,259,500 2,630,600
UK B 735,507 402,762
36,502,772 36,525,060

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at each
of the reporting period have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on those dates by Memfus Wong
Surveyors Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
property valuers not connected with the Group, in accordance
with the HKIS Valuation Standards (2012 Edition) issued by
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

For completed investment properties, the valuations have
been arrived at with reference to market evidence of recent
transaction prices for similar properties and rental income using
the applicable market yields for the respective locations and
types of properties.

For investment properties under development, the valuations
have been arrived at assuming that the investment properties
will be completed in accordance with the development
proposals and the relevant approvals for the proposals have
been obtained. The valuations include key factors such as the
market value of the completed investment properties, which
are estimated with reference to recent sales evidence of similar
properties in the nearest locality as available in the relevant
market with adjustments made by the valuers to accounts
for differences in the locations and other factors specific
to determine the potential sales proceeds, and deducting
the development costs and required profit margin from the
investment properties which are derived from the interpretation
of prevailing investor requirements or expectations at the
valuation dates.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

REBMARBELLHERFFIERIEDS K
BEXNIRERGRZMEERIVMERRIAEER
A BADBEMARRREYE-

AEEREMENERESHE 2 AR EETS
RIFFEFZERGRITTAR AR (EALEE L &
FRE 2B & BRERYEMAER) N%ER
HREEBHEMBSRM 2 BB EME
SHEZER (20126 M) 1T 2 HEMETE

PERRIEMEMS - AERBEEE YR
ISR ZEREERNEEAZME
KIRE 2 BAT SN m 2 HEWAKEE -

ABERPEMEMS - HEHIBRREDE
HeRFERABEXMIEL  BERETE
EEARLE - HERECERIRENEZT
BEEFATEERZ W2RAHRAER TSR
HEE MR FREYFETHR Mk
EffEREUEERREMABRAZIELR
B PUBEEEHE PSR BHRIRE
M2 BRRANAERZ MEER (HEHF
TRERBREENHER 2 ERLTAH
mEESL)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

16. Investment Properties — continued 16. REME—Z

During the year, the Group leased out some of the owned-
occupied properties for rental income. The buildings were
transferred to investment properties and measured at fair
value at the date of transfer accordingly. The fair value of the
properties at the date of transfer was HK$80,000,000. The gain
on revaluation, amounting to HK$72,796,000 was credited to
the asset revaluation reserve directly.

During the year, the net interest capitalised in investment
properties under development amounted to HK$75,032,000
(2015: HK$59,232,000).

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used),
as well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.

RER AEBBETERYEDE  LABER
WA -EFCEHBEZREME WHE
REZAPNAABEFE - WERERA
B8 7 N 42 (B 18 /480,000,00078 7T » B U 751
72,796,0008 0 EEETABEEHHEH -

RER BERPREMENEM T B FEA
75,032,000/ 7T (2015%F : 59,232,000/ 7T ) °

PMEETMRZ AR BER  WEZ&REM&E
RERmE 2 R Rk -

FRAERTTEZS TRIZHABLS
WEWMEZ DA BENABEZER (LER
FrRA 2 BERT R EZHARE) WRIR
BAABEAEZIEGH ARG 2 JEHRRE
EARBEFAEMHEAZALBESEH (F1
3R o

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement Fair value Valuation techniques Sensitivity/relationship of unobservable
of financial position Fair value hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
REEHBMRRRS HERTE FAREBAHBEHAAEE
AEEFEE 2 RENFE AAREE DABESR FEBAUE EATARRAANE ZHBE/BE
2016 2015
HK$000  HK$000
TER FET
Hong Kong
B4

Retail shops/complexes 16,079,450 17,416,323 Level 3

Direct comparison Market unit rate, mainly taking into account

A significant increase in the market unit rate

method with market ~ the time, location, frontage and size, between  used would result in a significant increase in

unit rate as the key the comparables, which ranged from

the fair value of the investment properties, and

input HK$5,000 to HK$950,000 (2015: HK$5,800to  vice versa.
HK$1,400,000) per square foot

TERR/B5 £30

BRLRE UTSE THEUES IREHRALENERZ  ARATSELESARENGSIBREDE

RS EATEHA K UE BEARAN ENTEEAR ZAREBEABEEN R2T%-
Hig 5,000 7L £950,0007% 7T (20154 : 5,80075 7T

%1,400,000% L)

v
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16. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement Fair value
of financial position Fair value hierarchy
RERBBRRARS
AEEAEEZRENE ANEE DABEER
2016 2015
HK$'000  HK$000
TERT FET
Retail shops/complexes 3,339,000 3,675,000 Level 3
TEES/ 55 X7
Retail/commercial/ 1,828,000 1,945,000 Level3

residential properties
under development

BRTZE/WE/AE
IES

F3R

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERTE
TERAHE

Direct capitalisation
method with market
unit rent and
capitalisation rate as
the key input

BREMUE U

BUEEREALE
ERIRBARE

Residual method
The key inputs are:

BEE
TREARER:

(1) Gross
development
value

(1) FEEEE

(2) Developer's profit

@) BERAEZEMN

16. R EWE —

Significant unobservable inputs

ERENE 2PN ¢

Monthly rent, based on saleable floor area
using direct market comparables and taking
into account of time, location, frontage and
size of properties, which ranged from HK$38
to HK$1,700 (2015: HK$52 to HK$2,300) per
square foot

FAMAL BREMSERTLENEZ LR
EEE TS RNEIRE LE BEE
BAN ENFEEHRIBHETE, 7008 T
(20155 : 52 L 22,300 L)

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
capitalisation of rental income potential, nature
of the properties, prevailing market condition,
which ranged from 2.4% to 3.5% (2015: 2.8%
10 3.3%) per annum

BRER G RBERSUAZER -]
FZWE BTSN ENTFEF24%%E
35% (20154 : 2.8%%3.3% )

Gross development value on completion basis,
mainly taking into account the time, location,
design, frontage, layout and size between

the comparables and the properties, which
ranged from HK31,200 to HK$90,000 (2015:
HK$75,280 to HK$941,000) per square foot

REREENHRREE TREH TR
NERZEMER B (B R B
- HREAN AN FEFHRI008TE
90,0007 7C (2016%F : 75,280/ TL 941,000/
)

Developer's profit at 12% — 15% (2015: 2.5%
- 15%) taking into account the construction
progress of the property

BREZHF A12%—15% (20156
25%-15% )  EEt RZME L TIREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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P

Sensitivity/relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FAREBAHBEHAAEE
ZBRE /B

The higher the monthly rent, the higher the fair
value, and vice versa.

AlER ARREELSS R2HA-

The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the
fair value, and vice versa.

EAfLEEE ARABESE K24

The higher the gross development value, the
higher the fair value, and vice versa.

mEREELS AAAEEES R2TA-

The higher the developer's profit, the lower the
fair value, and vice versa.

BERAEMER  MALBEBE R2TA-

v
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E
16. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement Fair value Valuation techniques
of financial position Fair value hierarchy and key inputs
REEHBRART HERTE
AEEFEE 2 RENE AAREE AEESER TERAYE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Offices premises 3,925,900 3175150 Level3 Direct comparison
method with market
unit rate as the key
input
bNEL E3R BEREE UTSHE
UEefEAE ;&A/\
B
Industrial premises 1,588,995 1,608,095 Level3 Direct comparison
method with market
unit rate as the key
input
I0% £3h BEENEE UTSE
ma%mxm
g
Residential premises 793,920 783,130 Level 3 Direct comparison
method with market
unit rate as the key
input
FEnz £3m BERLEE UT5E
UBESERIEHA
&
Macau
A
Retail shops/complexes 1,066,800 1,190,500 Level 3 Direct comparison

TERR/B5

v
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method with market
unit rate as the key
input

BEIEE UTHE
fIBEEREREA
#iz

A+

HE

16. REW % —

Significant unobservable inputs

ERENE 2PN ¢

Market unit rate, mainly taking into account
the time, location, quality, floor level and size,
between the comparables, which ranged from
HK$7,000 to HK$32,700 (2015: HK$5,900 to
HK$20,000) per square foot

MEENES  FELARALENER 2K
HNE - ER BERAN ENTEFEAR
7,000/ 7L 32,7007 7T (20154 : 59008 L&
20,000 7T)

Market unit rate, mainly taking into account
the time, location, quality, floor level and size,
between the comparables, which ranged from
HK$1,600 to HK$7,100 (2015: HK$1,650 to
HK$7,100) per square foot

miEEIRE E@éﬁ&ﬁtw%%ﬁz&#
Fﬂ g Bx BERAN ENTEEAIR
1,600 7LE7,100% 7T (20154 : 1,650;%%%
7,100%7T)

Market unit rate, mainly taking into account the
time, location, quality, view, floor level and size,
between the comparables, which ranged from
HK$4,400 to HK$25,000 (2015: HK$4,600 to
HK$25,000) per square foot

MHEENES F2LH RALBNER 25
BE EE BB BERAN ENTE
T J71R4,4007% TEE 25,0007 7T (20154 : 4,600
HILE25,00047L)

Market unit rate, mainly taking into account the
time, location, frontage and size, between the
comparables, which ranged from HK$6,800 to
HK$151,000 (2015: HK$7,700 to HK$171,000)
per square foot

MHEENES F2E RALENERZ
B%F'ﬁ E BEARAN ENTEFAR
6,800/ 7L 151,000/ 7T (20156 : 7,700 7T
Z171,0007T)

B8 (BFR) BRAF

:b

===1

E
<

/115

Sensitivity/relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FAREBAHBEHAAEE
ZHRE /B

A significant increase in the market unit rate
used would result in a significant increase in
the fair value of the investment properties, and
vice versa.

FRAmS A SR EE RS BURE DR
ZRABEREEN R2/A.

A significant increase in the market unit rate
used would result in a significant increase in
the fair value of the investment properties, and
vice versa.

FERAmS NS RIEE RS BURENE
ZRABEREEN R2HA-

A significant increase in the market unit rate
used would result in a significant increase in
the fair value of the investment properties, and
vice versa.

PR M SRS KBRS R ENE
ZRRBEREEN K2R

A significant increase in the market unit rate
used would result in a significant increase in
the fair value of the investment properties, and
vice versa.

FrRAm S B A E KEE NS5 BRE D%
ZRABERBEMN R2TA-



Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement Fair value
of financial position Fair value hierarchy
RERBBRRARS
AEEAEEZRENE ANEE DABEER
2016 2015
HK$000  HK$000
TER FET
Retail/commercial 1,153,000 1,397,000 Level 3
properties under
development
LRPTE WEDE £3m
Residential premises 39,700 43100 Level 3

16. Investment Properties — continued

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERTE
TERAHE

Residual method
The key inputs are:

BE%

EL-3UN ¢ VR

(1) Gross
development
value

(1) F#EeEE

(2) Level
adjustments

@ BEER

(3) Developer's profit

Q) ERAZEN

Direct comparison
method with market
unit rate as the key
input

BENRE UDHE
fUBEERTREA
Hiz

16. R EWE —

Significant unobservable inputs

ERENE 2PN ¢

Gross development value on completion basis,
mainly taking into account the time, location,
design, frontage, layout and size between

the comparables and the properties, of
HK$31,650 to HK$158,252 (2015: HK$34,951
to HK$174,757) per square foot

EEAREENRRERE T 2L RATLE
MERZEMERZER B R BE
B BREXN ENTEF AR 650ETE
158,252/ 7T (20154 : 349516 TLE 174,757
)

Level adjustment on individual floor of the
properties ranged from about 20% to 35%
(2015: 20% to 35%) on specific levels

NEERREZRERAZ NTHTEEZH
20%ZE35% (20154 : 20%E35% )

Developer's profit at 12% (2015: 10%), taking
into account the construction progress of the
property

BEEZENR12% (20155 :10% ) 5t K
ZMEZTIRER

Market unit rate, mainly taking into account
the time, location, quality, view, floor level and
size, between the comparables, which was
HK$7,200 (2015: HK$7,700 to HK$7,900) per
square foot

MHEENES  F2EH RALBMER 285
BuE Ex REBERANN HAST
J7R7,2007 7T (20154 : 7,700/ 7L 27,9007

)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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Sensitivity/relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FAREBAHBEHAAEE
ZBRE /B

The higher the gross development value, the
higher the fair value, and vice versa.

REgEEds JArEEES R2TA.

The higher the upward level adjustment, the
higher the fair value, and vice versa.

BELBUS BAREEYS RZHFR-

The higher the developer's profit, the lower the
fair value, and vice versa.

BFREENES MAARERE R2T%-

A significant increase in the market unit rate
used would result in a significant increase in
the fair value of the investment properties, and
vice versa.

PR m SRS KBNS BRE D%
ZRABERBEN RZHA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E
16. Investment Properties — continued

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement

of financial position Fair value
RESHBRRRS
AEEFEEZRENE AEE
2016 2015
HK$000  HK$000
TER FHT
PRC
H
Retail shops/complexes 102,500 115,000
TEEH/ES
Retail/commercial 5,850,000 4,774,000
properties under
development
BROTE /HENE

v
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Fair value
hierarchy

DAEEER

Level 3

Level 3

340

Valuation techniques

and
f5E
B

key inputs
R R
BAYE

Direct comparison
method with market
unit rate as the key
input

BRLRE UTSE

firfe
#iz

SIERIRBA

Residual method
The key inputs are:

BE%

IE
(1)

BAHER:

Gross
development
value

REREE

Level adjustment

BERE

Developer's profit

BRA R

16. R EWZE —

Significant unobservable inputs

ERENE 2PN ¢

Market unit rate, mainly taking into account the
time, location, frontage and size, between the
comparables, which ranged from HK$1,700 to
HK$3,700 (2015: HK$2,200 to HK$3,900) per
square foot

MEEMESE  FELHRALBER 2K
A fE  BEERAN ENTFEFHIRI,700
AILES 70078 7T (20155 1 2,200/ 7L 23,900
BT)

Gross development value on completion basis,
mainly taking into account the time, location,
design, frontage, layout and size between the
comparables and the properties, which ranged
from HK$770 to HK$10,161 (2015: HK$765 to
HK$8,867) per square foot

REREENBRBEE 2L RULER
MERZSMER 2BMH B G BE
A-BRERAN ENFEEFRI0ETLE
10,1617 7T (20154 : 76578 T £8 86735 7T

Level adjustment on individual floor of the
properties ranged from about 55% to 80%
(2015: 50% to 80%) on specific levels

NEENREZRERR N THREREZN
55%%80% (20155 1 50%£80% )

Developer's profit ranged from 3% to 30%
(2015: 12% to 30%), taking into account the
construction progress of the property

BEE AN F3%Z30% (20155 : 12%%
30%) MRt REMEZ TREE

REEH (BFR) BRLAF

=
P

Sensitivity/relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FAREBAHBEHAAEE
ZHRE /B

A significant increase in the market unit rate
used would result in a significant increase in
the fair value of the investment properties, and
vice versa.

PR ms A S KBRS BRE D%
ZRABERBEN R2TA-

The higher the gross development value, the
higher the fair value, and vice versa.

REgEEds JArBEES R2TA.

The higher the upward level adjustment, the
higher the fair value, and vice versa.

BELBUZ BAREEYS R2F%-

The higher the developer's profit, the lower the
fair value, and vice versa.

BRAENES AR BESE R2TR-



16. Investment Properties — continued

16. REW % —

Significant unobservable inputs

ERENE 2PN ¢

Monthly rent, based on internal floor area using
direct market comparables and taking into
account of time, location, frontage and size
of properties, which ranged from HK$24 to
HK$500 (2015: HK$24 to HK$500) per square

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement Fair value Valuation techniques
of financial position Fair value hierarchy and key inputs
RERBBRRARS HERHR
AEEAEEZRENE ANEE MABESER TEHAYE
2016 2015
HK$000  HK$000
TER TEL
UK
=
Retail shops/complexes/ 735,507 402,762 Level 3 Direct capitalisation
offices method with market
unit rent and
capitalisation rate as
the key input
foot
TEER/B5/ MRE E3fk BERENMUE TS

EUEEREALE
EREIRBARE

BAES BETHEETLENEZNHE
WEE YA RNE KRR B REAR
Ko ENFET R4 TEE008 T (2015
F 4B TTES00ETT)

Capitalisation rate, taking into account the
capitalisation of rental income potential, nature
of properties, prevailing market condition,
which ranged from 2.7% to 2.8% (2015: 2.8%
10 3.0%) per annum

BARE G REERS YA ZER D
2B BTSN ENFEF27%E
2.8% (20155 : 2.8%%£3.0%)

=

/155

Sensitivity/relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FAREBAHBEHAAEE
ZBRE /B

A significant increase in the market unit rate
used would result in a significant increase in
the fair value of the investment properties, and
vice versa.

FERAmS NS R EE RS BURE DR
ZRABEREEN R/

The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the
fair value, and vice versa.

ARk QAR BELE R2H%e

Joint operation relating to an investment property under
development in the PRC

Some subsidiaries of the Company, Expert Pearl Investment
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Expert Pearl Group”) entered into a joint venture agreement
(the “JV Agreement”) with Shanghai Zhangxi Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (the “JV Partner”) to jointly develop
investment property under development located in Shanghai
(the “Property”). Expert Pearl Group and the JV Partner intend
to develop the Property into a commercial complex (the “PRC
Project”). Under the JV Agreement, the saleable floor area
would be split between the parties in equal shares after the
completion of the development of the Project. Pursuant to the
terms of the JV Agreement, the PRC Project is accounted
for as a joint operation. In previous year, the Group filed an
appeal against the JV partner, which was rejected and the JV
agreement shall continue to have effect. For details, please
refer to 2011/2012 annual report.

As at 31 March 2016, the major assets in the PRC project
is the investment properties under development with fair
value of HK$1,633,000,000 (2015: HK$1,599,000,000). The
site preparation work had been completed at the end of the
reporting period, the valuation has been arrived at by adopting
residual approach.

As at 31 March 2016, the amount of HK$178,210,000 (2015:
HK$187,471,000) represents the construction cost incurred and
receivable from the JV Partner.
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FRRTERRTRENEZSEER

A B) 2 i B A A]Expert Pearl Investment
Limited &2 £ F /&8 A & (4548 /& [Expert Pearl
% @ |) #2Shanghai Zhangxi Investment
Development Co., Ltd. (&) FI A%
ez (A& HaE])  AERZEREMR 8™
ZEBERPREYE ([ZME]) © Expert Pearl
SEREERHREZMELRANERSE
K& (THEIER ) - IREBE &= FINES
R TERKIE R 2 B RBIEEROEE S P&
BEEE - REBESEHRIGT PEIER A
RAEEEF RBTFE AEBHEER
HHIRE Faf - Z EREBRE B S S haEsE
ER - BRAFIEFE232011/201256 W

R2016F3A31H  AHIBEMTEEE A%
R EYZE - E Q1 EE A1,633,000,000
78 7C (20154F 1 1,599,000,000/ 7T ) © ith #% &
BIEERIERTR  TERAREEL
EITIHE

R20165F3 A31H B E £ M SRR AR K fE UK
A& B 2 T8 A 178,210,000 7T (2015
£ :187,471,00058 7T )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. - HBRRE
Hotel
Leasehold properties
land and Hotel  Leasehold under
buildings properties improvements construction Others Total
HELHR EREE
BF BENE BENFEE LIES Hety A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEgn TiEn T TiEgn

COST OR DEEMED COST RARBERE
At 1 April 2014 R2014F4A1H 212,411 1,799,083 309,885 1,059,654 401,160 3,782,193
Exchange realignment HNEFE 9 - 2 - 7 18
Additions NE - - 67,321 243942 50,222 361,485
Reclassification L] - 422,906 - (422,906) - -
Disposals HE - - (82) - (13,055) (13,137)
At 31 March 2015 R201543A318 212,420 2,221,989 377,126 880,690 438,334 4,130,559
Exchange realignment INE FE (347) - (102) - (266) (715)
Additions WE - - 45,420 214,711 49,731 309,862
Revaluation of properties upon transfer M EEEE AR R ENER

to completed investment properties 2 £ B - 72,79 - - - 72,79
Transfer to completed BREDEKRENE

investment properties - (80,000) - - - (80,000)
Disposals e - - - - (6,512) (6,512)
At 31 March 2016 R201653A31A 212,073 2,214,785 422,444 1,095,401 481,287 4,425,990
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1 April 2014 201454818 45,778 238,204 160,229 - 249,889 694,100
Exchange realignment HMERE 2 - 2 - 5 9
Provided for the year FREMR 4883 41,705 58,225 - 79,639 184,452
Eliminated on disposal HERHH - - (82) - 9,712) (9,794)
At 31 March 2015 #R201543A318 50,663 279,909 218,374 - 319,821 868,767
Exchange realignment INE R (67) - (109) - (206) (382)
Provided for the year EREG 4873 53502 63,178 - 82,909 204,482
Eliminated on disposal HERK - - - - (5,622) (5,622)
At 31 March 2016 H201653A31H 55,469 333,431 281,443 - 396,902 1,067,245
CARRYING VALUES HREE
At 31 March 2016 R201653A31H 156,604 1,881,354 141,001 1,095,401 84,385 3,358,745
At 31 March 2015 #H201543A31H 161,757 1,942,080 158,752 880,690 118,513 3,261,792
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment — continued 17. Y% - 38 R 2 — &

Lt R REREIRE (ERBEE YRR
SN ThiE TR ABAREEITINE

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
hotel properties under construction are depreciated on a
straight line basis of the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and Over the estimated useful lives
buildings of 40 years or the unexpired
terms of the relevant leases,

whichever is shorter

Hotel properties Over the estimated useful lives
of 40 years or the unexpired
terms of the relevant leases,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 10— 20%

Others 10 - 33':%

As lease payments for land and buildings elements cannot be
allocated reliably, the entire lease is reclassified as a finance

lease and includes in the carrying amount of the leasehold land
and buildings.

The carrying values and location of leasehold land and
buildings and hotel properties shown above are as follows:

MELTHE  (AetalEAFH 48
BF BATH A 2 8% T K& & 51
(ABFEH R%E)

BIEYE TRl A S AP0+ kAR
BATR A0 &R TR F 58
(ABFEH R2%E)

HEMHEEE 10-20%
Eifb 10-33':%
Rt MEFE D 2 HERIEE LD

-
o BEOBENBEH O BERRERE YEER
METHPETZRmE-.

PR E L MEFEEEYEZREEN,
UEMT:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHEIT
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong A& E 2 E i MIETF 74,904 77,108
Buildings in PRC FEEF 5,352 5,954
Buildings in Macau RFTETF 76,348 78,695
156,604 161,757
Hotel properties in Hong Kong BEBIEME 678,208 704,634
Hotel properties in Macau EPYEIE Y3 1,203,146 1,237,446
1,881,354 1,942,080

Hotel property under construction BEREEROEYZE
in Hong Kong 1,095,401 880,690

During the year, the net interest capitalised in property,
plant and equipment amounted to HK$28,123,000 (2015:
HK$24,540,000).

RER W) s RS EE B MERERE
/R /528,123,000/8 7T (20154 : 24,540,000/
L) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

18. Prepaid Lease Payments 18. A HE N
HK$'000
FAT
CARRYING VALUE BRHEE
At 1 April 2014 R2014F4 318 663,280
Release for the year FREER (18,702)
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3H31H 644,578
Release for the year FNRRRR (18,100)
Impairment loss recognised BERBEEE (49,034)
At 31 March 2016 A201653A31H 577,444
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments REEFENBEENRELE:
comprise:
Leasehold land situated in Macau Rz HE T 577,444 644,578
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBEMAITR:
— non-current portion —JEmBE A 560,178 625,876
— current portion —mEE S 17,266 18,702
577,444 644,578

v
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19. Interest in a Joint Venture

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group and two
independent third parties formed a new entity named Superb
Land Limited (“Superb Land”) of which the Group holds 40%
equity interest. Superb Land holds 100% interest in Talent
Charm Corporation Limited (“Talent Charm”), being the
property development company of a development project
located at Rural building Lot No.1198, Shouson Hill Road West,
Hong Kong.

19.R—EEELRER

REZE2015F3AN B ILFE  AEBERE
W58 = 5K — R % ASuperb Land Limited
(ISuperb Land N HIFTE R NEBERKAFH
40%f% # ° Superb Land#F B G RQ A
(M) 2 100% s MR B EER A
a EBERBEUNEBEE LER . HB5E
[Z B2 55 11985%

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Cost of unlisted investments FE LTI AR - -

Share of post-acquisition losses and BEWBEeEE R EMX AR

total comprehensive expense (151) (71)
(151) (71)

Amount due from a joint venture R —HaEE IR 599,498 572,545
599,347 572,474

As at 31 March 2016, the amount due from a joint venture
carries interest at 2.2% (2015: 2.2%) per annum. It has no fixed
terms of repayment and the Group has no intention to exercise
its right to demand repayment of the advance within the twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the
amount is shown as non-current.

Details of the Group’s joint venture as at 31 March 2016 and 31
March 2015 are as follows:

R2016F3A31H B — A & ¥ 2 A
TR F R E2.2% (20155 1 2.2% ) 5T B o 32k
B EEFERE MAEEESHREER
REA2ME A R T{E B A B REEZ BN
It - 2 IB5 B IERE

R2016F3A31H M2015F3A31H  KEE
EETEZFBENT:

Proportion
Place of of ownership
incorporation interest held
Name of joint venture and operation by the Group Principal activity
rEEFREEZ
RELEEE SRR AL % S it B 78 R R 25 L B TEXK
Superb Land BVI/Hong Kong 40% Investment holding
HBELHE B REEER

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has given corporate guarantee
of HK$941,600,000 (2015: HK$941,600,000) to a bank in
respect of banking facilities granted to Talent Charm, of which
HK$546,000,000 (2015: HK$542,000,000) has been utilised. In
the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the guarantee is not
significant.

In the opinion of the Directors, the joint venture is not material
to the Group and no disclosure of financial information is
considered necessary.
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R2016F3A31H  AEBE M ER 2 R
1TRE [ — R ERTT 4R 1 Z £ 1R941,600,000
# 7T (20154F 1 941,600,000/ 7T) » H
546,000,000/ 7T (20154 : 542,000,000/ 7T )
EEHA-ZEERE ERZAABETE
7(0

EERA RO CEHAEEMELTE
KB RATLBRBHEER -

2015/2016 F 1R

v

155



v

156 Emperor International Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e T ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #£2016F3H31H It F[E

20.

21.

Deposit in Designated Bank Account for
Development Properties

The amount of HK$9,685,000 (2015: HK$10,072,000)
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,070,000 (2015:
RMB7,978,000)), was deposited to a bank account designated
under It REAGEEZEE S as deposit for resettlement
for the investment properties under development in the PRC.
Such bank deposit is restricted for settlement in relation to
the resettlement work and carried interest at 1.20% (2015:
1.27%) per annum. The deposit is expected to be released
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
classified as current assets.

Goodwill

COST DN

At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and
31 March 2016

20. LB ERYEFHRRNEERTRE

ZFER

AEEE ARG R EE B BE TR TR
17 19,685,000/ 7T (20154 : 10,072,000/
7T) (8% AR%8,070,0007T (20155 A
R#79780007T) ) ' tEREF sEFBHERE
RITEYEZ IS ZIRITIFERERNAIER
BMEFBETEz 8RR WIETF1.20%
(2015%F 1 1.27% ) 5t B - BRI X T RN RE
HiREERT T —E A NSRRI SR A RB A E -

21. &

HK$'000
TAT

M20145FE4 818 - 201553 A318 &
201643 H31H

56,683

For the purpose of impairment test, goodwill of HK$54,743,000
(2015: HK$54,743,000) has been allocated to hotel and hotel
related operation of Emperor E Hotel (a single cash generating
unit “CGU").

During the year, the Group performed an impairment review for
goodwill of Emperor E Hotel gaming operation based on cash
flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets
for the next five years and after the fifth year, the projections
are extrapolated using a constant growth rate of 3% (2015:
3%) per annum for subsequent years. The recoverable amount
of the CGU of the gaming operation is determined from value
in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rate, growth rate
and expected changes to revenue and direct costs during the
year. The forecast is discounted using a discount rate of 18%
(2015: 20%). The discount rate was determined with reference
to weighted average cost of capital of similar companies in
the industry and adjusted for specific risks associated with
Emperor E Hotel's gaming operation. The growth rate does
not exceed the long-term average industry growth forecasts.
Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past
practices and the management’s expectations of future
changes in the market. As the recoverable amount of the CGU
is higher than the carrying amount of the CGU, the Directors
consider no impairment loss is necessary.

Regarding the remaining goodwill of HK$1,940,000 (2015:
HK$1,940,000), it has been allocated to the CGU for the
lease of properties for the purpose of impairment test, and no
impairment is considered necessary.

REEH (BFR) BRLAF

£ 8154,743,000/%8 7T (2015%F : 54,743,00078
T ZEE BENRER SR ENEE KR
B ER (E—ReELBEMNBReESE
A7) - PAETTRVEDRIE -

RAFE  AEBRIBRSRERAE LR
LR 2 EHBETRERN B REEA
ThRRARRAF 2 FNINBEE  MEERF
% RBREFEEFHERREI% (2015F
3%)ETIEA - REELBMN AT KEIEEE
TRFEREEAE - AUTEFREEZEE

RV EFR PR E R ERIETRA K
BEKAZ (L ER 2788 )5118% (2015
Fi20%) ZIMBRF A E-ITER IR
ZERFERRZ IMEFHEREA REE
IREEHE 21 EE S T RBETHERS
o R R RBBRITFHEFIERIEN - U8
ARBEERARZ B TRIEBE BN K EE
BE M RRE (L2 TBHEAMBEE - ANIRESE
ABMNMAI RS EaRNReELEBUCE
HE WEERAEAELRERE-

Bt £ 1,940,000/ 7T (20154 : 1,940,00078
T ZEEmE AETREIS ZEEE
PEEMEREZRESEASN  BERE

EEN::-0N
™ 2



22. Other Assets 2. Hih&EE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Club debentures and membership, at cost & FriEH k@5 IR A 4,092 4,092
The club debentures and membership have indefinite life. EHESFMNEEARERTH-
23. Inventories 23. 78
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Catering goods, at cost BEREFE ENA 13,745 14,827
24, Properties Held for Sale 2. S1EHE 2
The carrying amount of properties held for sale comprise FERE 2 REERRE:
properties:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Situated in Hong Kong R EE 719,650 201,574
Situated in the PRC and held under AR B - H b5 A ER R
land use rights with terms expiring A +FEAER
within 50 years 474 497
720,124 202,071
25. Properties Under Development for Sale B 5FHEZCREPYE

The amounts represent projects developed for sale after
completion. The properties under development for sale at the
end of the reporting period comprise:

Situated in Hong Kong UREE

ERSBERERRIELEREMER A
B -RJmERR ZFFHHELEZERRTYE

i
2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT THT

1,309,714 2,641,237
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

25. Properties Under Development for Sale B BFEHEZREDYE 2

— continued

Included in the amounts are properties under development ZRBREEIEHIEREEZRERYELY
for sale of approximately HK$790,800,000 (2015: 790,800,0005% 7T (20154 : 199,470,000/ 7T)
HK$199,470,000) which are expected to be recovered after JEEH R E R RS+ — A B gk E -
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

During the year, the net interest capitalised in properties under ERCEERE YRR T ENMEF A
development for sale amounted to HK$35,411,000 (2015: SEE 435 411, 00055 7T, (20154 : 55,951 000}
HK$55,951,000). 7)o o T
Joint operation relating to a development project in EERERESEYEE SAREE

Hong Kong

The subsidiary of the Company, Wealthy Wide Limited, entered

into a joint operation agreement with Urban Renewal Authority e A i | Iy A= N
to jointly develop property under development for sale located ORI & Eipik AR R RAINEBRHEL

in Hong Kong (the “HK Project”), which is intended to be %z%g¢¢@%§/{\%ﬁ%1§gaJzzi;ﬁjiﬁég@;%
developed into a residential property. Pursuant to the terms of (EEWE - IRIEZ S ERHE 2 F - BERE

ARRIZMBARMEERARENRER

the joint operation agreement, the HK Project is accounted as NERE &R
the joint operation.

26. Trade and Other Receivables 26.E 5 Kk H i EWKIE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
An analysis of trade and other receivables & 5 & Eith U B 2 AT LA T -
is as follows:
Trade receivables B 5 A 130,393 200,371
Chips on hand Z15 148,033 135,386
Other receivables H A e U IR 356,185 438,043
Deposits and prepayments e RIBNRIA 200,030 167,285
834,641 941,085
An aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables (net of RSN  BEAEEE 5 EKFIE (0
allowances) based on either the date of credit granted or the BE) v REEER s R Z 0 TR 28R
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out below: BomnT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
31-90 days 31H £290H 16,088 6,715
91 — 180 days 91H=180H 1,980 856
Over 180 days 180H A £ 12,900 13,628
130,393 200,371

v
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26. Trade and Other Receivables — continued

Chips on hand represent chips issued by a gaming
concessionaire in Macau which can be exchanged into their
cash amounts.

No credit period was granted to tenants of rental of premises.
Before accepting any new tenant, the Group will internally
assess the credit quality of the potential tenant. No credit period
was granted to hotel customers generally except for those high
credit rating customers to whom an average credit period of 30
days were granted.

For gaming operation, the Group normally allows credit periods
of up to 60 days to its trade customers, except for certain
credit worthy customers with long term relationship and stable
repayment pattern, where the terms are extended to a longer
period.

Included in other receivables are amounts due from related
companies of HK$34,585,000 (2015: HK$30,625,000). These
related companies are indirectly controlled by AY Holdings
which is held by STC International being the trustee of the
AY Trust (Dr. Albert Yeung is the founder of the AY Trust and
a deemed substantial shareholder of the Company). The
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one
year.

Included in other receivables are deposits received for
sale of the Group's properties of HK$127,111,000 (2015:
HK$231,296,000) under the custody of the independent
lawyers on behalf of the Group.

The carrying amount of trade receivables in respect of hotel
and hotel related operations does not have debtor which was
past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. Included in the trade
receivable balances are debtor balances of HK$14,880,000
(2015: HK$14,484,000) that would otherwise have been past
due or impaired had the terms not been renegotiated.

Included in the trade receivable balances in respect of other
operations are debtors with carrying amounts of HK$6,110,000
(2015: HK$7,585,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss.
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26. 8 5 K b FEWRRIR — 42
HHRAPTI AR AREIT LA HRAL
REHE

AEEWEAREYE ZABARLEER-
R RERFAFEA 2 B - AEE AR
BEAMAZEREER AKBEBREITTER
BERPROGEN HEEERIFZEFPK
S MR 2 FEEERR308 -

BEEBME  ARE—RAEESEFK
H&Z60H 2 EEH ETEERT AF
EHAFERMREERRA 2 EP A EK
BRHAR -

HEEWREaEEKREERNR ZHIE
34,585,000/% JT (20154 : 30,625,000 7T,) ©

ZEBENRIRGX K EEEREEES - m
15K E E A AY Trust (5181 AAY Trust
ZRINA WHERARNRGBZEERR) 23
5L ASTC Internationali A ° A FzkI8 T AR
BB RENR—FANEE-

HEMEBGIEBERIHE RS o W WE 2
% £127,111,0007% 7T (20154F : 231,296,000
BL) BBEMEMRERAEBRRE -

RS IR RGBS B 2 B S BN
SR8 BR B 30 80 HA R A 2 PR U AR 3R B
SEWEEREEERE -8 5BUGIELER
B3 FE JFE U BR 7K 4% 214,880,000 7T (20154 :
14,484,000/ 7T ) © M TN EH & EIGGR 0 5% E
FIB S @Bk R A

EMERsESRNFIEEHRBIEERERE
6,110,000/ 7T (20154F : 7,585,000/ 7T ) 2 &
WEER EREHAC B A&
VER (B 518 B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

26. Trade and Other Receivables — continued  26. 25 R H b EUWFIE — &

v
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Aging of trade receivables in respect of other operations
which are past due but not impaired

Hib (kB2 EZEWFIR (BE@BERE
18) Z &R

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT FAT

Overdue for: ELEA
1-30 days 1230H 6,110 7,585
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REBEZ2E

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT FAET

At beginning of the year F7) 21,002 23,614
Impairment loss recognised BERREERE 600 1,130
Amounts recovered during the year F R EFKRIE (40) (3,742)
Write-off 28 (10,347) -
At end of the year FR 11,215 21,002

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with aggregate balances of
HK$11,215,000 (2015: HK$21,002,000), the management
considered these prolonged outstanding balances from
individual customers were in doubt. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

The Group’s management closely monitors the credit quality
of debtors and considers the debtors that are neither past due
nor impaired to be of a good credit quality as continuous partial
repayments are receivable from these debtors.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

REBRHEREBCERETRECE S EBGK
T8 H 4548 %8 511,215,000 7T (20154
21,002,000/ 7T) - B EW TEEEREF
SLERCRIMER 2 &tk ASEW ESLILL
EEBFETMIRER-

AEBEREEY) EEEUER 2 FRER

RRANBBNEDIE - ZFERFADARLF

B o MAMBRFABE TIAHBEERE
BZNMEEEBUINEREB 2SR

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR THET

RMB ARE 12,286 37,551

HEEH (BFR) BRLAF



27. Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-term Bank

Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

Pledged bank deposits included (i) deposits of
HK$685,645,000 (2015: HK$2,450,549,000) pledged to banks
to secure for banking facilities granted to the Group and; (ii)
a deposit of HK$325,000 (2015: HK$321,000) pledged to a
bank to secure for the use of ferry ticket equipment provided
by a third party to the Group. The pledged bank deposits carry
interest at fixed interest rates which range from 0.84% to 3.35%
(2015: 0.84% to 3.70%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2016, short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of over 3 months but within one year carried interest
at fixed interest rates which ranged from 1.40% to 3.20% per
annum (2015: nil).

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or less,
and carry interests at prevailing market rates which range from
0.01% to 1.25% (2015: 0.01% to 4.40%) per annum.

Included in pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than functional currency of the
relevant group entities:

RMB AR

27 IR ITER EHETER
SHBITESRRES
DR ITERBE(NDER TIRITUES
A& BERIRTTRNE ~ 17 5685,645,00078 7T
(20154F : 2,450,549,000/8 7T ) + M (i)E I T
—RRITMEAREBFER—RE = Hivit
2 EEE W 7 17 73825,00078 7T (20154F
321,000/t ) » BIRIRIRITIF AU EE FF =
0.84%%3.35% (2015%F : 0.84%%3.70% ) 5
RS-

R2016F3A31H  REIHHH A=A N t
BR—FE AR EHRITFEHIZETFE EH =R
1.40%Z%3.20% (20154 : M) s+ E | £, -

RITEBEASEREASERB RS RR
BIHARA=EASAT  WIRIRITHIHEFIR
0.01%%1.25% (20154 : 0.01%%£4.40% ) &t
R B ZRITER

EHEMRITIFR  EHRRITIFRERITAERK
REeBRE TN EREEER 2GR
SNEREEZ SR

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT
679,183 2,506,197

Analysed for reporting purposes for pledged bank deposits as:

FLEWE MM E NS ERBITERDMN

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ExT T

Non-current portion FERBE D 30,252 -
Current portion mENE D 655,718 2,450,870
685,970 2,450,870
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28. Trade and Other Payables 28.E 5 R HMEAKIE

v
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An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out below:

R|ERR - AEE 2 B HRNTARBEER
B EAFTIEL 2 BRER DATIA T -

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$000

FTHERT FAT

0 - 90 days 0£90H 27,871 29,946
91 - 180 days 91H=180H 80 181
Over 180 days 180H A _E 1 9
27,952 30,136

Construction payables and accruals ERTRRFIEREREA 562,042 543,171
Other payables and accruals HMERNFIEREREA 249,057 266,361
Rental deposits received Bl ERe 314,468 251,973
Deposits received from sales of properties  #& ¥ 2 Fr il EUIZ & 129,517 1,046,432
1,283,036 2,138,073

29. Amount Due to a Related Company

The amount is unsecured and carries interest ranging from
HIBOR + 1.37% to HIBOR + 1.53% per annum (2015: HIBOR +
1.15% to HIBOR + 1.46% per annum). The interest payable to
the related company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the AY Trust,
is calculated at 1.60% (2015: 1.70%) per annum at the end of
the reporting period.

During the vyear, further advances from the related company
amounted to HK$2,983,055,000 (2015: HK$2,033,098,000) and
the Group partially repaid the principal of HK$2,938,198,000
(2015: HK$1,941,194,000) to the related company. The
principal amount outstanding as at 31 March 2016 was
HK$3,760,777,000 (2015: HK$3,715,920,000). It was agreed
with the related company that the Group will repay the
amount based on the sufficiency of its operating cash flows
determined by the management of the Group. Therefore, the
Group revises its estimates on the amounts of repayments to
the related company and adjusts the carrying amount to be
stated under current and non-current liabilities in accordance
with the revised estimated cash flows on regular basis. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group calculates the
estimated future cash flows at effective interest rates of
3.25% (2015: 3.25%). During the year, the Group recognised
a deemed capital contribution in equity of HK$80,041,000
(2015: HK$101,440,000) due to fair value adjustment on initial
recognition of further advances from the related company in
current year.

REEH (BFR) BRLAF

20. By — BB E QX R IR

BRAFEAERR MEFAREBIRITRA
ERBIM.37%EHBIRITRIZENT B 11.53%
(20154 : HABRITRZEFREIM A% EHBIR
TTRIZESRBNN1.46% ) 5T EFE - NEREHIR -

FERHEE AT (—RAY Trustz 2 &M EAF])
2 H B BFF160% (20155 : 1.70% ) °

RERN REBERRIZE—TRARAE
2,983,055,0007% 7t (20154F : 2,033,098,0007%
7o) AEEBE R I 5 AR £2,938,198,000
7 7T (20154 : 1,941,194,000/8 7T) F A&~
B8] R2016F3A31B MABEZASEA
3,760,777,0007 7t (20154F : 3,715,920,0007%
TT) o IEHEIENRRTE  ASBERIEHRASE
EEREHEZEERERETTIZEEER
IH - B ANEBEFEBRBZERT AR SR
EETEEMNBERRFBZ G ERLA
BEWHI AR MIERDEEZ ERNEER
RIFIEZ BREE - MRS HR - AEBIRER
HZ=3.25% (20154 : 3.25% ) st B st R KR
ERE-FAN ARAFEEBELF ATIRME
ZE—BBR B ERIEARBERARE K
EBEE R NERRIEE A E80,041,000
77T (20154 101,440,000/ 7T,) ©



29.

30.

Amount Due to a Related Company
— continued

In the opinion of the Directors, the carrying amount of the
amount due to the related company of HK$3,059,865,000
(2015: HK$3,062,083,000) is not expected to be repaid in
the next twelve months based on the estimated repayment
schedule and the related company agreed not to demand for
any payment of this amount from the Group within one year
from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, such amount
is shown as non-current liability.

Amounts Due to Non-controlling Interests

of Subsidiaries

Amounts due to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
comprise:

(i) Amounts of HK$132,000,000 (2015: HK$150,000,000)
which are unsecured, interest-free shareholders’ loans due
to non-controlling interests of Luck United, and

(i) As at 31 March 2015, amount of HK$2,576,000 which was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand (2016:
nil).

In accordance with the contractual terms of the shareholders'’
agreements, the interest-free amounts due to non-controlling
interests of Luck United are to be repaid from surplus fund,
which represents cash available in Luck United, an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary, and its subsidiaries, after payment
of all operating expenses and payables including but not
limited to bank loans and third party loans which are due for
repayment together with the accrued interest.

At end of the reporting period, the management of Luck United
determined that Luck United has adequate available surplus
fund for the repayment of all principal amounts outstanding
to its shareholders. Therefore, the Directors consider that the
carrying amount of the amounts due to non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries of HK$132,000,000 (2015: HK$150,000,000)
is repayable at the discretion of non-controlling interests at 31
March 2016 and 31 March 2015.
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EERR BRNBEERRRAZKEAER
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TR £ EWEKREREE (2016
Fim)e

IRIRAR B s 2 A& 401&3K » FEfF Luck United3E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E
31. Derivative Financial Instruments .TEEMIT A
2016 2015
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EE 8% BE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET FAT FAT
Derivatives not under hedge WEEREREIHEZ
accounting TETA
Interest rate swap contract FIRBEHED - 1,923 - 9,368
Foreign currency forward INEEHE A
contracts - 14,777 3,241 15,040
- 16,700 3,241 24,408
Analysed for reporting purposes as BREM DM A :
Current portion mEEH - 16,700 3,241 1,084
Non-current portion ERBBH = = - 23,324
- 16,700 3041 24,408

(a) Interest rate swap contract

The Group used an interest rate swap contract to
minimise its exposure to variability in cash flows arisen
from variable-rate bank borrowings by swapping floating
interest rates to fixed interest rates.

The major terms of the interest rate swap contract at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

At 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015

Notional amount Maturity
EREH FHA
HK$500,000,000 21 June 2016
500,000,000/ 7T 201656 H21H

v

(a) RNREHEN
AEBRBAEREHEL BB FET
K BBEENE  HEESRITEEESE
ZREREEHZABRMEERE-

RS HIR - A2 s B35 49,2 3 Z R0
T

720165E3 A31H K2015563831H

Receive floating Pay fixed
WER B 3F B Al R XATHIE B F =
3-month HIBOR 2.088%
HERRITREFR

(Z|@A)
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31. Derivative Financial Instruments
— continued
(b) Foreign currency forward contracts

The Group used foreign currency forward contracts to
minimise its exposure to variability in cash flows arisen
from expenditure incurred for the property development
projects in the PRC. The major terms of the foreign
currency forward contracts at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

At 31 March 2016

Notional amount

BREH

1 contract to buy RMB300 million
in aggregate

Maturity
FHA

Within one year

1MEHEHEA —FR
A R #300,000,0007T
At 31 March 2015
Notional amount Maturity
EREH FHA

4 contracts to buy RMB550 million
in aggregate

MEHEHEA
A R #550,000,0007T

Within one year

—FA

1 contract to buy RMB300 million
in aggregate
1MEHEHEA
A R #300,000,0007T

—EMFE
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Between one to two years

N.TEEMITE—~Z

(b) HEEHEYN
AEBRAINEERHEL HENFEZ
MEFREERIELZHENEEH
2 BB PR E R AR - AR HIR - SMNEIRE
BHZEBBETIET

201653 H31H
Forward contract rates
BHEHNESR
RMB1 to HK$1.2363

ANREEATT H1.23638 70

201593 H31H

Forward contract rates
BHEHNESR

RMB1 to HK$1.2340 to
RMB1 to HK$1.2428

AN REEATT 7,1.234078 7T
= AREAITTH1.24288 7T

RMB1 to HK$1.2363

AR HA.23638 7T

v
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

32. Unsecured Notes 2. | R
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
US$110,000,000 unsecured notes carry 110,000,000 L E T FEE
fixed coupon rate of 4.8% per annum, 48%=T 8 BEFEMNBIRN
payable semi-annually with maturity in 20185 BB 2 IR IR 2
2018 at its carrying amounts BRMEE 851,490 851,094
HK$1,650,000,000 unsecured notes carry  1,650,000,000/8 TTIRE & FZ 8
fixed coupon rate of 5% per annum, 5%FT B BEEFMNBEILRN
payable semi-annually with maturity in 20174 BB 2 IR IR IR 2
2017 at its carrying amounts BRmEE 1,631,693 1,618,113
HK$1,000,000,000 unsecured notes carry ~ 1,000,000,000/% 7Tz [E & 4 2 8
fixed coupon rate of 5% per annum, 5%t B HEFFHELRN
payable semi-annually with maturity in 20205 BB 7 IR IR EE IR 2
2020 at its carrying amounts REE 994,707 993,513
HK$300,000,000 unsecured notes carry 300,000,000/ JLIZ [El 7E F 2 &
fixed coupon rate of 5% per annum, 5%t B AEFEEMNBELRN
payable semi-annually with maturity in 20205 B B 2 K IR 1R 2
2020 at its carrying amounts BRmEE 298,763 298,486
US$38,000,000 unsecured notes carry 38,000,0003& JT% [E & F £ B
fixed coupon rate of 4.4% per annum, 44%5H B BABFFHBELR
payable semi-annually with maturity in 2021 BB 2 IR IR IR 2
2021 at its carrying amounts REE 295,723 -
HK$500,000,000 unsecured notes carry 500,000,000 TTIZEF F R 5
fixed coupon rate of 4.4% per annum, 44%5H 8 BEFERNBIRN
payable semi-annually with maturity in 2021 F R H I mMERRIE
2021 at its carrying amounts REE 494,177 -
4,566,553 3,761,206
In December 2013, Big Right Investment Limited (“Big Right”), R2013F12H - AKEREEZEMNB A
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, concluded FREEBRAA ([EZFR] )ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ-ﬁi—%ﬁ
public offering of the unsecured notes of US$110,000,000 110,000,0003 7T ( #9%5 72852,665,000/8 7T ) &
(equivalent to approximately HK$852,665,000). The unsecured EHRER - \EEARER (RH5 : 6005) FOEE
notes (Stock Code: 6005) are listed on the Stock Exchange REF L BREEFEB48%:T 8 WEEH
and carry fixed coupon rate of 4.8% per annum, payable FRE -BERER BERFNERI85% o
semi-annually in arrears. The unsecured notes carry effective RS 2 RS AR2018FEIE - WHAR
interest rate of 4.85% per annum. The principal amount of the AR RS AT RE AR o

unsecured notes is repayable in 2018 and unconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by the Company.

v
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32. Unsecured Notes — continued

In July 2014, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$1,650,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 5.92%
per annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is
repayable in 2017.

In February 2015, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$1,000,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 5.15%
per annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is
repayable in 2020.

In March 2015, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$300,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 5.12%
per annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is
repayable in 2020.

In February 2016, the Company issued unsecured notes of
US$38,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 4.4% per annum, payable semi-annually in arears.
The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.4%
per annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is
repayable in 2021.

In March 2016, the Company issued unsecured notes of
HK$500,000,000. The unsecured notes carry fixed coupon
rate of 4.4% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
The unsecured notes carry effective interest rate of 4.6%
per annum. The principal amount of the unsecured notes is
repayable in 2021.

The proceeds from the issuance of unsecured notes are
intended to use for general working capital purposes of the
Group.
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1201447 A + 7~ 2 B85 171,650,000,00078 7T
EEHER - B H R IRIRE T F 2 B5%aT
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WRFHENE - BERRBEZERFNES
4.4% ° BRI 2 N BA/AN2021F8E -

2016537 » A8~ &) 3 17500,000,0008 7T &
HARRE - B ERIRETEFRE44%:t
B WABFFENE - BEMERBRZEREN
R 134.6% o BIBMRIE 2 A2 FAN20214F

&g -

FITEENRE ZEIARMAEREEZ

—HREEES -

2015/2016 F 1R

v

167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

33. Bank Borrowings 33.RITEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Bank borrowings: RITIEE
Bank loans IRITER 11,029,088 9,521,781
Bank overdraft RITHEX - 5,871
11,029,088 9,527,652
The bank borrowings are repayable as RITEE ZERBHIAT
follows™:
Within one year —FR 2,895,407 2,706,667
Between one to two years —EWFERME 2,490,509 2,582,838
Between two to five years FEE 3,480,201 2,359,135
Over five years AEFLLE 2,057,958 1,723,731
10,924,075 9,372,371
Carrying amounts of bank borrowings that ~ $R1TIEE 2 EEE (2R Bk
contain a repayment on demand clause BEEX RRBBEET
shown under current liabilities F7R) 105,013 155,281
11,029,088 9,527,652
Less: Amounts due within one year shown — J& : I —F R 2| HiFIE
under current liabilities (RrshafEErIR) (3,000,420) (2,861,948)
Amounts due after one year shown under R —FEEIEIFUE (R IER S
non-current liabilities BEETIIR) 8,028,668 6,665,704

*  Carrying amounts based on scheduled repayment dates set out * REBEERERBEMESCETEERARS

in the loan agreements.

ZERTEESFAREBRITREREM
055%ZE & B IRTTRIZESF B IN2.9% (20154 :
EBRITRIER BIN0S5%E FBRITRIZENR
Bh2.9% ) stERMB  WAREB 2 BT EE
ERIER (R FIEE40()) °

The bank borrowings carry interest ranging from HIBOR +
0.55% to HIBOR + 2.9% per annum (2015: HIBOR + 0.55% to
HIBOR + 2.9% per annum) and are secured by certain assets
of the Group (see note 40(a)).

IRITEE 2 ERFH R 52.16% (20154 : It
F154%%E217% ) ©

The effective interest rate of bank borrowings is at 2.16% (2015:
ranged from 1.54% to 2.17%) per annum.

v
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34. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years.

34. EEFIE
KEERBEFEERRAY T ERTEHE (&
E)VAEREEEHMT -

Accelerated  Development Revaluation
tax costs of Tax
depreciation capitalised properties losses Total
BRAA
MEHKTE -4 MEERE HEER kel
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TR TR FHET THET
At 1 April 2014 201454 R1H (140,276) (4,191) (641,941) 26,517 (759,891)
Exchange realignments INEFIEE - - (4,887) - (4,887)
(Charge) credit to profitor loss (18 ) 5 A B4
(note 13) (Hit13) (14,892) - (220,931) 2,231 (233,592)
Credit to equity AR 282 - - - 282
At 31 March 2015 #2015%3A31H (154,886) (4,191) (867,759) 28,748 (998,088)
Exchange realignments AN IE - - 30,442 - 30,442
(Charge) credit to profitor loss (18 ) 5 A B4
(note 13) (Hit13) (31,781) - (165,207) 7,319 (189,669)
Credit to equity BN 268 - - - 268
At 31 March 2016 2016534318 (186,399) (4,191) (1,002,524) 36,067 (1,157,047)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had tax losses of
HK$884,496,000 (2015: HK$800,445,000) available for
offset against future profits. Deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of HK$230,670,000 (2015:
HK$190,472,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$653,826,000
(2015: HK$609,973,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The tax losses of the Group might be carried
forward indefinitely, except for an amount of HK$18,097,000
(2015: nil) which will expire in three years from the year of
assessment.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$119,049,000 (2015: HK$125,301,000) as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

35. Share Capital 35. g 7
Number of
shares  Share capital
gy 4= ;N
HK$'000
FAT
THE COMPANY ¥/
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HFRREEVE L LBk
Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and R2014F4 18 « 201543 A31H
31 March 2016 N20163A31H 500,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 K2014F4 A 18 &2015F3H31H 3,671,776,192 36,718
Exercise of share options (Note) TTERERR I (H2E) 5,769,475 57
At 31 March 2016 7K2016F3H31H 3,677,545,667 36,775
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2016, 5,769,475 ordinary e - éﬁzﬂ\;@zme%sami{tiﬂrg’5,763&75@%
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at HK$1.746 per share HXE%O-OJJ/%\EZ %@ng_ﬁﬁﬂxf‘g;j§171§
upon exercise of share options. The new shares issued rank FEMHﬁﬁi{T-M&%I?”"?%@Z*ﬁﬁﬁ
pari passu with the existing shares in all aspects. PEBRB DN E T =B AR E
36. Share Option 36. B =
Share option schemes of the Company A1 F BB AR R &
The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 9 $§ A EQ?F?O§¢9HQAE RN BB iR &l
September 2003 (“Old Share Option Scheme”) has lapsed ( (?E\%Hﬂ’éﬁji‘u )5&%01%@29)5] —1—%3}%&%
automatically in September 2013 upon the expiry of the 10-year ﬁﬁ@? ;Ej]ii’xﬁl\jﬁ’:‘s%ﬂﬂé Et%!@\ﬁfé ' gfﬁ‘
period. Following the expiry of the Old Share Option Scheme, *%T%i%;raﬂgﬁ—??x@%ﬁﬂ’i ' ‘%{E%j%
no further share options can be granted thereunder but HXT_’éﬁE”ET\X%ﬁ’éﬂfjj—fﬁgﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ
outstanding share options granted under the Old Share Option BB A T AT E RS T -

Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable until their
expiry date of exercisable period.
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36. Share Option — continued

Share option schemes of the Company — continued

In order to ensure the continuity of a share option scheme for
the Company to provide incentives or rewards to participants
including the Directors and eligible employees of the Group,
the shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary resolution
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 8
August 2013 to approve the adoption of a new share option
scheme (“New Share Option Scheme”) which was adopted on
15 August 2013.

A summary of the Old Share Option Scheme and New Share
Option Scheme is set out as follows:

(a) Purpose
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate talented
eligible participants to strive for future development and
expansion of the Group.

(b) Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether full-time
or part time, including Non-executive Director) and such
other eligible participants.

(c) Total number of shares available for issue under the
New Share Option Scheme

As at 22 June 2016 (i.e. the date of this Annual Report):
366,677,619 shares, representing 9.97% of the issued
shares.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant under
the Old Share Option Scheme and New Share Option
Scheme

(i) Not to exceed 1% of the Shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company;

(i) Options granted to substantial shareholder or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding
0.1% of the shares in issue and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BEERRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

36. Share Option — continued 36. R E—Z
Share option schemes of the Company — continued AATIBRETE &

v
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(e) Period within which the shares must be taken up under (e) TTRIERERBRGZHR
an option
From the date of grant of the option to such a date RELEREANEEEEZSET LA
determined by the Board but in any event not exceeding 7 B A ERERIER T NS HAR Y
10 years from the date of grant. HHAEET105F ©
() Minimum period for which an option must be held (N BERETEISEEEZERHR
before it can be exercised
No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the RIEEGSTETE GV EKEH
Board. R
(9) () Price payable on application or acceptance of the (9) () FRFESERERERAMMNE
option: HK$1.00; & :1.0087T
(i) The period within which payments or calls must or (i) W7 S R] RE 17 50 36 48 A 19 7 2 BF
may be made: Within 28 days from the date of grant; PR : &% B EARRET28H A :
(i) Period within which loans for such purposes of the (i) 1ENFEBANRARNEHNEE
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable. HARR : A o
(h) Basis for determining the exercise price (h) BZETE#EZEE
The exercise price is determined by the Board and will TEEDNHRESSET  ETFER TS
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price of BEmE: (@QREHBERD 2 WTHE:
the Share on the date of grant; (b) the average closing OREZEEH A AESXEARMDZ
price of the Shares for the five business days immediately FHWTHE : R ()R DEE
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a
Share.
(i) The remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme (i) FEBREE TR

Approximately 7 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

REEH (BFR) BRAT

2975 (FR2023F8 148 BIHR) -



36. Share Option — continued

Share option schemes of the Company — continued

Particulars of the outstanding options which were granted to the
Directors under the Old Share Scheme are as follows:

36.[BIRAE—Z

AATIEBRETE 2

WARTTIE 2 FEARHE (ThIRIR BB TR T
BEE)2FHBERIOT

Outstanding at

1 April 2014

Exercise price and

Date of grant Exercisable period per share 31 March 2015

R2014F4A1A R

2015%3A31A

BREAH TEHE BRITEE I RATEE
(DIMFY) (DIMFY) HK$
(B/R/%) (R/R/%) BT

11/08/2005 11/08/2015-10/08/2015 1.746 16,538,950

The share options granted were vested immediately at the date
of grant.

No option is granted under the Old Share Option Scheme and
New Share Option Scheme by the Company during the years
ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

Share option schemes of Emperor E Hotel

Emperor E Hotel adopted a share option scheme on 2
September 2002 which lapsed automatically on 1 September
2012 upon the expiry of the 10-year period.

In order to ensure the continuity of a share option scheme for
Emperor E Hotel to provide incentives or rewards to participants
including the directors and eligible employees of the group of
Emperor E Hotel, the shareholders of Emperor E Hotel passed
an ordinary resolution at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 8 August 2013 to approve the adoption of a
new share option scheme (“Emperor E Hotel New Share Option
Scheme”). No share options were granted under the Emperor E
Hotel New Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 15
August 2013.
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Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
during during at

the year theyear 31 March 2016
2016534318

RERTHE REREH i RATEE
(5,769,475) (10,769,475) -

ZED R EREN R L B AR -

RE 2201638318 M201593H31H L4
& AR A EAR R E BT 2 S BB AR
BRI EERRAE -
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I 2 1R 47 [E FA20026F9 A 2 H R 4 — IR BE
RSB 2RI 20129 A1 B+ HRfE
EESIEEIERE

S IRAGHE S RIBIERT 8] 2 3B 1A
MEREEEREBEEBEERAERESR
FERZ 2 EERESE SR - K2 IR
IR F2013F8 A8H 81T 2 AR B IR B F
AgRB-IHLRARE HERWN—IBEFE
PR RT &) ([ 2 REEH S F B AAERTEI)) -
B I 2 IR 5 AR AR MR T 817420138 A 15
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o
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36. Share Option — continued
Share option schemes of Emperor E Hotel — continued

A summary of the Emperor E Hotel New Share Option Scheme
is set out as follows:

@

(b)

(c)

(@

(e)

Purpose

To enable the group of Emperor E Hotel to attract, retain
and motivate talented participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the group of Emperor E
Hotel.

Eligibility

Eligible participants include employees (whether full time
or part time employee, including non-executive director)
and such other eligible participants.

(i) Total number of shares available for issue under
the Emperor E Hotel New Share Option Scheme as
at 22 June 2016 (i.e. the date of this Annual Report):
129,254,598 shares.

(i) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents
as at 22 June 2016: 9.92%.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant under
the Emperor E Hotel New Share Option Scheme

(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders of Emperor E Hotel;

(i) options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding
the of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of Emperor E Hotel.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such a
date determined by the board of directors of Emperor E
Hotel but in any event not exceeding 10 years from the
date of grant.

36.BRE—2Z
WS R T R E B
55 2 p 0T 5 B AR S B o B IS
m

@

(b)

(©

(@

(e)

REEH (BFR) BRLAF

B2y

AE RS IREETE R BREW S| - B8 MR
BEA B 2EEUFRKRSRENE
SE 2 R E R S AER

EEKSHEE

BERZEEREREES (BREZREERE
BE BIEFWTES) RLFHEMEE
RS EE o

() IRIEZEEIRET I FTiE R &I
20166220 (ENARFHR A L) o7
FRITZREEEF 129,254,598
H§ o

(i) H20164F6 A28 HASERTREZ
B :9.92% ©

RERETEHEREBBE T FES

BRSRETERERZ LR

() BRIFERSIRGGEERRILE DRI
A28 A R A NS BB E %
TR Z21% :

(iy AEFRN—FzAREBHREBNBT
FPTEFTHFEESTEZHMEAR
MR BHBAEBITRGZ
0.1% X (B {E 8 155,000,000/ JT /B 4&
2 ARG R AR SR ALE

TR ERIBIR 7 ZHIR

REEBREREEREREBEE
=SEE A/ B BRI - R
EABERT  AEEEE G A B0
45'5 o



36. Share Option — continued
Share option schemes of Emperor E Hotel — continued

() Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors of Emperor E Hotel.

(g9) (i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must or
may be made: Within 28 days from the date of grant;

(i) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

(h) Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the board of Emperor
E Hotel and will not be less than the highest of (a) the
closing price of the share on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

(i) The remaining life of the Emperor E Hotel New Share
Option Scheme

Approximately 7 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

No option has been granted since the adoption date of the
Emperor E Hotel New Share Option Scheme.

37. Non-controlling Interests

Included in non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2016
was a deemed contribution by non-controlling interests of
HK$21,903,000 (2015: HK$21,903,000) on certain interest-
free loans from the non-controlling interests of a subsidiary
which were contributed in accordance with their proportion of
shareholdings.

36. B I fE — &
aga;*@raﬁﬂﬁaga—rgu—,%
(0 BRETRALERE 2 BITHR

SRIFREREBEERT S HITEE - AR
I 4 B AT AR -

(@ () FAEIERERIERFIAMMOAL
18 :1.0087T:

(i) WAZBEA] B X BB KT 1Y 56 2 R
BE B BB 28E A

(i) {EI RSB RN KA G B EE
HAPR : NEMA o

(h) E*"ﬁ/ﬁzg-ﬁ‘%
TEEVHREREEFEESET
HENSERTIRRE (@R EH A
Ptz W& : (b )F%%&Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
8% % By 2 PR E : Rk
[ERER

() HERLFEEHBIRETE 26 TR
2975 (R2023F8 A 14B BIHR) -

B R 2R E AR Bl ERA B e -
BB EER L -

37. FERER

R20165F3 A31H 2 IEE R B RIERIE
e A AE 28 & 3R T8 21,903,000 7T (20154 ¢
21,903,000/ L) ' sZ 5 BTy A — KB A A
I ERERFTRE AT R BB M
EAEFRREERELHTEE -
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38. Acquisition of Additional Interests in

38. WEBHI B A B 2 B IMER

Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group acquired
additional 8,335,000 (2015: 3,655,000) shares in Emperor E
Hotel, representing 0.64% (2015: 0.28%) equity interests in
Emperor E Hotel, at cash consideration of HK$10,989,000
(2015: HK$7,848,000). The difference of HK$11,107,000
(2015: HK$924,000) between the consideration paid of
HK$10,989,000 (2015: HK$7,848,000) and the decrease
in the non-controlling interests of HK$22,096,000 (2015:
HK$8,772,000) was recognised directly in other reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group also
acquired the remaining equity interests in a non-wholly owned
subsidiary at a cash consideration of HK$3,662,000.

39. Acquisitions

The Group had acquired the following material property
interests:

(@) In June 2015, the Group acquired property interests
located at Nos. 25-27 Oxford Street, London, W1D
2DW, UK, at a cash consideration of £ 35,500,000
(approximately HK$419,646,000).

(b) In June 2015, the Group acquired property interests
located at Nos. 75-79 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong through acquisition of Apex Delight Holdings Limited
at a cash consideration of HK$683,000,000.

(c) In September 2015, the Group acquired property interests
located at Nos. 8-10A Mosque Street, Mid-Levels, Hong
Kong at a cash consideration of HK$403,800,000.

(d) In March 2016, the Group acquired property interests
located at Nos. 39 and 41 Des Voeux Road, Central,
Hong Kong through acquisition of Versa Ltd. at a cash
consideration of HK$1,300,000,000.

39.
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REE2016F3831B ILFE AEBE IR
% K 1E10,989, ooo;a 7C (20154F : 7,848,000
V8 7T ) U B T 2 R 4407 [E 2 %8 918,335,000%
(20154 : 3,655,0001&) f&fn H R BRER
JE I 1 20.64% (20155F : 0.28% ) ° Eﬁﬁfﬁ
10,989,00078 Jt, (20154F : 7,848,000/% 7T ) £
JE #9524 2508 422,096,000 7T (20154 ¢

8,772,000/ 7T ) 2 7 E11,107,0007% 7T (2015
F 1 924,000/8 70 ) E EE RN E M FEERER -

HZE2016F3A31HILFE AEE N URS
RE 3662000,%751451@%EA HIE2ENER
Bl 2B Tz o

WEEIE
AR E D U T EAYE S

(@) M2015F6H AEEURERE
35,500,000 £ ( #7419,646,000/% 7T ) Y
= g l1ma HWID 2DWAH = H725-27
SR EREL -

(b) 720154F6 A @ AN &£ [E % 18 W B Apex
Delight Holdings LimitedA 38 & (X (&
683,000,000/ 7T - Y HE 2 1A B 8 /& 11 5%
TIBT5-T9% 2 Wk o

(c) M2015F 98 AEBUBREKE
403,800,0005% 7T 4% ﬁ%ﬁf%%ﬁ‘%ﬂﬁ || BE 28
ERH8-10AR 2 W 3RS o

(d) M201653H » A& E:E i I iE Versa Ltd.
LAZR 4 (B1,300,000,000/8 7T * YeBERI
EBEE BRI NANE 2 R -



40.Pledge of Assets

(a)

As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, certain assets (a)
of the Group were pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. The carrying values of

40. EEEKH

201643 A31H K201543H31H » &
SEETEEERBTRITUEAERE
BERIBITEEZHER - Z5EENRE

these assets at the end of the reporting period were as HARZ BREIMELNT -
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Bank deposits H|ITER 685,645 2,450,549
Investment properties "EYE 31,455,360 30,844,592
Properties under development for sale  #{EHE 2 B REh Y% 518,914 2,441,767
Buildings, including relevant leasehold  #&5F (BIEBEEEHE T i)
land in Hong Kong 74,834 77,048
Hotel properties and hotel property S MEREEBIEYEE
under construction, including (BEEEDAEE )
relevant leasehold land in Hong
Kong 2,976,757 2,822,772
Prepaid lease payments FERNHEENK 577,444 644,578
Others (Note) HAth (K7t 99,570 74,078
36,388,524 39,355,384

Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other
assets of the Group including principally property, plant
and equipment (other than hotel properties), inventories,
trade and other receivables and bank balances.

(b) The Group also had a bank deposit of HK$325,000 (2015:
HK$321,000) pledged to a bank to secure for the use
of ferry ticket equipment provided by a third party to the
Group.
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41. Commitments 4. EIE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Contracted for but not provided in the ERIAVERNERE M mE
consolidated financial statements, net of TP IEE L EE
deposits paid, in respect of: (ke NET2)
— investment properties —REME 504,754 1,860,795
— property, plant and equipment —% R RERE 403,891 637,757
— properties under development for sale —BIERE 2 ERTYE 191,525 687,808
1,100,170 3,186,360
. . R =3 =
42. Operating Lease Commitments 42. EEHE AR
The Group as lessee REBEREEA
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Minimum lease payments paid and MEMEAFEEMNR
payable under operating leases during B2 2 MERIEMES
the year in respect of rented premises 7,690 8,309
At end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments REEHR AEBRARBEEEMEZTA
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable B EHEER AR REReERE Y
operating leases in respect of rented premises, which fall due A eI
as follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year 1F R 4,657 5,824
In the second to fifth year inclusive EoRELF (BIEEEMFEAN) 1,470 1,980
6,127 7,804
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 2 years BEBHNKERG T HBEIE2FE T E
(2015: 1 to 2 years) and the rentals are pre-determined and (20155 : 1224 ) - MM R JHTESLETE R AR
fixed. ek

v
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42. Operating Lease Commitments

43.

— continued

The Group as lessor

At end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants to receive the following future minimum lease payments

in respect of premises in the investment properties, which fall
due as follows:

42 FEHEERE /&

REBEESHBEA

MEHR  AEB D BBEFETL A piRE
MERBRBR T2 ZEESER HEX
EAENT

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Within one year 1FER 780,122 768,739
In the second to fifth years inclusive F2EFEF (BIEERMFLEA) 1,148,513 941,456
Over five years B iE5F 2,229 10,516
1,930,864 1,720,711

Certain premises in the Group’s investment properties have
committed tenants for the tenancy ranging from 1 to 6 years
(2015: 1 to 6 years) and the rentals are pre-determined at fixed
amounts except for certain leases of which contingent rentals
are charged based on the percentage of sales. The contingent
rental income recognised during the year amounted to
HK$8,160,000 (2015: HK$3,334,000). The lease commitments
presented above is based on the existing committed monthly
minimum lease payments.

Major Non-cash Transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2016, additions of
investment properties and property, plant and equipment of
HK$118,524,000 (2015: HK$300,000) and HK$3,564,000
(2015: HK$5,402,000), respectively, were settled by utilising
deposits paid in prior year.

REBZIREMERNS TMEZHFLABEL
NF1E65F (20155  1264F) - HETBLET
MAERBE  BETRIARAESREEERD
EETA o FAMER 2 S AT £ A A8,160,000
7 7T (2015%F : 3,334,000/ 7T ) © |- it 75 49 7%
EURBEAE  BRAREHESSRE AR -

B.EEIRERS
REZ2016F3A31B I FE - REYELY
¥ B REBEZRNE D R A118,524,0008
7C (2015%F : 300,000 7T ) 13,564,000 7T
(2015%F : 5,402,000/87T) * JhiEmEREFE
HER R
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44. Related Party Transactions

(a)

Other than disclosed in notes 19, 26, 29 and 30, the
Group also had the following significant transactions with
related parties:

UNBEFTRS

(a)

BRBI5E19 ~ 26 ~ 20 R30I P EE & 4N - 2K
EENNEEBESET NIEARS:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Advertising and other expenses to MEBEQF T TES REMAEZ
related companies 90 746
Commission to Dr. Albert Yeung in his  H#51E+ (MAEBETBEF
capacity as a patron of the Group’s 25m)EHRe
VIP rooms 1,545 1,842
Financial services expenses to related  [AIFE AR RRSE
companies 1,020 28,960
Hotel and restaurant income from M) B8 2 5 2 B S &
related companies BREIA 161 493
Interest income from a joint venture m—EE &0 EWEF S 12,551 3,345
Interest income from a shareholder of  [E—BAEMEY —ZRE
a joint venture WCER FI) 2 - 928
Interest expenses to related MEAEQ T ZAHE
companies 143,618 116,110
Rental income from related MEEARRIRZES
companies 280,587 309,772
Secretarial fee expenses to arelated  [A—ERIER R N WEREE
company 940 775
Service fees from related companies  [AIEE:E A B W ELAR % & - 192
Share of administrative expenses by FE AR D IEITERAX
related companies 76,003 80,465

Note: The above related parties are either controlled by AY Trust
or certain Director.

The key management personnel of the Company are
Directors. Details of the remunerations are set out in note
12.

The Group had entered into an accommodation contract
with Dr. Albert Yeung under which the Group provided Dr.
Albert Yeung and his associates the exclusive right to use
and occupy a property of the Group as rent-free quarter
(including related expenses in relation to the usage of the
property) as his emolument for his services as a consultant
of the Group. The market rental values and the related
expenses of the quarter for the year ended 31 March 2016
was HK$9,930,000 (2015: HK$9,836,000).

180 Emperor International Holdings Limited & E2%E (R GRAF
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44. Related Party Transactions — continued

(d)

On 4 July 2014, the Company entered into the master
purchase agreement with AY Holdings, indirectly wholly-
owned by the AY Trust, pursuant to which AY Holdings
agrees to procure members of the AY Holdings, its
subsidiaries and associates (including but not limited to
the Company and their subsidiaries and associates) to
provide products and services to the Group in relation to
the Group’s future development projects, which includes
hotels, residential and commercial developments. This
agreement has a term commencing from 4 July 2014 to
31 March 2017. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
the Group’s expense under the agreement amount to
HK$7,353,000 (2015: HK$4,988,000). The product and
service fee payable by the Group is determined based
on an order by order basis with reference to the quantity,
delivery timing and the type of products and services.
Ms. Semon Luk, a director of the Company, has deemed
interest in the transaction by virtue of being an associate
of eligible beneficiaries of the AY Trust. Details of the
transaction is set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 4 July 2014.

MBEBEHIRG &

(d)

R20145F7 A48 » AR R AJEAY TrustfE] %
2EWACEXREFERABE
et - B - R RERIERE BT
SRREZEER KB AR MEMER A
MEE A (BEETRNAA T REM
BREIRBBARAEB 2 BEER
HE (BEEE TENEERRE)RM
B Sh MRS o 52 ek 2 HARR A2014%7 B
AR FEZE20179F3A31H « RE E20164E3
A31BIEFE  AEBNZHHE T
S £7,353,0007 7T (20154F : 4,988,000
BIL) o ANEBENZ ERMIRIEERTY
K2EEL MG 8E R RE
ABIRF B REETF - ANARIEEEL L
AEGAY TrustE BR X m A 2B AT
BWEARZR ST HEE R 2R HH
ABRAIEEHN AL R HE A2014F7 A4
Sha/N=

45. Financial Information of the Company 45. X N Rl 2 B E#
The financial information of the Company as at 31 March 2016 AN B 201693318 K&201543A31H 2

and 31 March 2015 is as follows: BABERINT -

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Non-current asset FEMENEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z®E 1,747,287 1,540,373
1,747,287 1,540,373

Current assets MENE B
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE i B /B8 2~ R R IR 11,013,774 9,889,253
Other receivables Hfth pE kI8 449 449
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRKRIRS 115 70
11,014,338 9,889,772
Current liability MEE R

Other payables Hfth fE AT 508 26,699 23,778
Net current assets MEEEFE 10,987,639 9,865,994
Total assets less current liability BELTERRBEE 12,734,926 11,406,367

Non-current liability FEREBEE
Unsecured notes EIRERE 3,715,063 2910,112
Net assets BEFE 9,019,863 8,496,255

Capital and reserves BEARR G
Share capital L& 36,775 36,718
Reserves (Note) & (A73E) 8,983,088 8,459,537
Total equity EmBE 9,019,863 8,496,255
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45. Financial Information of the Company 45. KPRz M E R — 42
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182 Emperor International Holdings Limited

— continued
Note: B it
Share
Share option Contributed ~ Accumulated
premium reserve surplus profits Total
R RE BRERRE MARER K& e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx THEx TET THET THET
At 1 April 2014 201454718 4,551,984 3,575 109,474 4,196,437 8,861,470
Loss and total comprehensive FEEER2EMZBE
expense for the year - - - (1,709) (1,709)
Final dividend paid for 2014 20144 2R R HIL 2 - - - (216,635) (216,635)
Interim dividend paid for 2015 20154 & J& {5/ £1f% & - - - (183,589) (183,589)
At 31 March 2015 201543 A31H 4,551,984 3,575 109,474 3,794,504 8,459,537
Profit and total comprehensive  FE&EF k2 H
income for the year Eart - - - 899,677 899,677
Exercise of share options TR (W 5#35)
(note 35) 11,264 (1,048) - - 10,016
Lapse of share options during 4 PO % 12 2k i
the year (note 36) (H336) - (2,327) - 2,327 -
Final dividend paid for 2015 20154 2R (1 R 1A% 5. - - - (220,653) (220,653)
Interim dividend paid for 2016 20164F E,J& {7 7 £1f% & - - - (165,489) (165,489)
At 31 March 2016 M201653A31H 4,563,248 - 109,474 4,310,366 8,983,088
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46. B A R 1E

46. Particulars of Subsidiaries

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as
at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, are as follows:

RN A A20165F3 A31H K201553 A31
Bz BB RFBENT:

(a)

Place of Issued ordinary Proportion of issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital’ by the Group Principal activities
HEMREL/ BRTEER AEERE
WEAREE EEHY BA/EMREL BRITRAZLA TEER
2016 2015
% %
Directly held
BEEEE
Emperor Corporate Management BVI US$1 100.00 100.00 Investment holding
Limited EERIHE = REER
REMEERERDNT
Emperor Hotel Group Limited BVI US$1 100.00 100.00 Investment holding
EEREEEBRAT EERIHE = REER
Emperor Property Development BVI US$1 100.00 100.00 Investment holding
Limited EERIHE = REER
HENEERBRAA
Good Force Investments Limited BVI US$1 100.00 100.00 Investment holding
EERIHE = REER
Indirectly held
MEEs
All Max Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property investment
HRARAT A% MERE
Asia Palace Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 - Property development and
#ARDE ) investment
NEERERE
Big Right Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Investment holding
X3 A% REER
Billion Ideal Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property development
BRARAT A% MEER
Century Creations Limited Hong Kong 10,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment
R ERBRAA A% MERE
Champ Billion Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 100.00 Property investment
EBXBRAT A% MERE
Emperor (Beijing) Real Estate PRC RMB1,511,377,395 100.00 100.00 Property development
Development Limited? F ARH1511,377,3957T MmEER

RE (AR FHEREERRAR

v

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016  2015/2016 &%k 183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BEERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

46. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 46. B N RIFE 2

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) A~ \)HR2016F3 4318 K201553 H31
as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, are as follows: BZEXEZWBARGFENT: —&
— continued

Place of Issued ordinary Proportion of issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital’ by the Group Principal activities
E AR ERTEER rRERE
WEAREM BEBY BA/EREE ERTRE A TEXK
2016 2015
% %
Indirectly held - continued
BERE 2
Emperor (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.2 PRC RMB1,807,598,058 100.00 100.00 Property development
K2 (FE)BRARP H ARH#1,807,598,0587C NEBR
Emperor (Xiamen) Real Estate PRC US$5,000,000 100.00 97.19 Property development
Investments Limited? H 5,000,000% 7T MEER
RE (BEF)HEZRARARR
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00 Investment holding
Holdings Limited 30 REZR
REREAERRBRAR
Emperor Entertainment Hotel BVI/Macau US$50 63.31 62.67 Investment holding
Investment Limited® KBRS/ 50% 7T REZR
REREAEREBRAF B
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Macau MOP25,000 38.00 37.60 Provision of project
Management Limited R 25,000F97T financing services
HREREAEERBRAF REEARERS
Emperor E Hotel Bermuda/ 130,255 63.31 62.67 Investment holding
2 R Hong Kong REER
ARE/BE
Emperor Financial Management Hong Kong 100 100.00 100.00 Provision of treasury
Limited e services to group
RENMBERBRAA companies
& B R FHRHI B RS
Emperor Hotel (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00 Property investment and
REREEEBRATF N hotel operations

NERERBELE

v
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46. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, are as follows:

— continued

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Indirectly held - continued
BERE 2
Emperor Investment Limited

REWEBRAA

Emperor Investment (Management)
Limited

Emperor Project Management
(Hong Kong) Limited
RETRRS (FB)ERAF

Emperor Property Agency Limited
RENEREBRAF

Fai lek Limitada

BRARRLA

Famous Awards Limited

Gold Pleasure Investment Limited

KERERARAR

Gold Shine Investment Limited

BREEARAR

Place of
incorporation/
operation
ML,
EENH

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Macau

R

BVIUK
RBRERRS/
RE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital’
ERTLER
R RE

1,000

100

100

100

MOP25,000
25,0002P9 7T

US$1
E

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

46. B A R 1E
KA A A20169F3 A31H K201553 A31

(a)

_ =

=

AZEXEWMBARFBNT: —&

Proportion of issued

share capital held
by the Group
AEERE
BRTRAZ LA
2016
%

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

2015
%

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Principal activities

FTREH

Provision of treasury
services to group
companies

RESEINGI ettt

Provision of management
services

REERRS

Provision of project
management services
RHYIER EERE

Provision of property
agency services

REMERERS

Property investment

NERE
Property investment
NERE
Property investment
NERE

Property investment

NERE

v
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

46. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued 46. B N RIFE 2

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company (@) A~ F)HR2016F3 4318 201553 H31
as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, are as follows: BZEXEZWBARGFBENT: —&
— continued

Place of Issued ordinary Proportion of issued

incorporation/ share capital/ share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital’ by the Group Principal activities

R ERTEER AEERAE
WEAREM EEBY BA/EREE BRTRAZ LA TEEXK

2016 2015
% %
Indirectly held - continued
BERE 2
Golden Pegasus Investment Limited  Hong Kong 100,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment
EREEXRER AT BB NERE
Grand Emperor Entertainment & Macau MOP500,000 38.00 37.60 Provision of hotel and
Hotel (Macau) Limited P 500,000 7T catering services
HERLAE (RF) BRA AN RAEEE LB RY
Grand - Invest & Development Macau MOP100,000 63.31 62.67 Provision of hotel and
Company Limited? P 100,0002F97T catering services

REREERBRARP RAEEE LB RY
Headwise Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 100.00 100.00 Property investment
BHREERRA BB MERE
Hill Concept Limited Hong Kong 1 100.00 - Property development
EEARAR BB MEER
Inn Hotel Limited Hong Kong 10,000 100.00 100.00 Hotel operation
BHAEBRAR 30 EERE
| Soi Limitada Macau MOP25,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment
fmARADA R 25000297 MERE
| Veng Limitada Macau MOP25,000 100.00 100.00 Property investment
X BERAAF R 2500029 7T MERE
Keen Million Limited* BVI/Macau USS$1 38.00 37.60 Gaming operation

RERLHE/ S BYER

BP9

Luck United* BVI/Macau US$10,000 38.00 37.60 Investment holding

ERERES/ 10,000% 7T RERR

il

v
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(a)

46. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, are as follows:

- continued

Name of subsidiary
WEAREM
Indirectly held - continued

Mg £

Mori Investments Limited

MORI MORI Serviced Apartments
Limited

Motive Drive Limited
2 RARAT

National Goal Limited

BEERAT

Planwing Limited
HEERAT

Precision Faith Limited®

RS ARARP

Quick Gain Investments Limited®

Rich Gallant Investment Limited

ERREBRARA

Richorse Limited

Right Achieve Limited*
ERBRRA

Place of
incorporation/
operation
ML,
EENH

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk

Macau
P

BVI/Macau
RERUBEE/
piel

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

BVI/Macau
RERUEE/
piel

Issued ordinary

share capital/

registered capital’

ERITEER

BAE/ERER

100

MOP100,000
100,0002F9 7T

US$1
E

US$1
E

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

46. i B A 1R
RN A A20169F3 A31H K201553 A31

(a)

=

=

AZEXEMBARFBNT: —&

Proportion of issued

share capital held
by the Group
AEERE
BRTRAZ LA
2016
%

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

63.31

63.31

100.00

100.00

38.00

2015
%

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

62.67

62.67

100.00

100.00

37.60

Principal activities

IREHR

Property investment

NERE

Operation of serviced
apartments
BERBALE

Property development

NEER

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Gaming operation and
provision of gaming
related marketing and
promotion services

B RS MR B AEED
SR REBRE

Investment holding
REER

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding
REER

v
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

46. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company

as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March

2015, are as follows:

— continued
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital’
ERL ERTEER
WEAREM EEBY B&/ERELx
Indirectly held - continued
BERE 2
Shineon Investments Limited BVIIUK US$1
RERLHE/ [E
e
Upton Limited Hong Kong 2
BEBERLR 30
Tin Hou Limited® Macau MOP25,000
AEBRAAP 2P 25,0007 7T
Very Sound Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000
BB
Wider Success Limited Hong Kong 1
BRARAA BB
Wealthy Wide Limited Hong Kong 1
HEBERAT BB
Winning Treasure Limited Hong Kong 1
HEBEBRAT BB

(a)

v

All amounts are in Hong Kong dollars except stated
otherwise.

Wholly foreign owned enterprise. The company’s English
name is for identification purpose only.

These companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Emperor E Hotel whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

These companies are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
Emperor E Hotel and are regarded as non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company because the Group has
control over the financial and operating policies of these
companies.
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REEH (BFR) BRLAF

46.fIB A RIFEE —42&
AR

A 2016F3 8318 201593831

AZEXEWMBARFBNT: —&

Proportion of issued
share capital held

by the Group Principal activities
AEERAE
BRTRAZ LA TEXHK
2016 2015
% %
100.00 100.00 Property investment

100.00

63.31

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

NERE

100.00 Property development
NEER

62.67 Provision of agency
services and gaming
operation

RERN R REYES

100.00 Property investment
MERE

100.00 Property investment
NERE

100.00 Property development
MEER

100.00 Property investment
NERE

BEAEEREIN ARBEIAETRE

fiz o

BHERE - RERBBEHRBH

ERNFRREREBEZZ2EWNB R
P E B A B P BT o

B8y

FERRDNELRGEAE 2 2 BB
DA WHRAEEERZERRNHR
REBER RS - At ZE QAR
RARBZI2EMBAF -



46. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

(a)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, are as follows:
— continued

All subsidiaries, except for those companies incorporated
outside Hong Kong, carry on their businesses in Hong
Kong unless stated otherwise.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company issued any
debt securities except for Big Right which has issued
US$110,000,000 unsecured notes (see note 32 for details)
at 31 March 2016.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

46. B A R 1E

(a)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b)
material non-controlling interests:
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting
and principal rights held by non-
Name of subsidiary place of business controlling interests
EMAILK FEREGFEERER
WEARAHE TEEEBY REEZLA
2016 2015
Emperor E Hotel* Bermuda/Macau 36.69% 37.33%

REREEE BRE/RM

Note: Included in accumulated non-controlling interests, an
amount of HK$1,680,340,000 contributed from the
non-controlling interests of Emperor E Hotel and its
subsidiaries.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

=

=

RN A A20165F3 A31H K201553 A31
B BB ARIFBM N —4&

FREBBAINEML 2 ARIIN B
MEARHEREREER (REEH
ERROL) ©

MR2016F3A31H KBIEZEDS H 1T
110,000,000 T IR EIE (FHI5 R
FE32) 9N AR A 2 BB A R EEETT
FAERES -

KEFZER LRINBERTERE
AREBEEXEEZARAIMB AR
EERRIBEMHMBARZHEES
FRIEBRITR -

B8 BRI 2 2 AN B AT
ZHE:

TREIIEEEANIFIERE S 2 AR E
FEEMBARZFFE:

Profit allocated to
non-controlling interests

Accumulated non-
controlling interests

PEFIFERER 2EF R FERESR
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TERT TET
161,523 377,612 2,981,823 2,885,192
(Note)
(Hit)

et EE2REHEMEMB QR I EERER
2 1 & 1,680,340,0007 st 5t A 25t 3F
PR o

2015/2016 F 1R

v
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #;£2016F3H31H It F[E

46. Particulars of Subsidiaries — continued

46. [t 2 F S 15— 12

Emperor E Hotel* HERSE R
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current assets RENEE 3,506,559
Non-current assets MV EE 2,867,386
Current liabilities mENBE 836,330
Non-current liabilities EmEBE 623,284
Equity attributable to owners of the REREHERE AELER
Emperor E Hotel 3,301,441
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 2 1,612,890
Revenue A 2,034,787
Costs, expenses, other gains and losses PR R e REE 1,339,994
Profit and total comprehensive income for & | M 2 E W S 4258
the year 694,793
Profit and total comprehensive income THIFEMEEF R 2R AR EE -
attributable:
Owners of the Company KRREBA 317,181
Non-controlling interests of the Company PAVNSIP S 377,612
694,793
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEB 2 RS RAFRE 862,489
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing KEEH2BRERA (L) F5E
activities (24,279)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BEEB R FE (574,503)
Net cash inflow REMANFEE 263,707

*

Representing Emperor E Hotel and its subsidiaries

v
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFUBHRE

Results E
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3ASMBLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T TET THET THETT

Revenue WA 5,602,894 2821473 3013897 5703465 2,959,603
(Loss) profit before taxation  BRFiAT (E51E) & (1,850,633) 1625991 2,655,118 7,187,235 5,080,332
Taxation 18 (379,032)  (350,298)  (265,688)  (560,765)  (154,392)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(EB)HEF  (2,229,665) 1275693 2,389,430 6,626,470 4,925,940
Profit attributable to: JE(E A
Owners of the Company ZINNEIE? ZE DN (2,391,188) 898,129 1,858,140 6,156,029 4,459,091
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M2 161,523 377,564 531,290 470,441 466,849

(2,229,665) 1,275693 2,389,430 6,626,470 4,925,940

Assets and Liabilities BEEREE

At 31 March
MA3A31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET FHET

Total assets BERE 48,051,959 49,011,232 43,313,955 37,803,653 33,005,564

Total liabilities afERsE (22,317,424) (20,563,434) (15,780,169) (12,346,965) (13,789,251)
25,734,535 28,447,798 27,533,786 25,456,688 19,216,313

Equity attributable to JEfG HEEs

Owners of the company ARAREAEAN 22,752,712 25558851 24,952580 23,348,384 17,495,301

Non-controlling interests FEEAR M= 2,981,823 28838947 2,581,206 2,108,304 1,721,012

25,734,535 28,447,798 27,533,786 25,456,688 19,216,313

v
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
E T

Particulars of the Group’s major investment properties and AEER2016F3A31H 2 B EWHE KEES
properties under development as at 31 March 2016 are as follows: MEZ BT :

Investment Properties REWZE
Car Group’s Land lease
Location Purpose Floor area parking interest  duration
ALEH THEE
ot 2= BHEHER BEUBE Lz HAR
sq. ft. %
FHER
1. Ground Floor and 1st Floor, Commercial 4,710 (G) - 100 Long
474-476 Lockhart Road, and [HES (%) = H
Shop G on Ground Floor,
Pun Tak Building, 478-484 Lockhart Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
& B 2 5% 0 1B 47 4-4765% 3 T
K118 K 5% 52 18 478-48455 AN 1B K E
T G5
2. Ground Floor and 1st Floor of Commercial 6,054 (G) - 100 Long
46 Leighton Road and SES (&%) -t
Ground Floor of 44 and 48
Leighton Road, Lai Chi Building,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
8 RSB IR E465 1 T 112
NABUHBA4 A8 E REM T
3. Units 1 to 4 on 12th Floor, Commercial 958 (G) - 100 Medium
Wing Yip Commercial Building, GES (&%) H HA
65-71 Yen Chow Street,
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon
FUBRIRIK S S £765-715%
REMEREIBIZ4E
4. Carpark Nos. 1-11, 20, 23, 23A, Carparks - 16 100 Long
24 and 24A on Ground Floor, BAL ~H

Kwong Sang Hong Building,

Blocks C and D, 188 Wanchai Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
HBEFIEFE1885%
EAEITRECKDEEH T

1-11 20 + 23 + 23A 24 2 24ASR B i

v
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Location Purpose

b A®

5. Units 601-604, 606, 705, 801, 806, Office
1206, 1207, 1505,1605, 1607, I /NE

1701-1707,1807, 2001-2007
Emperor Group Centre,

288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

E/%/ {¥$HE L2885f
25 E 06012604 606 - 705
801 ~ 806 1206 ~ 1207 ~ 1505 »
1605 ~ 1607 ~ 1701&21707 »

1807 522001 £2007 =

Shops on Basement One and Two,
G/F-1/F, 3/F-4/F, Some Commercial

Units on 23/F-29/F, Emperor Group
Centre, 288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

BB BB RTi828858
REFEFLE—ERE_EME-
T EE B EME 2 FU R23E298
ZETHERABM

Office
GEYE NS

Commercial

[CES

Ground Floor and 1st Floor,

523 Lockhart Road,

Causeway Bay,

Hong Kong

BB RS 5K 7 1B5235 b T R 11E

Shops 1-3 & 5 on Ground Floor,
the whole of 1st, 2nd and 3rd Floors,
the External Walls of Ground Floor
to 3rd Floor, the Flat Roof on

5th Floor and Parapet Walls
enclosing the Flat Roof on

5th Floor and Lift No. 1 and No. 5,
8 Russell Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

&5 R E R H8R

Hh 135 RS - 118 - 218
NIERE T E3E 2 IME
ST & BESET A ZIERK
K157 R 55R B

Commercial/
Shops
SEYESE

Commercial/ 125,811 (G)

Car

Group’s Land lease

Floor area parking interest  duration

AEE THHEE

BEHER BEUBE iz HAR

sq. ft. %

FHER

39,646 (G) - 100  Medium

(R2%8) Gk

36 100  Medium

(%) T Hf

1,850 (G) - 100 Long

(%) K H

26,952 (G) - 100 Long

(32%) RH
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
E T

Car Group’s Land lease

Location Purpose Floor area parking interest  duration
AEE THEE
ot Ag BEHEE =EU%B fhEs HAR
sq. ft. %
FHER
9. Shop 1-4 Lower G/F, Shops 3,364 (G) - 100 Medium
Yee Fung Building, Sk (B%) H A
1A Wong Nai Chung Road,
Happy Valley,
Hong Kong
ERBSHERBBIRARERER
JE i 1 =450 48
10.  Ground Floor and 1/F, Shops 4,328 (G) - 100 Medium
4, 6 and 8 Canton Road, Sk (&%) #HA
Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon
NEER D IE B R B4 - 6%
R85 T K118
11, Unit A to H on 17th Floor Industrial/ 11,554 (S) 1 100 Long
and Vehicle Parking Space Carparks (&ZA) RH
No. 7 on Ground Floor, T% /By

Hong Kong Industrial Building,
444-452 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong

BB B B TN444-4525%
BEBTEREITEBAZHE
Kt N 7SR AR B AL

12.  Units C, D and G on 18th Floor, Industrial/ 6,060 (S) 2 100 Long
Unit H on 1st Floor and Carparks (&ZA) RH
Vehicle Parking Spaces T% /#Hfy
Nos. 11-12 on Ground Floor,

Hong Kong Industrial Building,
444-452 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong

B2 B 78444-45257
BEBITEKE181EC D KGE "
TEHE R T E125FEEN

13.  Shops A & B on Ground Floor, Industrial 14,211 (S) - 100 Long
Hong Kong Industrial Building, I (EHA) K
444-452 Des Voeux Road West,

Hong Kong

BB = 8 7H444-4525%
BB T ¥ REH TARBYRA

v
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Location

i BE

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

Shops Nos. 7-11 and Entrance on
Ground Floor, the whole of

1st and 2nd Floor,

Wei Kei Building,

275 Chatham Road North,

Hung Hom,

Kowloon
FUBBAT R AR 38 1L 2755%

B 7= 1A R AD
1ENERE

The Ulfert Centre (formerly known as
Golden Castle Industrial Building),

4 Kin Fat Lane,

Tuen Mun,

New Territories

FT R P R R BAR R LRI A O
(AIBeBRIEXNE)

G/F, Portion B, 63-69 Avenida

do Infante D. Henrique and

Shop C2 on G/F,

No. 5 Rua Dr. Pedro Jose Lobo,
Macau

RFIER 2F K55 #863-6995 B
T I AR A5k M TS C25R 4

Shops A, B & E, GJF,

Hung Kei Mansion,

5-8 Queen Victoria Road,
Central, Hong Kong
BERERIREZ N 25 1H5-85%
MEE KB A BRESRE

Shops 1-6, G/F and 1-2/F,

1st and 2nd Advertising Walls,
525 Shanghai Street,

Mongkok, Kowloon

NEEHE A L8 52558
WTI1ECHHE  11ERMERE
E-REIMNEREMLE

Purpose

Rz

Commercial

CES

Industrial

T

Commercial

GES

Commercial

GES

Commercial

CES

Floor area

BEHER
sq. ft.
FHER
21,720 (G)
(%)

178,815 (G)
()

1,600 (G)
()

3,235 (Q)
(&%)

5,549 (G)
(BZ£)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

Car
parking

BEUHAE

Group’s Land lease

interest
AEE
FribfEss
%

100

100

100

100

100

duration
TiFEE
|

Long
=

Medium

i

Short
%2 5

Long
5

Medium

]
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
EZE

Car Group’s Land lease
Location Purpose Floor area parking interest  duration
AEE THEE
ot Ag BEHEE =EU%BE fhEs HME
sq. ft. %
FEHER
19.  Unit C, 6/F CNT Tower, Office 940 (G) - 100 Long
Wanchai, Hong Kong N (B%) B
BABEFILEFOECE
20. BJF, G/F, 1/F-4/F of Block A, Commercial 15,788 (G) - 100 Long
201-209 Avenida De EES (i) ~H
Almeida Ribeiro,
1-3 Patio Das Esquinas, Macau
SHLPY R S 5 1- 355 8 15 B
201-2095% ABEHD & « T~ J2 1 41E
21. Flat A& C, 12/F and Flat B, 17/F, Residential 1,780 (G) - 100 Long
Ying Fai Court, 1 Ying Fai Terrace, FE (%) 231
Hong Kong
BB RIBE1RRIER 1218
AN CZE R17TEB=
22. B1,B2and 3/F, Commercial 16,122 (G) - 100 Long
The Emperor (Happy Valley) Hotel, GES (B2E) < Hf
1A Wang Tak Street,
Happy Valley, Hong Kong
BB EEEHIRA
RESRSAEF —ERE_EiEKR3ME
23.  Shop A, D2 & E2, G/F, Shops 3,061 (G) - 100 Medium
Harilela Mansion, Sk (&%) A
81 Nathan Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
BESS YD MH R 2 B8 15%
EFKEH TA D2KRE25H 4
24, 153-157 Castle Peak Road, Commercial/ 8,841 (G) - 100 Medium
Yuen Long, New Territories Residential (B%) H HA
¥R TTBAE L ARK153-1575% mEMEE
25. 54-56 Russell Street, Commercial/ 5,138 (G) - 100 Long
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong Residential (B2E) -t
778 8 R /2 78 R 1H154-565% EEVSEEE
26. G/F, 20 Russell Street, Shops 1,125 (G) - 100 Long
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong 72 #70 (&%) -t

B REE R0 T

v
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Location

i BE

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

22-24 Russell Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
B8 iR 2 7 R 1H22-245%

Fitfort, 560 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
&84t AR 2 B5605: 2 B Y

Shop C & D, G/F and Units A and B,
1/F, Mercantile House, Kowloon
NEEBFKREH TCRDIEH
F1EAKRBE

G/F, 76 Percival Street, Hong Kong
R R EETER M T

Shop A & B on G/F,

Office A& B on 1/F,

Tak Fat Building,

50-52 Russell Street, Hong Kong
&5 7 Z150-525%
N E TAKRBY

1R AEARBE

Shop on G/F, The Java,
98 Java Road, Hong Kong
& B B8R The Javalt T w4

Shops on G/F & 1/F, 18 Upper East,
18-36 Shing On Street, Hong Kong
BB K % 718-365%

B S e 18 T R 1E R4

Shops on G/F & 1/F, The Prince Place,
396-400 Prince Edward Road West, Kowloon i 48

BE K F 18 P5396-4005% 1 o A+
T R

Shops on G/F, Upton,

180 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong

BB T B804 B 18 T

G/F, 67 Wellington Street, Hong Kong
BB BEEETHRM T

Purpose Floor area
Ay BHER
sq. ft.
FEHER
Shops 7,868 (G)
Bk (%)
Shops/ 134,411 (G)
Carparks (B%)
4, AL
Shops 3,710 (G)
Bk (3%)
Shops 600 (G)
Bk (%)
Shops/ 3,720 (G)
Office (&%)
A=
Shops 4,435 (G)
Bkl (%)
Shops 11,738 (G)
Bkl (%)
Shops 6,320 (G)
(%)
Shops 8,183 (G)
Bkl (%)
Shops 950 (G)
B (&)
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Group’s Land lease

interest
AEE
FribfEs
%

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

duration
TiEE
|

Long
=

Long
=

Medium

i

Long
=

Long
=

Long
A

Long
A

Medium

]

Long
231

Long
=

2015/2016 F 1R
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
E T

Car Group’s Land lease

Location Purpose Floor area parking interest  duration

AEE tHAE

b Ag BEHER HBEUHBE iz HAR

sq. ft. %
FHER

37. Flat B, G/F, Hon Kwong Mansion, Shops 800 (G) - 100 Medium

25-29 Hankow Road & 4 Ichang Street, BE: (B%) #HA
Kowloon

SLBEE O i825-2955% K
EEATENRRNEH TBE

38. Shop C, G/F, Daily House, 35, 36 & Shops 750 (G) - 100 Medium
37 Haiphong Road, Kowloon BE: (B%) HHA

HBE/EES5 36
375 FF 1T T CoR 4

39. Shops 30 & 33A on G/F and M/F, Shops 1,717 (G) - 100 Medium
Tsimshatsui Mansion, 83-97 Bk (%) T Hf

Nathan Road, 36-50 Lock Road, Kowloon
N BE R RIES3-975% K 4418

36-50%% E JR A E i T~
K B30 K2 33A5 A
40. 60 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong  Shops/Office 110,532 (G) 30 100 Long
BT ST T8605 BV NS (%) B
41.  The Pulse, 28 Beach Road, Repulse Bay, Commercial/ 167,000 (G) 97 100 Long
Hong Kong Shops (%) -t
B KIE 8 #8285 The Pulse [EEV)
42. 82 Hung To Road, Kowloon Industrial 89,500 (@) 9 100 Medium
JLEE R B 1B 825 I% §=+ H Hf
43.  Wincome Centre, 39-41 Des Voeux Road Commercial/ 39,400 (G) - 100 Long
Central, Central, Hong Kong Office (&%) -t
EEPREHBERI-NFKEFEERE BE L=
44, 45-51 Kwok Shui Road, New Territories Industrial 129,147 (G) 13 100 Medium
R B IR 45 25157 I% (%) H Hf
45, 181-183 Oxford Street, London, UK Commercial/ 12,731 (G) - 100  Freehold
ER B E A 18198 £ 18355 Office (3%) KA
[LEE VNS
46. 25 27 Oxford Street, London, UK Commercial/ 11,600 (G) - 100  Freehold
R e AR 4725-27 5% Office (%) KA
EEWAE
Remarks: (G) - gross floor area i (&%) —EHREEER
(S) - saleable area (ER) —ER@EE

v
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Investment Properties Under Development

Estimated
gross floor
Location Purpose Site area area
T EE
bk it} R R BERE
sq.ft. sq.ft.
FER AR
1. 75-85 Lockhart Road, Commercial 6,376 95,600
Wanchai, (LS
Hong Kong
BB L5 7 875855
2. Emperor Group Centre Commerciall 88,417 1,000,000
Section D, Yonganxili, Office (incl. basement)
Jianguomen Outer Street GEYE N (BiEmE)
Chaoyang District, Beijing,
The PRC
HEEEFRDL
trRmHER
REFIAE
K& EDHER
3. Emperor Star City, a site Commercial 246,173 1,300,000
located at Yuyuan Jiedao complex (incl. basement)
548 Jiefang 11/1 Qiu Huang HEEE (RiEmE)
District Shanghai, the PRC Ak
HREHER
fIRE LEERE
BEATIES48E
1Ak 2
4. Nos. 71-85, Avenida Commercial 5,404 29,200
do Infante [EES
D. Herique and Nos. 514-540
Avenida da Praia Grande, Macau
RFREFAHHE
71-85%% K&
A5 H514-5405
5. 17-19 Yk Yam Street, Residential 2,019 17,142
Hong Kong fFE

BAZREEITE19%

Note: Under the JV Agreement, the Group would provide the Land, the JV  #7:2: REALEHE NEBBRE L 28 BEB
partner would bear the full consideration cost and the saleable floor

area would be split between the parties in equal shares.

ZRPREYWR

Estimated
Stage of completion Car
completion date parking
TR B EEERASE  BL#A
Demolition work in 2019 -
progress
FE LIRS
Superstructure in 2016 425
progress
FERENEET
Foundation completed 2017 -
WETRETK
Superstructure in 2017 -
progress
TERENEET
Foundation in progress 2018 -
WEIRNEET

PaNgs

7]
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Group’s Land lease

interest
A&
Frih s
%

100

100

Note
FiazE

100

100

2015/2016 F 1R

duration
1
HEHH

Long
=

Long
=3

Medium

g

Short
KE

Long
=8

AEREEKRA MEAEESHET S0
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
EZOE

Hotel Property Under Development

Estimated

gross floor

Location Purpose Site area area

fhEHEm

2 ik BRER BEEE

sq.ft. sq.ft.

EAR AR

1. 373 Queen’s Road East, Hotel 7,718 116,000
Hong Kong BIE

BEAEERKNBRITIR

Properties Under Development — For Sale

Estimated
gross floor
Location Purpose Site area area
fHEEE
1t 2 itk B BEEE
sq.ft. sq.ft.
EAR EHER
1. Various Lots, DD210, Residential 99,816 32,000
Sai Kung New Territories FE
HRAELENND
£210% % @Bk
2. 8-10A Mosque Street, Mid-levels, Residential 4,028 32,200
Hong Kong iz
BB LB &R E8-10A5E
3. TMTL 436, Kwun Fat Street, Residential 97,091 39,000
Siu Lam, Tuen Mun, FE
New Territories
AP MER R
P B 4365
4. TMTL 490, Tai Lam, Residential 22,000 29,000
Tuen Mun, New Territories FE
MAEPIAIE
P 4 B 4905
5. RBL 1198, Shouson Residential 116,896 87,673
Hill Road West, T
Hong Kong
BEEBEIEASR
REMERE 11985
6. NKIL 6538, Fuk Wing Street, Residential/ 6,000 54,000
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon Commercial
NERKS RS rE/HE

HILBE MR 65385

Note: Jointly developed with Urban Renewal Authority

v

BRPBEEYE
Estimated
Stage of completion Car Group’s
completion date parking interest
{5t rEE
TR B EHBH ENBE iR
%
Superstructure 2016 - 100
in progress
FERENEET
FELEZERPY=E
Estimated
Stage of completion Car Group’s
completion date parking interest
AEE
TR B EEERAE BAU®AE  fiaEs
%
Site 2020 - 100
i
Foundation in progress 2019 - 100
HETRRINEET
Superstructure in 2016 28 100
progress
FERENERT
Foundation in progress 2018 17 100
WETRRIHEET
Foundation in progress 2019 36 40
WETRINEET
Foundation in progress 2018 - Note
WETRINEET Pzt

i EmEERRARER
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Land lease
duration
1
HEHH

Medium
HE]

Land lease
duration
i
HERE

Medium

b

Long
=

Medium

hE

Medium

e

Medium

hE

Medium

hE
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